——

CITY o

\ JT 1
1 4
| |

- Ll )
—— “k———f-__i_ tE L)
¥ s = ™
| 77
, A
. ] I\ %
[ &
[



About the Cover:

In September 2007, the City of Tracy opened the fabulous Grand Theatre Center for the Arts.
Although the grand marquee may look like a painting or an artists rendering, this budget cover is
an actual photograph. The Grand Theatre Center was a $20 million project funded by the City’s
Community Development Agency (redevelopment). The facility is actually comprised of the 5
historic buildings, the original Grand Theatre, and 2 old hotels, storefront and the City’s old jail. As
part of the construction project, the buildings were completely renovated and linked together with a
modern atrium interior /exterior lobby. Also new was the construction of a new “black box” theatre
for small stage performance in place of the old firehouse.

The Grand Theatre Center for the Arts boasts 37,000 square feet of space. Today the Center
operates 3 main types of programs - performance, art exhibition, and arts instruction. Musical and
theatrical performances can take place in either the 547 seat EKT Theatre or the 110 seat studio
theatre. The City offers an annual performance series and either theater may be rented. Art
exhibition is offered in the Grand Galleries with 1800 square feet of exhibit space. A variety of arts
instruction takes place in the Center within the music, art, ceramics and dance studios as well as
the children’s art studio.

The Grand Theatre Center for the Arts is the cornerstone of the City of Tracy’s ongoing
commitment to keep its historic downtown district alive and vibrant.
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December 9, 2008

Honorable Mayor and City Council Members
Citizens of the City of Tracy:

The Tracy Municipal Code requires that all funds, accounts, and financial transactions of the
City be subjected to an annual audit by an independent certified public accountant that is
selected by the City Council. The Municipal Code further specifies that after the close of the
fiscal year, an annual financial report covering all funds and financial operations shall be
prepared and submitted to the City Council. This report is published to fulfill that requirement
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008.

Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information
contained in this report based upon a comprehensive framework of internal control that it has
established for this purpose. Because the cost of internal control should not exceed anticipated
benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the
financial statements are free of any material misstatements.
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Moss, Levy and Hartzheim, Certified Public Accountants, have issued an unqualified (“clean”)
opinion on the City of Tracy’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. The
independent auditor’s report is located at the front of the financial section of this report.

Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor’'s
report and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial
statements. MD&A complement this letter and should be read in conjunction with it.
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Long-term Financial Planning

The Tracy Municipal Code requires that the City Council adopt a budget by no later than the
close of the fiscal year. This annual budget serves as the foundation for the City of Tracy’s
financial planning and control. The budget is prepared by fund, by department (e.g. Police), and
by program (i.e. Patrol Services, Traffic Enforcement, etc). Department heads may transfer
resources within a department as they see fit with the approval of the City Manager. Transfer
between departments; however, need special approval from the City Council.

As evidenced by this financial report, the City is in sound financial condition. The ending
General Fund balance as of June 30, 2008 is $18,578,589. In addition to the undesignated
fund balance of the General Fund, the City also has an Economic Uncertainty Fund with a
balance of $17,938,924. Together, these two sources total $36,517,513 and represent
approximately 68% of General Fund operating expenses budgeted for FY 08-09. This is an
excellent fiscal foundation as we approach new fiscal territory during uncertain times in the
economy.




The City enjoyed a 16 year long robust growth period in revenues from FY 91-92 thru FY 06-07. In FY 07-08 City of
Tracy tax revenues leveled off resulting in a need to draw upon reserves for the first time since the 90-91 recession.
Typically cities use reserve funds to bridge minor periods of economic cycles in which city revenues fluctuate. Under
normal circumstances the small draw on reserves in FY 07-08 could be viewed this way. However, the City noted the
dramatic downturn in the housing market and resulting fall in home values as highly unusual and therefore, decided
that this was not going to be a minor economic down cycle. The City began developing plans in the spring of 2008 to
deal with a long term and significant negative economic environment. At the cornerstone of this effort was hiring the
firm of Management Partners to assist the City in developing budget savings ideas, as well as an examination of
alternative methods of service delivery that may be more efficient. The firm would also identify potential revenue
enhancements including new tax revenues that the community would have to approve via the ballot box.

The City has a long reputation for excellent fiscal management. It had the wherewithal to add to its reserve levels
during the boom years instead of unwisely using these non-sustainable revenues to fund new programs or services.
And noting unusual trends, the City began its long term strategy before the economy deteriorated further in
September and October 2008. It is evident the nation is in a recession that will likely be prolonged and significant.
Even in the economy starts to improve in 2010, the City will not see improvement until about two years later due to
time lags in property tax valuation and timing of tax rolls. As such, the City is looking at a period of 4 to 5 years of
economic malaise and planning accordingly. The City is aware that it cannot rely on its reserves to itself during this
period. The Management Partners report will be presented to the City Council in December 2008 and the City will
consider these recommendations for implementation.
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Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement
for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Tracy for its comprehensive annual financial
report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007. This was the 20" consecutive year that
the government has received this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of
Achievement, the government had to publish an easily readable and efficiently organized CAFR
that satisfied both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current
CAFR continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements and we are
submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

In addition, the City also received the GFOA'’s Distinguished Budget Presentation Award for its
annual budget document for FY 07-08. In order to qualify for the Distinguished Budget
Presentation Award, the government’s budget document had to be judged proficient as a policy
document, a financial plan, an operations guide, and a communications device.

The preparation of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report was made possible by the
dedicated service of the entire Finance and Administrative Services Department staff. Each
member of the Department has my appreciation for the contributions made in the preparation of
this report.

| also would like to express special appreciation to Accounting Officer Linda Biscocho whose
long hours, dedication, and attention to detail made possible the successful completion of the
annual audit.

Respectfully sup "tted,

Zane H. Johnston
Finance & Administrative Services Director
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MOSS, LEVY & HARTZHEIM LLP

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

PARTNERS 9107 WILSHIRE BLVD., SUITE 400
RONALD A LEVY, CPA BEVERLY HILLS, CA 90210
CRAIG A HARTZHEIM, CPA TEL: 310.273.2745
HADLEY Y HUI, CPA FAX: 310.273.1689

www.mlhcpas.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Tracy
Tracy, California

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Tracy (City),
as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
City’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and the significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Tracy, California, as of June 30, 2008, and
the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable thereof, for the fiscal year
then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 1 of the notes to the basic financial statements, the City adopted Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 48, Sales and Pledges of Receivables and Future
Revenues and Intra-Entity Transfers of Assets and Future Revenues and GASB Statement No. 50,
Pension Disclosures — An Amendment of GASB Statements No. 25 and No. 27, effective July 1, 2007.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report December 8, 2008, on
our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contacts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

1
OFFICES: BEVERLY HILLS - SANTA MARIA

MEMBER AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF C.P.A.'S - CALIFORNIA SOCIETY OF MUNICIPAL FINANCE OFFICERS - CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICIALS



The Management's Discussion and Analysis on pages 3 through 15, the Schedules of Revenues
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance — Budget to Actual — General Fund, and Community
Development Agency Housing Special Revenue Fund, the Funding Progress of the California Public
Employees Retirement System, the Postemployment Retiree Benefits Funding Progress, and the
Modified Approach to Reporting Street Pavement Costs on pages 88 through 93 are not required parts of
the basic financial statements but is supplementary information required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required
supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Tracy’s basic financial statements. The Introductory Section, Schedule of Revenue,
Expenditures, and Changes in Funds Balance — Budget and Actual — Community Development Agency
Debt Service Fund, Combining Financial Statements for the Nonmajor Governmental Funds, Nonmajor
Fund Budgetary Comparison Schedules, Internal Service Funds, and Agency Funds, and the Statistical
Section listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not
required parts of the basic financial statements. The Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes
in Funds Balance — Budget and Actual — Community Development Agency Debt Service Fund,
Combining Financial Statements for the Nonmajor Governmental Funds, Nonmajor Fund Budgetary
Comparison Schedules, Internal Service Funds, and Agency Funds have been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements, and in our opinion are fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The information
included in the “Introductory Section”, and the “Statistical Section”, have not been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we express
no opinion thereon.

WM, K“? VMM

Moss, Levy and Hartzheim, LLP
Beverly Hills, California
December 8, 2008



City Of Trac
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

June 30, 2008

This discussion and analysis provided here by the management of the City of Tracy
provides a narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2008. Readers are encouraged to consider the information presented
here in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of
transmittal.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Financial highlights of the year include the following:

The assets of the City of Tracy exceeded its liabilities by $1,018,958,154 (net
assets). Of this amount, $80.1 million (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet
the city’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

The City’s total net assets increased by $65.4 million or 6.42% in fiscal year 2007-08
compared to the previous fiscal year. This increase was due mainly to the 26.5%
increase in capital assets or $140.6 million. Of this amount, $71.7 is in buildings and
equipment acquisition in the Sewer Fund. Governmental funds’ capital assets
increased by 9% or $44.8 million due to land, buildings and equipment acquisitions.

The governmental activities reported a combined net asset of $631.8 million at the
end of the fiscal year 2008. This is an increase of 9.13% from last fiscal year. 52%
or $30 million of this increase was due to land acquisition for right of ways and parks
that were received by the governmental funds from various developers. The rest of
the increase in net assets consists of construction in progress, equipment acquisition
and buildings and improvements.

At the end of the fiscal year, unreserved, undesignated fund balance for the general
fund is $17.1 million compared to last year's $17.3 million. The city was able to
maintain its fund balance level when compared to last year's balance. This
unreserved fund balance of the general fund is able to cover 35% of its operating
revenues. The slight decrease in the General Fund’s fund balance is the anticipated
result of the passage of Measure A due to its restriction on growth. During the fiscal
year, the Economic Uncertainty Fund transferred $1.68 million to the General Fund
to maintain the general fund’s fund balance at the $17 million level. This transfer left
a balance of $17.9 million in the Economic Uncertainty Fund at year end.

Revenues from taxes declined the most during FY 2007-08 and was the main
reason why revenues decreased by 1.7%. This decrease in property taxes can be
attributed to the worsening housing market where properties are declining in value
and fewer properties are changing hands.

During the year, the City created a fund in the Special Revenue Fund group called
Interest Stabilization Fund. This fund was created to cushion the volatility of
revenues derived from investment earnings. The city’s enterprise funds (water,
sewer, solid waste and storm drain) designated the Local Agency Investment Fund
(LAIF) rates as the basis for the allocation of interest income from the pooled
investments. This designation was approved through a resolution by the city council
to prevent the enterprise funds from the potential ups and downs in investment rates
and also be subject to the gains or losses from the sale of investments.
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OVERVIEW OF THE COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

The City of Tracy’s basic financial statements are introduced to the readers through this
discussion and analysis. The City of Tracy’s basic Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report is in six parts:

1) Introductory Section, which includes the Transmittal Letter and general
information

2) Management Discussion and Analysis (this part)

3) Basic Financial Statements which include the Government-wide and the Fund
Financial Statements, along with the Notes to Basic Financial Statements

4) Required Supplemental Information

5) Other Supplemental Information

6) Statistical Information

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to give readers a broad
overview of the City of Tracy’s finances.

The Statement of Net Assets shows information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities.
The difference between the assets and the liabilities is reported as net assets. An
increase in net assets is an indicator that the financial position of the City is improving,
while a decrease in net assets indicates that the City is financially distressed.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the City's net assets
changed during the fiscal year just ended. All changes in net assets are reported as
soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing
of related cash flows.

All the amounts in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities are
presented as follows:

e Governmental Activities---All of the City's basic services are considered to be
governmental activities including general government, public safety, public
works, community development, and culture and recreation.

The City’s governmental activities include the activities of a separate legal entity,
the City of Tracy Community Development Agency, because the City is
financially accountable for the Agency.

« Business-type Activities--—-All the City’s enterprise activities are reported here,
including water, sewer, solid waste, storm drainage, municipal airport and
municipal transit. Unlike governmental services, these services are supported by
charges paid by users based on the amount of the service they use.



Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources
that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. Like other state or local
government, the City of Tracy uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

The Fund Financial Statements report the City’'s operations in more detail than the
government-wide statements and focus primarily on the short-term activities of the
City’s General Fund and other Major Funds. The Fund Financial Statements measure
only current revenues and expenditures and fund balances; they exclude capital assets,
long-term debt and other long-term amounts.

Major Funds account for the major financial activities of the City and are presented
individually, while the activities of Non-major funds are presented in summary, with
subordinate schedules presenting the detail for each of these other funds.

The Fiduciary Statements provide financial information about the activities of the
Special Assessment Districts, for which the City acts solely as agent.

The Fund Financial Statements provide detailed information about each of the City’s
most significant funds, called Major Funds. The concept of major funds, and the
determination of major funds, were established by GASB Statement 34 and replace the
concept of combining similar funds and presenting them in total. Instead, each Major
Fund is presented individually, with all Non-major Funds summarized and presented
only in a single column. Subordinate schedules present the detail of these Non-major
funds. Major Funds present the major activities of the City for the year, and may
change from year to year as a result of changes in the pattern of City's activities.

Fund Financial Statements include governmental, enterprise, and fiduciary funds as
discussed below.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements are prepared on the modified accrual basis,
which means they measure only current financial resources and uses. Capital assets
and other long-lived assets, along with long-term liabilities, are not presented in the
Governmental Fund Financial Statements.

Enterprise and Internal Service Fund financial statements are prepared on the full
accrual basis, as in the past, and include all their assets and liabilities, current and long-
term.

Since the City’s Internal Service Funds provide goods and services only to the City’s
governmental and business-type activities, their activities are reported only in total at’
the Fund level. Internal Service Funds may not be Major Funds because their revenues
are derived from other City Funds. These revenues are eliminated in the government-
wide financial statements and any related profits or losses are returned to the Activities,
which created them, along with any residual net assets of the Internal Service Funds.

Comparisons of Budget and Actual financial information are presented only for the
General Fund and other Major Funds that are Special Revenue Funds.

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside
the City government.



The City is the agent for certain assessment districts, holding amounts collected from
property owners which await transfer to these Districts’ bond trustees. The City's
fiduciary activities are reported in the separate Statements of Fiduciary Net Assets and
the Agency Funds Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities. These activities are
excluded from the City’s other financial statements because the City cannot use these
assets to finance its own operations.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes are provided to give the reader more detailed information that is necessary in
getting a full understanding of the data shown in the government-wide and fund financial
statements.

Required Supplementary Information

This report also includes supplementary information related to the City of Tracy's
progress in maintaining its infrastructure assets and is shown on pages 89 and 89.



Government-wide Financial Analysis
Net Assets

Net assets are a useful indicator of a government's financial position. The City of
Tracy’s assets exceeded liabilities by more than $1,018.9 million at the close of fiscal
year 2007-2008. Of this amount, $804.4 million or 79% of the City’s net assets are
invested in capital assets. These capital assets comprise of land, buildings,
infrastructure, streets and roads, machinery and equipment and are being used to
provide services to its citizens. However, these assets are not available for future
spending. 13% of the City’s net assets represent resources that are subject to external
restrictions on how they may be used. The unrestricted assets of the City in the amount
of $80.16 or million 7.8% maybe used to meet its ongoing obligations to citizens and
creditors.

Table 1
City of Tracy
Schedule of Net Assets
June 30, 2008
(in Thousands)
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total

Description 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Cash & Investments $ 211,351 | § 196,737 $ 18,784 | § 16,563 $ 230,135 | $ 213,300
Other Assets 9,014 8,095 19,704 17,071 28,718 25,166
Capital Assets 498,364 453,560 411,456 411,053 909,820 864,613

Total Assets 718,729 658,392 449,944 444,687 1,168,673 1,103,079
Long-Term Debt Outstanding 67,329 66,065 52,174 56,082 119,503 122,147
Other Liabilities 19,598 18,214 10,614 9,129 30,212 27,343

Total Liabilities 86,927 84,279 62,788 65,211 149,715 149,490
Net Assets:

Invested in Capital Assets

Net of Related Debt 451,849 396,124 352,609 353,095 804,458 749,219

Restricted 134,092 135,593 244 555 134,336 136,148

Unrestricted 45,861 42,395 34,303 25,826 80,164 68,221

Total Net Assets 631,802 | $§ 574,112 $ 387,156 | $ 379,476 $ 1,018,958 $ 953,588




In governmental activities, the total net assets increased by 9%. This increase can
mainly be attributed to an increase of more 200% in special assessments revenue.
These special assessments comprise of fees collected for the Northeast Industrial Plan
Area #2 for water, sewer and storm drain improvements from developers.

There was an increase of 2% in total net assets for business activities. This was mainly
due to having three funds (Water, Airport and Drainage) that showed losses from
operations. Although the water fund’s operating revenues increased by over 12%,
operating expenditures increased by 17% which greatly contributed to the fund’s
operating loss of $2.6 million. The increase in operating expenses was due to a 31%
increase in the purchase of water and a 28% increase in depreciation expense due to
new assets placed in service. In the case of the drainage fund, the losses were mainly
due to an increase of 7.3% in expenditures but revenues increased only by 3%. The
drainage fund’s maintenance and operations expenses increased by 16% and
depreciation increased by 5%.

The Airport fund continues to report an operating loss, however, it managed to increase

its revenue by 6% and reduced its operating and maintenance expenses by 6.1% during
the year which resulted to a 17% reduction in operating losses compared to last year.

Changes in Net Assets

The Required Supplemental Information (RSI) on pages 88 and 89 shows a description
and tabulation of the city’s reporting of street pavement costs which are related to net

assets.

The City's net assets increased by $64.3 million or 6.7%. The table shown below will
show the key elements of this increase. Since the percentage of total expenditures to
total revenues is 57%, in FY 2007-08, governmental activities still managed to report an
increase in net assets of $57.7 million. In business-type activities, the percentage of
total expenses to total revenues is almost 89% which resulted to an increase in net
assets of only $6.6 million.

The expenditures of Public Works declined by 35% due to a reduction in capital outlay.
Last fiscal year, the total capital outlay expenditures amounted to $47.3 million while in
the current year, these expenditures were only $28.7 million. This 39% reduction was
mainly due to the completion of several major capital projects during the fiscal year.
These projects include the Civic Center Expansion, Water Treatment Plant and the
Cultural Arts Center projects. The Waste Water Treatment Expansion was completed in

October, 2008.

The expenditures of Parks and Community Services increased by 91% due to the
opening of the Cultural Arts Center which started its operations in September, 2007.



City of Tracy

Schedule of Changes in Net Assets

For the Fiscal Year Ended 'June 30, 2008

(in Thousands)
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Totals
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Revenues
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services 34,430 | $ 16,121 $ 46,705 | $ 42815 | | $ 81,135 | § 58,936
Operating contributions and grants 13,091 11,800 1,774 865 14,865 12,665
Capital grants and contributions 24,426 49,554 10,992 13,119 35,418 62,673
Total Program revenues 71,947 77,475 59,471 56,799 131,418 134,274
General Revenues:
Property Taxes 31,160 23,859 31,160 23,859
Other Taxes 19,079 23,664 19,079 23,664
Other General Revenues 14,292 11,505 1,795 14,292 13,300
Total general revenues & transfers 64,531 59,028 1,795 64,531 60,823
Total Revenues 136,478 136,503 59,471 58,594 195,949 195,097
General government 7,183 6,391 7,183 6,391
Police 20,658 17,296 20,658 17,296
Fire 14,416 12,882 14,416 12,882
Development & Engineering 11,135 8,543 11,135 8,543
Public Works 13,526 20,848 13,526 20,848
Parks & Community Services 7,502 3,929 7,502 3,929
Interest on Long-term Debt 3,548 4,084 3,548 4,084
Unallocated Depreciation 820 649 820 649
Water 18,786 16,106 18,786 16,106
Sewer 11,415 9,639 11,415 9,639
Solidwaste 17,088 16,492 17,088 16,492
Storm Drainage 3,486 3,247 3,486 3,247
Airport 542 666 542 666
Transit 1,531 1,499 1,531 1,499
Total Expenses 78,788 74,622 52,848 47,649 131,636 122,271
Increase in Net Assets 57,690 61,881 6,623 10,945 64,313 72,826
Net Assets, 7-1-2007 574,112 512,231 379,476 368,531 953,588 880,762
Net Assets, 6-30-2008 631,802 | § 574112 | | $ 386,099 | $ 379,476 | |$ 1,017,901 | § 953,588




Governmental Activities

Total revenues decreased slightly by .02% in FY 2007-08. The highest reduction of
revenues was in capital grants and contribution at 50%. Other taxes also declined by
19%. The decrease in other taxes was due to the decline in franchise and sales and
use tax. The earnings from investments increased by 25% or $2.6 million. This
increase was due to the city’s investments in high yield securities that extended beyond
the period when interest rates started to decline. Some of these securities were also
sold during the fiscal year at a gain. To protect the governmental activities from the
volatility of the interest rates, the gains from the sale of these securities were used to
set-up the fund in the Special Revenue group under the fund name of Interest
Stabilization Fund.

Business-type Activities

The City of Tracy maintains six different types of proprietary funds. These funds are
used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the
government-wide financial statements. Water, sewer, solid waste, drainage, airport and
fransit services provided by the City of Tracy are all accounted for the in the enterprise
funds. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate
costs internally among the City's various functions. The City uses internal service funds
to account for its central garage, central services, equipment acquisition, building
maintenance and insurance expenditures.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail. The financial statements show separate information for
each service provided and all are considered to be major funds of the City of Tracy.

Revenues of business-type activities increased by only 1.5%. The Drainage fund
suffered the highest decline in revenues attributed to capital grants and contributions.
During the year, this fund received only $1.8 million in contributions while last year, $6.6
million were reported under this revenue type. This was due to the decline in
contributions from developers.

Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

_ The City of Tracy’s governmental funds’ purpose is to provide information on short-term
inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources. In assessing the City's
financing requirements, this information is useful. The unreserved fund balance is a
useful measure of the City’s resources that are available for spending at the end of the
fiscal year.

At June 30, 2008, the City’s governmental funds presented a combined fund balance of
almost $183.5 million, an increase of $13.8 million or 8% when compared to that of the
prior year. This increase was mainly due to the 30% increase in loans receivable. Loans
receivable increased due to a loan extended to a contractor for the building of the Tracy
Place for Seniors funded by the Housing Fund. This increase can also be attributed to
the 16% increase in the cash balance. This increase came from developers that paid
impact fees related to the Northeast Industrial Plan Area 2.
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The City of Tracy’s general fund has a fund balance of $18.5 million. Of this amount,
$17.1 million or 92% is unreserved and undesignated. The total unreserved and
undesignated fund balance represents almost 34% of the total general fund
expenditures.

In the governmental funds, Northeast Industrial Plan Area #1 Fund, a major fund, is
the only fund that showed a negative fund balance. Last year's fund balance of
($0.046) million increased to ($.205) million. This fund’s further decline in fund balance
is attributed to the absence of special assessment revenues during the year. Since
there are more than 100 acres left to be developed in this area, it is anticipated that
more revenues will be generated in the coming years. This site remains one of the few
fully entitled large parcels available in San Joaquin County.

Phase |l of the Northeast Industrial Plan Area Fund, is now also a major fund. Plan
Area 2 is a 249 acre area representing the second phase of the Northeast Industrial
Area. This site is planned to absorb light industrial development within an eight year
period.

The City of Tracy’s debt service funds have a combined fund balance of $7.2 million.
100% of this amount is reserved for the payment of debt service. The fund balance of
the debt service funds decreased by 10% or $.8 million.

The other governmental funds (Business Improvement District and Community Access
CTV) that reported a negative fund balance was the result of excessive spending in
operating expenditures that were not matched by revenues.

Financial Analysis of the Proprietary Funds

The proprietary funds of the City of Tracy provide the same type of information found in
the government-wide financial statements as the governmental funds but is shown with

more detail.

The total unrestricted net assets of the proprietary funds is $34.3 million for the year
ended June 30, 2008, up by 32% compared to last year's unrestricted net assets of
$25.8 million. This increase is due mainly to the increases in unrestricted net assets

posted by all of the Proprietary funds.

Water fund’s total operating revenues increased by 12% but its operating expenses
went up by 17% due to a sharp rise in the cost of purchased water. These costs
increased by $.8 million or 31%. Due to this, the water fund'’s net assets increased only
by .25%.

The sewer fund posted an increase in total operating revenues by 3% while its
operating expense shows an increase of 22%. This upsurge in expenses was mainly
contributed by depreciation which increased by $1.4 million or 41%. Due to this its net
assets grew by only 4% at the end of the year.

The combination of a 6% increase in total operating revenues and a 6% decline in
operating expenses contributed to the airport fund’s increase in net assets by 40%.
This fund's expenses for maintenance and operation declined by 36% due to the
vacancy of management positions that were not filled.
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The solid waste fund’s operating expenses increased by 3% but its total operating
revenues posted an increase of 19% which resulted in a 32% increase in net assets.
This increase in operating revenues can be attributed to the 47% increase (from $19.95
to $29.45 per month) in the basic residential rate which became effective in August
2007. Last year's losses from operations in the amount of $1.5 million were replaced by
this year's operating income of $.86 million.

The transit fund shows a marked improvement from last year's results of operation.
This year, this fund posted an operating income of $6,445 compared to last year’s
operating loss of $267,652. During the year, this fund increased its operating revenues
by 28%. This increase was due to revenues received from the TDA sales tax and from
both the county and federal sources.

The drainage fund’s total operating revenues increased only by 3% while its operating
expenses increased by 7%. Due to this, its net assets grew by only .01%. Revenues

derived from charges for services should be increased to compensate the increasing
costs of operations.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

e The actual revenues of the general fund were less than the estimated amount by
$79,646.

e The actual expenditures reported a favorable variance. The estimated
expenditures were higher than the actual by $4.5 million.

« The net excess of expenditures over revenues for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2008 is $1.37 million.

The deficiency of actual revenues compared to estimated revenues was due to a 6%
decline in sales taxes when compared to prior year. The favorable variance in
expenditures can be attributed to various cost savings measures that the city undertook
during the year. The city, in anticipation of declining revenues, did not fill vacancies due
to retirement or resignations nor added more positions. Despite the city’'s efforts in
cutting costs, expenditures still exceeded revenues but it was kept to @ minimum of only
$1.37 million. The city also hired a consultant during the year to look into strategies that
could be implemented to enhance revenues and control expenditures.
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Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets. The City of Tracy's investment in capital assets for its governmental
and business-type activities as of June 30, 2008, amounts to $909.8 million (net of
accumulated depreciation). These capital assets include the asset descriptions shown
on the table below. The total increase in the city's investments in capital assets
increased by 8% for governmental activities and a 33% increase in business-type
activities. More detailed information of the City's capital assets can be found in Note 6.

Table 3
City of Tracy
Schedule of Capital Assets
June 30, 2008
‘ (in Thousands)
|
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
Asset Description 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Land $ 153,356 | $ 124,155 $ 6,646 | $ 6,646 $ 160,002 | $ 130,801
Streets and Raods 199,406 196,921 199,408 196,921
Construction in-Progress 10,815 18,387 9,455 129,012 20,270 147,399
Buildings and Improvements 1 7,.857 95,333 368,206 277,790 486,063 373,123
Grading, Curbs & Gutters,

Sidewalks & Driveway Approaches 26,460 25,367 26,460 25,367
Traffic Signals 14,204 14,238 14,204 14,238
Street Drainage
Equipment 27,117 20,880 45,759 9,600 72,876 30,480
Infrastructure 4,956 4,956 87,011 81,549 91,967 86,505
Intangible Assets 671 521 63,709 60,229 64,380 60,750
Less: Total Accumulated Depreciation (56,477) (47,198) (169,330) (153,773) (225,807) (200,971)

Total Capital Assets $ 498,365 | $ 453,560 $ 411,456 | $ 411,053 $ 909,821 [ $ 864,613

The City of Tracy's capital assets in governmental activities increased by almost 10%
while the capital assets of business-type activities increased by only .1%. One of these
increases in governmental activities was in land acquisition. The City received several
parcels of land for water, sewer and storm drain lines, streets and roads and for park
sites from various developers.

In business-type activities, the largest increase was in equipment. The completion of
the Wastewater Treatment Plant Expansion project during the year triggered the
purchase of various equipment that are necessary to put the expanded plant in full
operation.

There was a total of 86% reduction in both governmental and business-type activities
for construction in-progress as major projects were completed during the year. These
reductions contributed to the increase of 23% for governmental activities and 32% for
business-type activities in buildings and improvements.
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Long-term Debt. At the end of fiscal year 2008, the City’s total debt shows a reduction
of almost 3%. This decrease was mainly due to the full payment of the 1993 Water
Revenue bonds and the 1995 Certificates of Participation during the year. In
governmental activities, compensated absences increased by 22% while claims and
judgment decreased by 85%. Compensated absences increased by a total of 20% and
it tends to increase each year as more employees with tenure continue to receive higher
benefits in leave time.

A detailed discussion of the entire City’s long-term debt can be found under Notes 7
and 8. Standard and Poor's and Moody’s credit rating of AAA and Aaa, respectively,
was received by the City’s most recent debt insured debt issuance.

Table 4
City of Tracy
Schedule of Long Term Debt
June 30, 2008
(in Thousands)
|
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
Debt Description 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

2003 Tax Allocation Bonds 52,030 | $ 53,065 52,030 | $ 53,065
1995 Certificates of Participation 2,140 2,140
1998 Certificates of Participation 10,155 10,460 10,155 10,460
Capital Leases 395 521 395 521
1993 Water Revenue Bonds 330 330
2003 Wastewater Revenue Bonds $ 1,925 2,220 1,925 2,220
2004 Wastewater Revenue Bonds 30,380 30,995 30,380 30,995
U. S. EDA Notes 1,774 1,927 1,774 1,927
Irrigation District Notes 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000
State of California-Department of

Transportation Loan 142 157 142 157
State of California-Department of

Health Services 19,605 18,250 19,605 18,250
Claims and Judgments 92 625 92 625
Compensated Absences 2,849 2,334 428 383 3,277 2,727

Total Long Term Liabilities 65,521 | $ 69,145 $ 59,254 59,272 124775 | § 128,417

Economic Outlook and Major Initiatives

Fiscal year 2007-08 was the first year that reflects the signs of the times. Though the
City prepared for the decline in revenues as the result of the passage of Measure A, an
ordinance that limited the City’s growth, there was no preparation made for the decline
in property values due to the current housing market. This was the first time that the
City dipped into its reserves just to maintain a $19 million fund balance in the general
fund. This and other topics related to the City’s economic outlook are discussed in detail
in the accompanying transmittal letter.
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Contacting the City’s Financial Management

This Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is intended to provide citizens, taxpayers,
investors, and creditors with a general overview of the City’s finances. Questions about
this report should be directed to the Finance Department at 333 Civic Center Plaza,

Tracy, California 95376.
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CITY OF TRACY
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2008

ASSETS

Cash and investments
Cash and investments with fiscal agents
Restricted cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Interest receivable
Prepaid items
Loans receivable
Internal balances
Deferred charges, net of accumulated amortization
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Capital assets, being depreciated,

net of accumulated depreciation

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Deposits payable
Unearned revenue
Accrued interest payable
Postemployment benefits payable
Noncurrent liabilities:

Due within one year

Due in more than one year

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:

Debt service

Public safety

Streets and roads

Community development

Special districts

Projects

Housing
Unrestricted

Total Net assets

Governmental  Business-type

Activities Activities Total
$ 194,625,571 $ 18,425,028 $ 213,050,599
16,726,066 359,347 17,085,413
729,858 729,858
6,975,984 8,459,096 15,435,080
1,556,486 139,525 1,696,011
31,222 31,222
6,746,396 6,746,396

(10,896,200) 10,896,200

3,869,051 208,310 4,077,361
363,577,240 16,101,391 379,678,631
134,787,371 395,355,162 530,142,533
718,729,045 449,944,059 1,168,673,104
4,921,541 3,004,353 7,925,894
8,023,625 1,342,500 9,366,125
2,413,878 2,413,878
1,074,954 186,868 1,261,822
441,542 441,542
2,722,292 7,079,890 9,802,182
67,329,044 52,174,463 119,503,507
86,926,876 63,788,074 150,714,950
451,849,195 352,608,887 804,458,082
6,155,892 243,659 6,399,551
1,280,396 1,280,396
11,602,104 11,602,104
690,007 690,007
2,431,015 2,431,015
98,894,583 98,894,583
13,037,871 13,037,871
45,861,106 34,303,439 80,164,545

$ 631,802,169

$ 387,155,985

$ 1,018,958,154

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

CITY OF TRACY
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for ~ Contributions  Contributions
Expenses Services and Grants and Grants
Governmental Activities:

General government

Legislative $ (426,952) $ - % - $ -

City attorney (860,102)

City treasurer (334,728)

Administration (1,204,908) 500

Personnel (1,142,929)

Finance (1,797,150) 584,578

Non-departmental (1,416,035) 221,604 117,000
Public safety

Police (20,658,096) 481,143 941,137

Fire (14,416,391) 169,114 7,336,399
Public works

Development and engineering (11,134,899) 5,289,109 187,714

Public works (13,525,926) 26,478,011 4,221,932 22,682,376
Culture and leisure

Parks and community services (7,502,281) 1,206,126 1,438,856
Interest on long-term debt (3,547,689) 591,229
Unallocated depreciation (820,010)

Total Governmental Activities (78,788,096) 34,430,185 13,090,697 24,425,946

Business-type Activities:

Water (18,785,530) 15,305,456 274,236 3,463,811
Sewer (11,415,186) 12,512,856 54,599 3,582,882
Airport (542,152) 281,483 615,937
Solid waste (17,088,414) 17,949,517
Transit (1,531,123) 92,046 1,445,522 1,491,905
Drainage (3,486,055) 563,332 1,837,602

Total Business-type Activities (52,848,460) 46,704,690 1,774,357 10,992,137

Total Government $ (131,636,556) $ 81,134,875 _§ 14,865,054 _§ 35,418,083

General Revenues:
Taxes:
Property taxes
Franchise taxes
Sales and use taxes
Other taxes
Motor vehicle in lieu, unrestricted
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous

Total General Revenues
Change in Net Assets
Net Assets July 1, 2007
Net Assets, June 30, 2008

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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Net (Expenses) Revenues and Changes in Net Assets

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

$ (426,952) 3 - $. (426,952)
(860,102) (860,102)
(334,728) (334,728)
(1,204,408) (1,204,408)
(1,142,929) (1,142,929)
(1,212,572) (1,212,572)
(1,077,431) (1,077,431)
(19,235,816) (19,235,816)
(6,910,878) (6,910,878)
(5,658,076) (5,658,076)

39,856,393 39,856,393
(4,857,299) (4,857,299)
(2,956,460) (2,956,460)
(820,010) (820,010)
(6,841,268) (6,841,268)

257,973 257,973

4,735,151 4,735,151

355,268 355,268

861,103 861,103

1,498,350 1,498,350

(1,085,121) (1,085,121)

6,622,724 6,622,724

(6,841,268) 6,622,724 (218,544)

31,160,397 31,160,397
1,991,444 1,991,444
12,407,253 12,407,253

4,320,836 4,320,836

359,587 359,587

12,016,355 1,038,184 13,054,539

2,275,294 18,427 2,293,721
64,531,166 1,056,611 65,587,777

57,689,898 7,679,335 65,369,233

574,112,271 379,476,650 953,588,921

$ 631,802,169

$ 387,155,985

$ 1,018,958,154
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FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GASB Statement No. 34 revised the format of the Fund Financial Statements so that only individual
major funds are presented, while nonmajor funds are combined in a single column. Major funds are
defined generally as having significant activities or balances in the current fiscal year. No distinction is
made between fund types and the practice of combining like funds and presenting their totals in separate
columns (Combined financial Statements) has been discontinued, along with the use of the General
Fixed Assets and General Long-term Debt Account Groups.

The funds described below were determined to be Major Funds by the City for the fiscal year 2008.
Individual nonmajor funds may be found in the Other Supplemental Information Section.

GENERAL FUND

The General Fund is used for all the general revenues of the City not specifically levied or collected for
other City Funds, and the related expenditures.

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY HOUSING

This fund was established to account for the portion of property tax increment revenues received by the
Community Development Agency, and set aside for low and moderate income housing.

NORTH EAST INDUSTRIAL PLAN AREA # 1

The North East Industrial Plan Area # 1 was established to account for projects to support development
in a specific area of the City financed by assessments and/or development impact fees.

NORTH EAST INDUSTRIAL PLAN AREA # 2

This fund was established to account for projects to support development in the North East Industrial
Area of the City.

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY DEBT SERVICE

This fund accounts for accumulated City and County tax increment funds received for redevelopment
purposes to repay outstanding debt.
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CITY OF TRACY
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET
June 30, 2008

ASSETS

Cash and investments

Cash and investments with fiscal agents
Restricted cash and investments
Accounts receivable

Interest receivable

Prepaid items

Loans receivable

Due from other funds

Advances to other funds

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Due to other funds
Deposits payable

Deferred revenue
Advances from other funds

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:

Reserved for projects
Reserved for encumbrances
Reserved for prepaid items
Reserved for debt service
Reserved for low/moderate income housing
Reserved for advances
Reserved for loans receivable
Unreserved reported in:

General fund

Special revenue funds

Capital projects funds

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

Community
Redevelopment North East
Agency Industrial
General Fund Housing Plan Area #1
$ 19,293630 $ 5229,136 $12,335,778
729,858
2,411,624
760 50,851 104,797
30,412 495
592,729 7,028,161
1,895,100
244,057
$ 24,468,312 $ 13,038,501 $ 12,440,575
$ 570,474 % 630 % 4,441
3,064,935 860,549
2,254,314 7,028,161
11,780,657
5,889,723 7,028,791 12,645,647
518,474 229 115,198
30,412 495
6,008,986
244 057
592,729
17,192,917
. (320,270)
18,578,589 6,009,710 (205,072)
$ 24468,312 $ 13,038,501  $12,440,575

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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Community

North East Redevelopment Other Total
Industrial Agency Governmental Governmental
Plan Area #2 Debt Service Funds Funds
$ 21,098,075 $ 1,862,616 $ 123,061,412 $ 182,880,647
6,993,764 2,816,129 6,916,173 16,726,066
729,858
183,028 4,373,194 6,967,846
12,804 29,062 1,358,212 1,556,486
315 31,222
7,620,890
149,673 2,044,773
82,300 326,357
$ 28,104,643 $ 4,890,835 $ 135,941,279 $ 218,884,145
$ 437,442 $ 679,137 $ 2,944,861 $ 4,636,985
1,404,373 1,404,373
828,763 3,269,378 8,023,625
159,564 9,442,039
82,300 11,862,957
1,266,205 679,137 7,860,476 35,369,979
6,993,764 6,047,385 13,041,149
1,048,198 5,698,453 7,380,552
315 31,222
4,211,698 3,019,148 7,230,846
6,008,986
82,300 326,357
592,729
17,192,917
35,121,439 35,121,439
18,796,476 78,111,763 96,587,969
26,838,438 4,211,698 128,080,803 183,514,166
$ 28,104,643 $ 4,890,835 $ 135,941,279 $ 218,884,145
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CITY OF TRACY
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2008

Fund balances of governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net
Assets are different from those reported in the Governmental Funds
because of the following:

Capital assets used in Governmental Activities are not current

resources and, therefore, are not reported in the Governmental Funds

Balance Sheet.(These do not include Internal Service Assets)
Capital assets $ 533,834,743
Less: accumulated depreciation (45,066,126)

Deferred charges represent costs associated with the issuance of

long-term debt which are deferred and amortized over the period during

which the debt is outstanding. The costs are reported as expenditures

of current financial resources in governmental funds.
Deferred charges 4,522,513
Less: accumulated amortization (653,462)

Interest payable on long-term debt does not require current financial
resources, therefore, interest payable is not reported as a liability in the
Governmental Funds Balance Sheet. (Does not include Internal Service
Fund)

The liabilities below are not due and payable in the current period and,
therefore, are not reported in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet.

Compensated absences (Does not include Internal Service Fund) (2,663,185)
Certificates of participation (10,155,000)
Bonds payable (56,560,000)
Postretirement benefit accrual (441,542)

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs

of certain activities, such as insurance and vehicle maintenance, to
individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service

funds are included in governmental activities in the statement of net assets.

In governmental funds, other long-term assets are not available to pay for
current-period expenditures,and therefore, are offset by deferred revenue.

In governmental funds, other long-term assets are not available to pay for
current-period expenditures:
Conditional grant balance allowance

Net assets of governmental activities

$ 183,514,166

488,768,617

3,869,051

(1,066,669)

(69,819,727)

20,512,163

7,028,161

(1,003,583)
$ 631,802,169

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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CITY OF TRACY
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Community
Redevelopment North East
Agency Industrial
General Housing Plan Area #1
REVENUES
Taxes $ 34655186 $ - $ -
Licenses, permits, and fees 2,839,229
Fines and penalties 1,515,274
Use of money and property 2,268,404 366,937 725,751
Intergovernmental 1,422,094
Charges for services 4,903,783
Special assessments 319,500
Contributions 117,000 15,000
Other revenues 1,685,714
Total Revenues 49,726,184 366,937 740,751
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government
Cultural arts 1,938,594
City clerk 316,577
City council 111,774
City attorney 863,132
City treasurer 335,894
Administration 1,117,655
Human resources 1,146,892
Finance 1,803,443
Non-departmental 627,799 68,883
Public safety
Police 20,138,902
Fire 7,542,935
Public works
Development and engineering 6,993,060 2,318,823
Public works 4,157,756
Culture and leisure
Parks and community services 3,146,194
Intergovernmental
Capital outlay 856,668 899,559
Debt service:
Principal payments
Interest and fiscal charges
Debt issuance costs
Total Expenditures 51,097,275 2,387,706 899,559

Excess of revenues over (under)
expenditures (1,371,091) (2,020,769) (158,808)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from the issuance of long term debt

Transfers in 2,011,410 1,927,951
Transfers out (1,173,000)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 838,410 1,927,951
Net Change in Fund Balances (532,681) (92,818) (158,808)
Fund Balances, July 1, 2007 19,111,270 6,102,528 (46,264)
Fund Balances, June 30, 2008 $ 18,578,589 $ 6,009,710 % (205,072)

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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Community

North East Redevelopment Other Total
Industrial Agency Governmental Governmental
Plan Area #2 Debt Service Funds Funds
- % 10,153,405 § 3,239,289 $ 48,047,880
2,839,229
1,515,274
443,776 399,571 7,787,647 11,992,086
704,941 11,451,250 13,578,285
282,077 5,185,860
21,727,177 4,522,985 26,569,662
15,000 1,169,154 1,316,154
372,129 2,057,843
22,185,953 11,257,917 28,824,531 113,102,273
1,938,594
316,577
111,774
863,132
335,894
91,449 1,209,104
1,146,892
1,803,443
307,663 1,004,345
23,089 20,161,991
7,059,219 14,602,154
802,085 10,113,968
3,923,930 8,081,686
3,146,194
3,176,854 3,176,854
3,679,655 23,275,876 28,711,758
1,035,000 2,585,000 3,620,000
2,690,489 699,280 3,389,769
237,043 237,043
3,679,655 6,802,343 39,004,634 103,971,172
18,506,298 4,355,574 (10,180,103) 9,131,101
4,670,000 4,670,000
8,740,410 12,679,771
(5,077,951) (6,428,820) (12,679,771)
(5,077,951) 6,981,590 4,670,000
18,506,298 (722,377) (3,198,513) 13,801,101
8,332,140 4,934,075 131,279,316 169,713,065
26,838,438 $ 4211698 § 128,080,803 _§ 183,514,166
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CITY OF TRACY
RECONCILIATION OF THE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

The schedule below reconciles the Net Changes in Fund Balances reported on the Governmental Funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances, which measure only changes in current
assets and current liabilities on the modified accrual basis, with the Change in Net Assets of Governmental
Activities reported in the Statement of Activities, which is prepared on the full accrual basis.

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES $ 13,801,101

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities
are different because of the following:

Repayment of long-term receivables is treated as revenue in governmental funds,
but the repayment reduces long-term receivables in the Statement of Net Assets.
Issuance of long-term receivables is treated as expenditures in the governmental
funds, but the issuance increases long-term receivables in the Statement of Net Assets.
Issuance of loans $ 1,786,091
Repayment of loans (129,420) 1,656,671

Governmental Funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is capitalized and allocated over
their estimated lives and reported as depreciation expense.

Capital outlay expenditures are added back to fund balances 26,765,361

Depreciation expense not reported in governmental funds (7,677,255)

Book value of surplused and disposal of assets (64,866)

Capital contributions of assets 23,134,001 42 157,241

Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds, but
issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets. Costs
associated with the issuance of long-term debt are reported as expenditures in

the governmental funds, but in the Statement of Net Assets, the costs are

deferred and amortized throughout the period during which the related debt is
outstanding. Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental
funds, but in the Statement of Net Assets the repayment reduces long-term liabilities.

Repayment of debt principal is added back to fund balance 3,620,000

Amortization of deferred charges (145,885)

Proceeds from the issuance of new debt (4,670,000)

Debt issue costs capitalized 237,043 (958,842)

The amounts below included in the Statement of Activities do not provide
(require) the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as
revenues or expenditures in governmental funds (net change):

Postretirement benefit accrual (220,771)

Interest payable 5,657

Accrued interest receivable 60,358

Compensated absences (514,473) (669,229)

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain

activities, such as insurance and vehicle maintenance, to individual funds. The

net revenue (expense) of the internal service funds is reported with the

governmental activities. (Plus change in compensated leave reported above $12,620) 1,702,956

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES $ 57,689,898

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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MAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Proprietary funds account for City operations financed and operated in a manner similar to a private
business enterprise. The intent of the City is that the cost of providing goods and services be financed

primarily through user charges.

The concept of major funds established by GASB Statement No. 34 extends to Proprietary Funds. The
City has identified the funds below as major proprietary funds in the fiscal year 2008.

WATER UTILITY FUND
This fund accounts for the provision of water services to residents of the City. All activities necessary to

provide such services are accounted for in this fund, including administrative, operations, capital
improvements, maintenance, financing, and related debt service, and billing and collection.

MUNICIPAL AIRPORT FUND

This fund accounts for the activities associated with the operations and maintenance of the City’s airport.

SEWER UTILITY FUND
This fund accounts for the activities associated with operating and maintaining the City's sewer and

surface drainage system. All activities necessary to provide such services are accounted for in this fund
including administration, operations, capital improvements, maintenance, financing, and related debt

service, and billing and collection.

SOLID WASTE FUND

This fund accounts for the provision of refuse collection services to residents of the City, accomplished
through a franchised operator. This fund is also used to account for the activities of the City’s recycling

program.
MUNICIPAL TRANSIT FUND

This fund accounts for the activities associated with the operations and maintenance of the City’s public
transit activities, and has particular emphasis on serving the elderly and handicapped.

DRAINAGE FUND

Activities of the City’s storm drainage operations are accounted for in this fund.
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CITY OF TRACY
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2008

Enterprise Funds

Water Sewer Municipal
Utility Utility Airport
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and investments 1,825,512 12,924,288 20
Cash and investments with fiscal agents 359,347
Accounts receivable - net 2,497,445 2,033,875 42,737
Interest receivable 7,337 100,579
Due from other funds 180,835
Total current assets 4,330,294 15,598,924 42,757
Noncurrent:
Loans receivable
Deferred charges, net of accumulated
amortization 208,310
Advances to other funds 12,862,192
12,862,192 208,310
Capital Assets:
Nondepreciable
Land 29,015 932,681 15,826
Construction in progress 4,488,194 2,268,812
Artwork
Total nondepreciable capital assets 4,517,209 3,201,493 15,826
Depreciable
Infrastructure 19,186,363 18,568,344
Buildings 50,910,401 94,838,710 356,080
Improvements 105,875,198 76,925,385 5,869,540
Equipment 13,987,183 29,505,859 73,529
Intangibles 63,506,722 202,566
Total depreciable capital assets 253,465,867 219,838,298 6,501,715
Less accumulated depreciation (72,803,951) (67,207,565) (3,641,038)
Net depreciable capital assets 180,661,916 152,630,733 2,860,677
Net capital assets 185,179,125 155,832,226 2,876,503
Total noncurrent assets 198,041,317 156,040,536 2,876,503
Total assets $ 202,371,611 $ 171,639,460 2,919,260

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement




Governmental

Activities -
Enterprise Funds Internal
Solid Municipal Service
Waste Transit Drainage Totals Funds
$ 2,181,736 $ 7 $ 1493465 $ 18425028 $ 11,744,924
359,347
2,770,780 1,034,948 79,311 8,459,096 8,138
16,934 14,675 139,625
180,835
4,969,450 1,034,955 1,587,451 27,563,831 11,753,062
129,099
208,310
12,862,192
13,070,502 129,099
1,350,183 4,318,335 6,646,040
2,654,898 43,447 9,455,351
7,611
4,005,081 4,361,782 16,101,391 7,611
49,256,018 87,010,725
1,549,367 147,654,558 317,555
367,930 31,513,245 220,551,298 554,752
42,871 2,130,439 19,624 45,759,505 20,127,475
63,709,288
42,871 4,047,736 80,788,887 564,685,374 20,999,782
(39,407) (1,637,132) (24,001,119) (169,330,212) (11,411,399)
3,464 2,410,604 56,787,768 395,355,162 9,588,383
3,464 6,415,685 61,149,550 411,456,553 9,595,994
3,464 6,415,685 61,149,550 424,527,055 9,725,093
$ 4972914 $ 7450640 $ 62,737,001 _$ 452,090,886 $ 21,478,155
(Continued)
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CITY OF TRACY
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS (Continued)
June 30, 2008

Enterprise Funds

Water Sewer Municipal
Utility Utility Airport
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 265,761 $ 770,521  § 24,864
Deposits payable 260,465 4,000 28,900
Due to other funds 180,835 156,500
Accrued interest payable 66,454 115,688 4,726
Claims payable, current portion
Current portion - long-term debt 6,086,892 934,740 22,257
Total current liabilities 6,860,407 1,824,949 237,247
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Advances from other funds 1,325,592
Capital lease payable
Notes payable 20,414,134 126,144
Revenue bonds payable 1,625,000
Compensated absences 122,188 49,741 6,255
Claims payable
Certificates of participation payable 29,795,000
Total noncurrent liabilities 20,536,322 31,469,741 1,457,991
Total Liabilities 27,396,729 33,294,690 1,695,238
NET ASSETS
Investment in capital assets,
net of related debt 158,800,286 123,527,226 2,712,676
Restricted for debt service 243,659
Unrestricted 16,174,596 14,573,885 (1,488,654)
Total Net Assets $ 174,974,882 $ 138,344,770 § 1,224,022

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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Governmental

Activities -
Enterprise Funds Internal
Solid Municipal Service
Waste Transit Drainage Totals Funds
$ 742,827 $ 193576 $ 6,804 $ 2004353 $ 284,556
1,049,135 1,342,500
483,900 821,235
186,868 8,285
45,859
2931 3,194 29,876 7,079,890 223,128
745,758 680,670 1,085,815 11,434,846 561,828
1,325,592
265,356
20,540,278
1,625,000
2,932 3,193 29,876 214,185 92,950
45,858
29,795,000
2,932 3,193 29,876 53,500,055 404,164
748,690 683,863 1,115,691 64,934,901 965,992
3,464 6,415,685 61,149,550 352,608,887 9,200,461
243,659
4,220,760 351,092 471,760 34,303,439 11,311,702
$ 4224224 $ 6,766,777 _$ 61,621,310 $ 387,155,985 $ 20,512,163
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CITY OF TRACY
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Operating Revenues
Sales and charges for services
Other operating revenues

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
Purchase of water
Maintenance and operation
Administration
Insurance costs and claims
Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income (Loss)
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Interest income
Interest expense
Grants and subsidies
Gain (Loss) on sale of capital assets
Total Non-Operating Income (Loss)
Income (Loss) Before Contributions and Transfers
Transfersin
Transfers out
Contributions
Change in Net Assets
Net Assets, July 1, 2007

Net Assets, June 30, 2008

Enterprise Funds

Water Sewer Mubnicipal
Utility Utility Airport
15,244,286  $ 12,268,074 $ 268,993
61,170 244,782 12,490
15,305,456 12,512,856 281,483
3,507,883
6,409,650 4,789,800 209,689
443,340 240,330
7,574,068 5,014,253 325,122
17,934,941 10,044,383 534,811
(2,629,485) 2,468,473 (253,328)
128,434 645,157
(850,589) (1,370,803) (7,341)
274,236 54,599 594,878
221 22,155
(447,698) (648,892) 587,537
(3,077,183) 1,819,581 334,209
62,026
(75,967)
3,463,811 3,582,882 21,059
448,654 5,326,496 355,268
174,526,228 133,018,274 868,754
174,974,882 $ 138,344,770 $ 1,224,022

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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Governmental

Activities-
Enterprise Funds Internal
Solid Municipal Service
Waste Transit Drainage Totals Funds
17,900,118  $ 92,033 563,332 % 46,336,836 9 7,880,229
49,399 1,445,535 1,813,376 764,101
17,949,517 1,637,568 563,332 48,150,212 8,644,330
3,507,883
17,081,167 1,252,758 737,419 30,480,483 4,289,162
38,143 721,813 608,756
2,247,379
7,247 278,365 2,710,493 15,909,548 1,861,327
17,088,414 1,531,123 3,486,055 50,619,727 9,006,624
861,103 6,445 (2,922,723) (2,469,515) (362,294)
174,826 89,767 1,038,184 23,451
(2,228,733) (17,692)
718,680 1,642,393
5,251 (9,200) 18,427 100,474
174,826 723,931 80,567 470,271 106,233
1,035,929 730,376 (2,842,156) (1,999,244) (256,061)
13,941 75,967
(75,967)
773,225 1,837,602 9,678,579 1,946,397
1,035,929 1,503,601 (990,613) 7,679,335 1,690,336
3,188,295 5,263,176 62,611,923 379,476,650 18,821,827
4224224  $ 6,766,777 61,621,310 $ 387,155,985 $ 20,512,163
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CITY OF TRACY
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Receipts from customers/interfund charges
Payments to suppliers and users
Payments to employees

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Non-Capital Financing Activities:

Advances to/from other funds
Principal received on loans receivable

Principal paid for new loans

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Non-Capital
Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related
Financing Activities:
Capital contributions
Capital grants received
Acquisitions of capital assets
Proceeds from loans payable
interest paid
Principal payments - long-term debt
Proceeds from sales of capital assets

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and
Related Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Interest received

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and
Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, July 1, 2007
Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30, 2008

Noncash Transactions
Capital contributions
Amortization of deferred charges
Capital transfers

Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents
To Statement of Net Assets

Cash and investments
Cash and investments with fiscal agents

Total Cash and Investments

Enterprise Funds

Water Sewer Municipal
Utility Utility Airport
$ 14,463,344 $ 11748480 $ 432,217
(8,051,043) (3,815,225) (82,502)
(3,478,567) (2,076,167) (128,412)
2,933,734 5,857,088 221,303
20,000 (20,000)
20,000 (20,000)
300 544,273
274,236 54,599 594,878
(2,503,392) (3,130,878) (843,328)
1,750,152
(816,458) (1,364,922) (7,844)
(878,166) (910,000) (15,138)
221 46,903 70,112
(2,173,107) (4,760,025)  (201,320)
121,097 694,826
121,097 694,826
901,724 1,791,889 (17)
923,788 11,491,746 37
$ 1825512 $13,283,635 % 20
$ 3463511 $ 3038609 § -
$ - $ 7331 §$ -
$ 62,026 $ (75967) $ -
$ 1825512 $12,924288 § 20
359,347
$ 1825512 $13,283635 § 20

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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Enterprise Funds

Governmental
Activities -

Solid Municipal Internal Service
Waste Transit Drainage Totals Funds
$ 17,032,936 $ 1,768,499 $ 542079 §$ 45987555 § 9,069,390
(17,489,309) (1,357,316) (628,953) (31,424,348) (5,248,555)
(107,109) (236,758) (203,970) (6,230,983) (2,199,817)
(563,482) 174,425 (290,844) 8,332,224 1,621,018
39,217
(124,833)
(85,616)
544,573
718,680 1,642,393
(898,349) (5,398) (7,381,345) (2,592,692)
1,750,152
(2,189,224) (20,558)
(1,803,304) (125,300)
5,251 99,042 221,529 131,182
(174,418) 93,644 (7,215,226) (2,607,368)
191,943 96,408 1,104,274 88,656
191,943 96,408 1,104,274 88,656
(371,539) 7 (100,792) 2,221,272 (983,310)
2,653,275 1,594,257 16,563,103 12,728,234
$ 2181736 § 7 $ 1493465 $ 18,784,375 % 11,744,924
$ - $ 773225 $ 1837602 $ 9112947 § 1,946,397
$ - $ - $ - $ 7331 $ -
$ - $ - $ 13,941 § - $ -
$ 2181736 $ 7 $ 1493465 $ 18425028 § 11,744,924
359,347
$ 2181736 $ 7 $ 1493465 $ 18,784,375 % 11,744,924
(Continued)
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CITY OF TRACY
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

(Continued)
Enterprise Funds
Water Sewer Municipal
Utility Utility Airport
Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net
Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Operating Income (Loss) $ (2,629,485) $ 2,468,473 $ (253,328)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss)
to Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:

Depreciation 7,574,068 5,014,253 325,122
(Increase) Decrease in Operating Assets:

Accounts receivable (923,390) (764,376) 23,5634

Prepaid items , 170
Increase (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities:

Accounts payable (1,202,085) (859,686) (11,288)

Due to other funds 127,200

Compensated absences 33,348 (1,746) 5,475

Deposits payable 81,278 4,588

Claims payable
Net Cash Provided (Used) by

Operating Activities $ 2933734 $ 5,857,088 _$ 221303

The notes to the basic financial statemggts are an integral part of this statement



Enterprise Funds

Governmental

) Activities -
Solid Municipal Internal Service
Waste Transit Drainage Totals Funds
$ 861,103 $ 6,445 $ (2,922,723) $ (2,469,515) § (362,294)
7,247 278,365 2,710,493 15,909,548 1,861,327
(916,581) 230,931 (25,713) (2,375,595) 425,060
386 1,468 2,024
(518,798) 119,011 (3,043) (2,475,889) 217,776
(459,296) (332,096)
3,161 (1,031) (4,360) 34,847 12,620
(46,966) 38,900
(533,471)
$ (563482) $ 174425 $ (290,844) § 8332224 § 1,621,018
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS

AGENCY FUNDS

Agency funds are used to account for assets held by the City as an agent for individuals, private
organizations, and other governments. The financial activities of these funds are excluded from the
Government-wide financial statements, but are presented in separate Fiduciary Fund financial
statements.
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CITY OF TRACY
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
June 30, 2008

Agency
Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 12,256,067
Cash and investments, restricted 6,264
Cash and investments with fiscal agents 17,482,389
Interest receivable 74,970
Total Assets 29,819,690
LIABILITIES
Due to other governments 405,516
Accounts payable 27,253
Deposits payable 1,752,161
Due to assessment district bondholders 27,634,760
Total Liabilities 29,819,690
NET ASSETS $ -

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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CITY OF TRACY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A.

Description of the Reporting Entity

The City of Tracy was incorporated as a general law city on July 10, 1910. The City
operates under the Council-Manager form of government and provides the following
services: public safety (policy and fire), highways and streets, sanitation, culture-
recreation, public improvements, planning and zoning, general administration services,
and redevelopment. These basic financial statements present the City of Tracy (the
primary government) and its component units. The component units discussed in Section
B (below) are included in the City's reporting entity because of the significance of their
operational or financial relationships with the City.

The accompanying financial statements present the activities of the City of Tracy (the
primary government) and its component unit, and entity for which the City is financially
accountable. The City of Tracy Community Development Agency (Agency) is a tax-
increment redevelopment agency, the Board of which is composed of City Council
members. The Agency’s purpose is to prepare and implement plans for improvement,
rehabilitation, and development of certain areas within the City. Although legally separate,
this Agency is so intertwined with the City that it is, in substance, one and the same.
Accordingly, it is blended with the City in these financial statements. Separate Agency
financial statements may be obtained from the City of Tracy at 333 Civic Center Plaza,
Tracy, California 95376.

Individual Component Unit Disclosures

Blended Component Units. The City of Tracy Community Development Agency (Agency)
serves all the citizens of the City. The Agency is governed by a board comprised of
members of the City’s elected council. The Agency is reported as a special revenue fund,
a capital projects fund, and a debt service fund.

Discretely Presented Component Units. ~There are no entities which meet the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14, as amended by
GASB Statement No. 39, criteria for discrete disclosure within these basic financial

statements.

Basis of Presentation

The City's basic financial statements are prepared in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. The Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) is the acknowledged standard setting body for establishing
accounting and financial reporting standards followed by governmental entities in the
United States of America.

The accompanying financial statements are presented on the basis set forth in

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements No. 34, Basic Financial
Statements — Management's Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments.
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CITY OF TRACY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C.

Basis of Presentation (Continued)

New Accounting Pronouncements

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 48

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, the City implemented Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 48, “Sales and Pledges of Receivables and
Future Revenues and Intra-Entity Transfers of Assets and Future Revenues’. The
Statement is effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2006. This Statement
establishes accounting and financial reporting standards for transactions in which a
government receives, or is entitled to, resources in exchange for future cash flows
generated by collecting specific receivables or specific future revenues. It also contains
provisions that apply to certain situations in which a government does not receive
resources but, nevertheless, pledges or commits future cash flows generated by collecting
specific future revenues. In addition, this statement establishes accounting and financial
reporting standards that apply to all intra-entity transfers of assets and future revenues.
Implementation of GASB Statement No. 48 did not have an impact on the City’s basic
financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 50

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, the City implemented GASB Statement No. 50,
“Pension Disclosure — an Amendment of GASB Statements No. 25 and No. 27". The
Statement is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2007. This Statement
establishes and modifies requirements related to financial reporting by pension plans and
by employers that provide defined benefit and defined contribution pensions.
Implementation of GASB Statement No. 50 did not have an impact on the City’s basic
financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008.

Government-wide Statements

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities display information about the
primary government (the City) and its component units. These statements include the
financial activities of the overall City government, except for fiduciary activities.
Eliminations, except for interfund services provided and used, have been made to
minimize double counting or internal activities. Governmental activities generally are
financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange
transactions.

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program
revenues for each segment of the City's governmental and business-type activities. Direct
expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and,
therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include (a)
charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs, (b) grants
and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational needs of a particular
programs, and (c) fees, grants, and contributions that are restricted to financing the
acquisition or construction of capital assets. Revenues that are not classified as program
revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues.
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NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C.

Basis of Presentation (Continued)

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide information about the City’s funds, including
fiduciary funds and blended component units. Separate statements for each fund
category — governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary — are presented. The emphasis of
fund financial statements is on major individual funds, each of which is displayed in a
separate column. All remaining governmental funds are aggregated and reported as
nonmajor funds.

Proprietary fund financial statements include a Statement of Net Assets, a Statement of
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets, and a Statement of Cash Flows for all
proprietary funds.

Internal service funds are also presented in these statements. However, internal service
balances and activites have been combined with the governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements. These Internal service funds account for charges
to other funds and departments for insurance, maintenance, and equipment acquisition.

Proprietary funds are accounted for using the “economic resources” measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities (whether
current or noncurrent) are included on the Statement of Net Assets. The Statement of
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets presents increases (revenues) and
decreases (expenses) in total net assets. Under the accrual basis of accounting,
revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned while expenses are
recognized in the period in which liabilities are incurred.

Operating revenues in the proprietary funds are those revenues that are generated from
the primary operation of the fund. All other revenues are reported as non-operating
revenues. Operating expenses are those expenses that are essential to the primary
operations of the fund. All other expenses are reported as non-operating expenses.

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or as
an agent for individuals, private organizations, other government units, and/or other funds.
The City collects assessments and pays property enhancement and rehabilitation costs
and debt service for various assessment districts within the City.

Maijor Funds

GASB Statement No. 34 defines major funds and requires that the City’'s major
governmental and proprietary funds are identified and presented separately in the fund
financial statements. All other funds, called nonmajor funds, are combined and reported
in a single column, regardless of their fund-type.

46



CITY OF TRACY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

D.

Maijor Funds (Continued)

Major funds are defined as funds that have either assets, liabilities, revenues, or
expenditures/expenses equal to or greater than ten percent of their fund-type total and
five percentof all fund-type totals. The General Fund is always a major fund. The City
may also select other funds it believes should be presented as major funds.

The City reported the following major governmental funds in the accompanying financial
statements:

General - This fund accounts for all financial resources except those to be accounted for
in another fund. It is the general operating fund of the City.

Community Development Agency Housing Special Revenue Fund - This fund was
established by the California Health and Safety Code and is to account for the portion of
property tax increment required to be set aside for low and moderate housing.

Community Development Agency Debt Service Fund - this fund accounts for
accumulated City and County tax increment funds received for redevelopment purposes to
repay outstanding debt.

North East Industrial Plan Area # 1 and # 2 Capital Projects — These funds were
established to account for projects to support development in a specific area of the City
financed by assessments and/or development impact fees.

The City reported all its enterprise funds as major funds in the accompanying financial
statements:

Water Utility — This fund accounts for the activities of the City’s water supply system.

Sewer Utility — This fund accounts for the activities of the City’s surface drainage, sewage
collection, and treatment system.

Municipal Airport — This fund accounts for the activities associated with the operations
and maintenance of the City’s airport.

Solid Waste —This fund accounts for the City’s refuse collection activities.
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NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

D.

Major Funds (Continued)

The City reported the following major governmental funds in the accompanying financial
statements: (Continued)

Municipal Transit — This fund accounts for the activities associated with the operations
and maintenance of the City’s public transit activities and has particular emphasis on
serving the elderly and the handicapped.

Drainage - This fund accounts for the City’s storm drainage activities.

Basis of Accounting

The government-wide, and proprietary funds financial statements are reported using the
economic resources measurement focus and along with fiduciary funds using the full
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take

place.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1,
1989, generally are followed in both government-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the option of
following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and
enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The government has elected not to follow
subsequent private-sector guidance.

Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are
recoghized when measurable and available. The City considers all revenues reported in
the governmental funds to be available if the revenues are collected within sixty days after
fiscal year-end. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred,
except for principal and interest on long-term debt, claims and judgments, and
compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent that they
have matured. Capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental
funds. Proceeds of long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as
other financing sources.

Internal service funds are used to account for charges to various funds and/or
departments for costs such as insurance, maintenance, and equipment acquisition.

Fiduciary Funds — Agency funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a
trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governmental
units, and/or other funds. Agency funds are purely custodial in nature (assets equal
liabilities) and, thus, do not involve measurement of results of operations.
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NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

E.

Basis of Accounting (Continued)

Non-exchange transactions, in which the City gives or receives value without directly
receiving or giving equal value in exchange, include property taxes, grants, entitlements,
and donations. On an accrual basis, revenues from property taxes are recognized in the
fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenues from grants, entitlements, and
donations are recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been
satisfied.

Other revenues susceptible to accrual include other taxes, intergovernmental revenues,
interest, and charges for services.

Utility service accounts receivable are reported net of allowance for doubtful collections
and include unbilled receivables using actual amounts billed in July for June services.

Grant revenues are recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements are
met. Under the terms of grant agreements, the City may fund certain programs with a
combination of cost-reimbursement grants, categorical block grants, and general
revenues. Thus, both restricted and unrestricted net assets may be available to finance
program expenditures/expenses. The City’s policy is to first apply restricted grant
resources to such programs, followed by general revenues if necessary.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity, except for interfund services provided
and used, has been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements.

Property Taxes

Property taxes in the State of California are administered for all local agencies at the
county level, and consist of secured, unsecured, and utility tax rolls. The following is a
summary of major policies and practices relating to property taxes:

Property Valuations — are established by the Assessor of the County of San Joaquin for
the secured and unsecured property tax rolls; the utility property tax rolls are valued by the
State Board of Equalization. Under the provisions of Article XIlIA of the State Constitution
(Proposition 13 adopted by the voters on June 6, 1978) properties are assessed at 100%
of full value. From this base of assessment, subsequent annual increases in valuation are
limited to a maximum of 2%. However, increases to full value are allowed for property
improvements or upon change in ownership. Personal property is excluded from these
limitations, and is subject to annual reappraisal.

Tax Levies — are limited to 1% of full value which results in a tax rate of $1.00 per $100
assessed valuation, under the provisions of Proposition 13. Tax rates for voter-approved
indebtedness are excluded from this limitation.

49



CITY OF TRACY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

F.

Property Taxes (Continued)

Tax Levy Dates — are attached annually on January 1 preceding the fiscal year for which
the taxes are levied. The fiscal year begins July 1 and ends June 30 of the following year.
Taxes are levied on both real and unsecured personal property as it exists at that time.
Liens against real estate, as well as the tax on personal property, are not relieved by
subsequent renewal or change in ownership.

Tax Collections — are the responsibility of the county tax collector. Taxes and
assessments on secured and utility rolls which constitute a lien against the property, may
be paid in two installments: The first is due on November 1 of the fiscal year and is
delinquent if not paid by December 10; and the second is due on March 1 of the fiscal
year and is delinquent if not paid by April 10. Unsecured personal property taxes do not
constitute a lien against real property unless the taxes become delinquent. Payment must
be made in one installment, which is delinquent if not paid by August 31 of the fiscal year.
Significant penalties are imposed by the county for late payments.

The County of San Joaquin levies, bills, and collects property taxes and special
assessments for the City. Property taxes levied are recorded as revenue when received,
in the fiscal year of levy, due to the adoption of the “alternate method of property tax
distribution”, known as the Teeter Plan, by the City and the County of San Joaquin. The
Teeter Plan authorizes the Auditor/Controller of the County of San Joaquin to allocate 100
percent of the secured property taxes billed, but not yet paid. The County of San Joaquin
remits tax monies to the City in three installments as follows:

50 percent remitted in December
45 percent remitted in April
5 percent remitted in June

Tax Levy Apportionments — Due to the nature of the City-wide maximum levy, it is not
possible to identify general purpose tax rates for specific entities. Under state legislation
adopted subsequent to the passage of Proposition 13, apportionments to local agencies
are made by the county auditor-controller based primarily on the ratio that each agency
represented of the total City-wide levy for the three years prior to fiscal year 1979.

Property Tax Administration Fees — The State of California FY 1990-91 Budget Act
authorized counties to collect an administrative fee for collection and distribution of
property taxes. Property taxes are recorded as net of administrative fees withheld during
the fiscal year. '

Capital Assets

All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical
cost is not available. Contributed capital assets are valued at their estimated fair value on
the date contributed. The City's policy is to capitalize all capital assets with costs
exceeding $1,000 (infrastructure is $50,000).
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

G.

Capital Assets (Continued)

The purpose of depreciation is to spread the cost of capital assets equitably among all
users over the life of these assets. The amount charged to depreciation expense each
fiscal year represents that year's pro rata share of the cost of capital assets. GASB
Statement No. 34 requires that all capital assets with limited useful lives be depreciated
over their estimated useful lives. Alternatively, the “modified approach” may be used for
infrastructure (streets and roads) capital assets. Depreciation is not provided under this
approach, but all expenditures on these assets are expensed, unless they are additions or
improvements.

Except for streets and roads covered by the modified approach, depreciation has been
provided on capital assets. Depreciation of all capital assets is charged as an expense
against operations each fiscal year until the asset is fully depreciated. Depreciation is
calculated using the straight line method which depreciates evenly over the assets’ useful
life The City has assigned the useful lives listed below to capital assets.

Buildings 10-30 years
Improvements 5-50 years
Equipment 2-20 years
Grading, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, driveway approaches 40 years
Traffic signals 20 years
Street drainage 40 years
Other 5-40 years

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are
constructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase is reflected in the capitalized
value of the assets constructed, net of interest earned on the invested proceeds over the
same period.

Compensated Absences

Compensated absences are accrued as earned by employees, and consist only of
vacation leave. The City measures vacation accrual annually; however, vacation
payments are not distinguished from regular payroll paid during the year, nor are accruals
made other than annually. The City's liability for compensated absences is recorded in
various governmental funds or proprietary funds as appropriate. For all governmental
funds, amounts expected to be paid out of current financial resources are recorded as
fund liabilities; as these liabilities represent the matured value due to retirement or
resignations; the long-term portion is recorded in the Statement of Net Assets.

Compensated absences are liquidated by the fund that has recorded the liability only

when matured. The long-term portion of governmental activities compensated absences
is liquidated primarily by the General Fund.
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NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

L

Postemployment Benefits

Employees who retire with at least ten years of service may elect to convert all accrued
sick leave at the time of retirement to a medical insurance bank. Miscellaneous
employees except members of the Teamsters Bargaining Unit can bank their unused sick
leave upon retirement. Members of the Teamsters can also bank their unused sick leave
only if they have at least ten (10) years of employment with the City. Safety employees:
Police employees can bank their unused sick leave if they have at least ten (10) years of
employment. Fire employees have two (2) choices: (1) bank their unused sick leave or (2)
be paid in cash for all unused sick leave hours in excess of 1,440 hours. If they chose to
bank their unused sick leave, they can bank all of it but they will be taxed (Federal, State
and the 1.45% Medicare) for all hours in excess of 1,440. Fire employees also need at
least ten (10) years of employment to receive this benefit. The value of the medical
insurance bank is determined by multiplying the number of accrued sick leave hours by
the employees’ hourly rate of pay. The retired employee and his/her dependents are
entitled to continued group health insurance coverage currently in effect with premiums for
such coverage being deducted from the medical leave bank until that bank is exhausted.
The cost of retiree health care benefits is recognized as an expenditure as health care
premiums are paid. For the fiscal year ending June 30, 2008, those costs for 36 retirees
totaled $284,985, and the total liability amount in the medical leave bank is $1,636,531.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America, as prescribed by the GASB and American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA), requires management to make
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses/expenditures during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments

. Cash Management

The City pools cash resources of its various funds to facilitate cash management. Cashin
excess of current requirements is invested and reported as investments. It is the City’s
intent to hold investments until maturity. However, the City may, in response to market
conditions, sell investments prior to maturity in order to improve the quality, liquidity or
yield of the portfolio. Interest earnings are apportioned among funds based on ending
accounting period cash and investment balances.

Investments Valuation

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Certain Investment and for External Investment Pools, highly liquid market investments
with maturities of one year or less at time of purchase are stated at amortized cost. All
other investments are stated at fair value. Market value is used as fair value for those
securities for which market quotations are readily available.
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NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.

State Investment Pool

The City participates in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) , an investment pool
managed by the State of California. LAIF has invested a portion of the pool funds in
Structured Notes and Asset-Backed Securities. LAIF’s investments are subject to credit
risk with the full faith and credit of the State of California collateralizing these investments.
In addition, these Structured Notes and Asset-Backed Securities are subject to market
risk as a result of changes in interest rates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the City considers all highly liquid
investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash
equivalents. All cash investments of the proprietary fund types are pooled with the City’s
pooled cash and investments.

NOTE 2 — STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A.

Budgetary Information

Annual budgets are adopted for all governmental fund types except capital projects funds
on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. The City’s budget ordinance requires that in June of each fiscal year the City
Manager submit a preliminary budget that includes projected expenditures and the means
of financing them, to the City Council for the fiscal year commencing the following July 1.
As modified during public study sessions, the preliminary budget becomes the proposed
budget. Following public hearings on the proposed budget, the final annual budget is
adopted by the City Council. After adoption of the final budget, transfers of appropriations
within a general fund department, or within other funds, can be made by the City
Manager. Budget modifications between funds; increases or decreases to a fund's overall
budget; transfers between general fund departments; or transfers that affect capital
projects, must be approved by the City Council. Numerous properly authorized
amendments are made during the fiscal year.

The City does not adopt budgets for the Economic Uncertainty, Residential and
Commercial Rehabilitation loan, and Traffic Congestion Relief Special Revenue Funds,
and all Capital Project funds (including the North East Industrial Plan Areas # 1 and # 2
Major funds).

Budgetary control is enhanced by integrating the budget into the general ledger accounts.
Encumbrance accounting (e.g., purchase orders) is employed by the City.

Deficit Fund Balances

Major Funds

A deficit fund balance of $205,072 exists in the North East Industrial Plan Area # 1 Fund.
The deficit is due to the expenditures for Capital outlay prior to receiving the special
assessments.

53



CITY OF TRACY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

NOTE 2 — STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued)

B. Deficit Fund Balances (Continued)

Nonmajor Funds

A deficit fund balance of $13,090 exists in the Business Improvement District Fund. The
deficit is due to the City incurring costs in advance of receiving revenues.

A deficit fund balance of $88,912 exists in the Community Access CTV Fund. The deficit
is due to the City incurring costs in excess of revenues.

C. Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations

Major Governmental Fund:

Community Development Agency Debt Service $ 1,162,343
Nonmajor Governmental Funds:

South County Fire Authority 126,722

Parks COP 1,949,599

2007 Lease Revenue Fund 205,399

NOTE 3 — CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2008 are classified in the accompanying financial
statements as follows:

Statement of net assets:

Restricted Cash and Investments $ 729,858
Cash and investments 213,050,599
Cash and investments with Fiscal Agents 17,085,413
Fiduciary funds:

Cash and investments 12,256,067
Cash and investments with Fiscal Agents 17,482,389
Cash and investments, restricted 6,264

Total cash and investments $ 260,610,590

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2008 consist of the following:

Cash on hand $ 3,460
Deposits with financial institutions 42, 898,445
Investments 217,708,685

Total cash and investments $ 260,610,590
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NOTE 3 — CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

A

B.

Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the City’s Investment
Policy

The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the City of Tracy
(City) by the California Government Code (or the City's investment policy, where more
restrictive). The table also identifies certain provisions of the California Government Code
(or the City’s investment policy, where more restrictive) that address interest rate risk,
credit risk, and concentration of credit risk. This table does not address investments of
debt proceeds held by bond trustees that are governed by the provisions of debt
agreements of the City, rather than the general provisions of the California government
Code or the City’s investment policy.

Maximum Maximum
Maximum Percentage Investment

Authorized Investment Type Maturity _of Portfolio  in One Issuer

Local Agency Investment Fund (State Pool) N/A None $40 million
California Asset Management Plan N/A None 10%
Safekeeping Services Sweep Accounts N/A None 10%
U.S. Treasury Obligations 5 years None None
Insured Deposits with Banks and Savings

and Loans N/A None 10%
Repurchase Agreements 1 year None 10%
Purchase Agreements 92 days 20% of 10%

base value

Certificates of Deposit 5 years 30% 10%
Bankers Acceptances (must be dollar

denominated) 6 months 30% 10%
Commercial Paper 9 months 25% 5%
Negotiable Time Certificates of Deposit 18 months 30% 10%
Medium Term Corporate Notes 5 years 30% 10%
Mutual Funds (must be comprised of eligible

securities permitted under this policy) N/A 15% 10%

Money Market Funds (must be comprised
of eligible securities permitted under this
policy) N/A None 10%

Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements

Investment of debt proceeds held by bond trustees are governed by provisions of the debt
agreements, rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the
City's investment policy. The table below identifies the Investment types that are
authorized for investments held by bond trustee.  The table also identifies certain
provisions of these debt agreements that address and concentration of credit risk.
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B.

Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements (Continued)

Maximum Maximum
Maximum Percentage Investment
Authorized Investment Type Maturity of Portfolio in One Issuer
U.S. Treasury Obligations None None None
U.S. Agency Securities None None None
Banker's Acceptances 180 days None None
Commercial Paper 270 days None None
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A None None
Investment Contracts 30 years None None
Local Agency Investment Fund (State Pool) None None None

Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the
fair value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the
greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. One of the ways
that the City manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasing a combination of
shorter term and longer term investments and by timing cash flows from maturities so that
a portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity evenly over time as
necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for operations.

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the City’s investments (including
investments held by bond trustee) to market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the
following table that shows the distribution of the City’s investments by maturity:

Remaining maturity (in Months)

12 Months 13 to 36 37to 60 Over 60
Investment Type Totals or Less Months Months Months
U.S. Treasury Notes $ 18882411 § 1013750 §$ 9911348 § 7957313 §
Money Market Funds 559,443 559,443
Federal Agency Securities 113,446,776 47,301,415 53,294,728 12,850,633
Municipal Bonds 998,280 998,280
Corporate Medium
Term Notes 29,131,070 10,121,631 12,979,583 6,029,856
Commercial Paper 2,150,000 2,150,000
Negotiable Time Deposits 386,758 386,758
State Investment Pool 17,586,144 17,586,144
Held by Bond Trustees:
Money Market Funds 23,782,654 23,782,654
Investment Contracts 10,785,149 3,083,947 1,163,467 6,537,735

$ 217,708,685 §$ 105985742 $ 77,183939 § 28,001,269 _$ 6,537,735
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NOTE 3 — CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

D.

Investments with Fair Values Highly Sensitive to Interest Rate Fluctuations

The City has no investments (including investments held by bond trustees) that are highly
sensitive to interest rate fluctuations (to a greater degree than already indicated in the
information provided above).

Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation
to the holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a
nationally recognized statistical rating organization. Presented below is the minimum
rating required by (where applicable) the California Government Code, the City’s
investment policy, or debt agreements, and the actual rating as of fiscal year end for each
investment type.

Rating as of Fiscal Year End

Minimum Exempt

Legal From Not

Investment Type Amount Rating  Disclosure AAA AA A Rated
U.S. Treasury Notes $ 18,882,411 N/A $ 18,882,411 $ - $ - $ - 3 -
Money Market Funds 559,443 N/A 559,443
Federal Agency Securities 113,446,776 N/A 113,446,776
Municipal Bonds 998,280 N/A 998,280
Corporate Medium

Term Notes 29,131,070 N/A 2,757,978 17,456,881 8,916,211
Commercial Paper 2,150,000 N/A 2,150,000
Negotiable Time Deposits 386,758 N/A 386,758
State Investment Pool 17,586,144 N/A 17,586,144
Held by Bond Trustees:

Money Market Funds 23,782,654 N/A 23,782,654

investment Contracts 10,785,149 N/A 10,785,148

Total $ 217,708,685 $ 18,882,411 §$ 140,546,851 $ 17,456,881 _§ 12,064,491 $ 28,758,051
F. Concentration of Credit Risk

The investment policy of the City contains limitations on the amount that can be invested
in any one issuer. Investments in any one issuer (other than U.S. Treasury securities,
mutual funds, and external investment pools) that represent 5% or more of total City
investments are as follows:

Investment Reported

Issuer Type Amount
FHLMC Federal agency securities $ 21,396,865
FNMA Federal agency securities 27,472,948
Federal Home Loan Bank Federal agency securities 47,097,296
Federal Farm Credit Bank Federal agency securities 14,728,043
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F.

Concentration of Credit Risk (Continued)

Investments in any one issuer that represent 5% or more of total investments by reporting
unit (primary government, governmental activities, business type activities, fiduciary funds,
major funds, nonmajor funds in the aggregate, etc.) are as follows:

$2,743,219 of cash and investments (including amounts held by bond trustees) reported
in the Community Development Agency Debt Service Fund (a major fund of the City) are
held in the form of nonnegotiable unrated investment contracts issued by AlG Investment
Company. These mature March 1, 2034.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository
financial institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able
to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The
custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the. failure of the
counterparty (e.g. broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover
the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another
party. The California Government Code and the City’s investment policy do not contain
legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for
deposits or investments, other than the following provision for deposits; The California
Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or
local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a
depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the government unit). The fair
value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total
amount deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows financial institutions
to secure City deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of
150% of the secured public deposits.

As of June 30, 2008, $43,978,014 of the City’s deposits with financial institutions in
excess of federal depository insurance limits were held in collateralized accounts. As of
June 30, 2008, City investments in the following investment types were held by the same
broker-dealer (counterparty) that was used by the City to buy the securities:

Reported
Investment Type Amount
U.S. Treasury Notes $ 18,882,411
Federal Agency Securities 113,446,776
Corporate Medium Term Notes 29,131,070
Commercial Paper 2,150,000
Investment Contracts 10,785,149
Money Market Funds 11,344,592
Municipal Bonds 998,280
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NOTE 3 — CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

H.

Investment in State Investment Pool

The City is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is
regulated by the California Government Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the
State of California. The fair value of the City’s investment in this pool is reported in the
accompanying financial statements at amounts based upon the City’s pro-rata share of
the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized
cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting
records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis.

NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE

A.

Residential and Commercial Rehabilitation Loans

The City administers a residential and commercial rehabilitation program using Housing
and Urban Development funds. Federal funds received by the City are deposited with a
commercial bank. Upon approval of the loans, the funds are disbursed and collected by
an outside collection agency. The programs are designed to encourage construction or
improvement in low-to-moderate income housing or other projects. Under these programs
loans are provided under favorable terms to homeowners or developers who agree to
spend these funds in accordance with the City's terms. The balance of the loans
receivable arising from these programs was $258,798 at June 30, 2008.

Community Development Agency Loans

In 1994, the Agency loaned $609,000 in Low and Moderate Income Housing funds to
Mountain View Townhomes Association, a partnership of non-profit corporations, to assist
in the construction of thirty-seven residential rental units, thirty-six of which are available
to low income families. The loan is secured by a second deed of trust, is payable over
twenty-three years beginning in 2026 and accrues interest at 3%. As of June 30, 2008,
principal and accrued interest totaled $809,970.

In 1996, the Agency agreed to loan Eden Housing Inc., up to $2,208,691 to assist in the
development and construction of seventy-two low income housing units. The loan is
payable over ten years beginning forty years after the project is complete, and accrues
interest at 1% per year. As of June 30, 2008, principal and accrued interest totaled
$2,311,180.

In 2000, the Agency agreed to loan Habitat for Humanity up to $100,000 to
construct/reconstruct from five to seven properties to ownership housing for very low-
income families. The funds are to be used to pay all City fees necessary to develop and
build affordable housing under the sponsorship of Habitat for Humanity. To date, Habitat
for Humanity has expended $40,093 of the loan proceeds. The loan is secured by a deed
of trust on the property and may be forgiven if the property remains occupied by a low-
income family for a period of ten years. Unexpended loan funds are kept in a City of
Tracy account available for use by Habitat for Humanity as needed. The balance of the
outstanding loan as of June 30, 2008 is $40,093.
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NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

B.

Community Development Agency Loans (Continued)

The City loaned 10 individuals $750,000 from the Low and Moderate Income Housing
Fund of the Redevelopment Agency. The loans have been authorized for each of the
recipients as part of the housing downpayment assistance program. The Redevelopment
Agency is the beneficiary of the promissory notes issued, recorded, and secured by real
property. The loans are due when the underlying property is sold.

The City, through the Low and Moderate Income Housing Fund of the Redevelopment
Agency has entered into a loan agreement (a below market deferred loan) with City
Development, Inc for an amount not to exceed $4,404,512 to be used as a gap financing
instrument for the development of a 50 unit affordable senior housing complex. The loan
is a 1%, 40 year loan. As of June 30, 2008, the developer has drawn $1,841,764 off the
loan.

In November 2007, the Community Development Agency of the City of Tracy (Agency)
entered into an Owner Participation and Loan Agreement with DHI Tracy Garden
Associates, LP (DHI). DHI will develop and rehabilitate an 88 unit Senior Housing
Complex for low income senior households. The maximum amount of loan from the
Agency will be $1,975,000. Simple interest shall accrue annually at 3%. Upon default the
rate will increase to the lesser of 10% or the maximum allowed by law. The loan is
secured by a trust deed on the underlying property. This trust deed is subordinated to all
other loans. Maturity of the loan is November 1, 2064. Payment on the loan is deferred
until maturity unless the property is conveyed (other than that approved by the Agency) or
there is a default. Total amount disbursed as of June 30, 2008 is $1,016,356 which
includes accrued interest of $16,356.

Conditional Grants

The City has several programs under which it extends loans to qualifying individuals or
groups for the purpose of improving the City’s housing stock and/or its supply of low-and-
moderate income housing. Certain of these loans provide for the eventual forgiveness of
the loan balance if the borrower complies with all the terms of the loan over its full term.
The City accounts for these loans as conditional grants in the government-wide financial
statements, and provides a reserve against their eventual forgiveness using the straight-
line method over the life of the respective loan. Total amount of allowance at June 30,
2008 was $1,003,593.

Development Loan

In September 2006, the City loaned a property owner $40,000 to assist in the demolition
of a structure in order for the property owner to construct new housing units on the site.
The loan is due and payable when the properties are sold.
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NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

E. Employee Computer Loans

All full-time permanent City employees who have completed their probationary period are
eligible to obtain an interest free loan to purchase a computer. All requests for loans are
subject to review by the participating employee’s department manager and must be
approved by the City Manager. Repayment of these loans is handled through payroll
deductions which are spread out equally until paid in full. Employees must pay off any
outstanding balance of their loans upon ending employment with the City. As of June 30,
2008, employees had $129,099 in loans due to the City.

F. Housing Loan (Related Party)

The City of Tracy loaned $595,000 to its previous City Manager (Related Party). The
proceeds from the loan were to assist in the purchase of a home within the City. The loan
is a 30 year fully amortized loan with monthly payments of $2,354 including principal and
interest at the average of the prevailing LAIF rate (3.11% as of June 30, 2008). The
balance of the loan as of June 30, 2008 is $552,729. The City Manager has separated
employment and has two years in which to satisfy this loan.

NOTE 5 — CAPITAL ASSETS

A. Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, was as follows:

Balance at Balance at
July 1, 2007 Additions Deletions Transfers June 30, 2008
Governmental Activities
Nondepreciable Capital Assets:
Land $ 124,155341 $ 29,647,445 $ - $ (446,625) $ 153,356,161
Roads accounted for using the
modified approach 196,920,877 2,484,684 199,405,561
Construction in progress 18,387,391 10,302,652 (17,874,525) 10,815,518
Total Nondepreciable Capital
Assets 339,463,609 42,434,781 (18,321,150) 363,577,240
Depreciable Capital Assets:
Buildings and improvements 95,332,765 4,286,338 18,237,734 117,856,837
Grading, curb & gutter, sidewalk,
and driveway approaches 25,366,507 1,093,447 26,459,954
Traffic signals 14,237,984 (34,158) 14,203,826
Equipment 20,880,719 6,526,300 (289,802) 27,117,217
Infrastructure 4,955,935 4,955 935
Intangibles 520,833 66,878 83,416 671,127
Total Depreciable Capital Assets 161,294,743 11,972,963 (323,960) 18,321,150 191,264,896
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NOTE 5 — CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

A. Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, was as follows:

(Continued)

Governmental Activities
(Continued)

Accumulated Depreciation:
Buildings and improvements
Grading, curbs & gutters, sidewalks
and driveway approaches

Traffic signals

Equipment

Intangibles

Infrastructure
Total Accumulated Depreciation
Net Depreciable Capital Assets
Net Governmental Capital Assets

Business-type Activities
Water Utility
Nondepreciable Capital Assets:
Land
Construction in progress

Total Nondepreciable
Capital Assets
Depreciable Capital Assets:

Intangibles
Infrastructure
Buildings
Improvements
Equipment

Total Depreciable Capital Assets

Accumulated Depreciation:
Infrastructure
Buildings
Improvements
Equipment
Intangibles

Total Accumulated Depreciation
Net Depreciable Capital Assets
Net Water Utility Capital Assets

Balance at Balance at
July 1, 2007 Additions Deletions Transfers June 30, 2008
$ (19,415813) $ (4,455457) $ - $ 5,834 $ (23,865,436)
(6,444,936) (650,061) (7,094,997)
(6,069,377) (672,886) (6,742,263)
(14,173,971) (2,414,419) 259,094 (5,834) (16,335,130)
(19,238) (30,597) (49,835)
(1,074,702) (1,315,162) (2,389,864)
(47,198,037) (9,5638,582) 259,094 (56,477,525)
114,096,706 2,434,381 (64,866) 116,466,221
$ 453,560,315 $ 44,869,162 § (64,866) _$ - $ 498,364,611
$ 29,015 §$ - $ - $ - $ 29,015
49,160,283 4,357,859 (49,029,948) 4,488,194
49,189,298 4,357,859 (49,029,948) 4,517,209
60,059,165 3,447,557 63,506,722
16,829,156 1,172,326 1,184,881 19,186,363
21,918,816 28,991,585 50,910,401
99,185,169 5,673 6,684,356 105,875,198
4,806,869 431,046 (16,878) 8,766,146 13,987,183
202,799,175 1,609,045 (16,878) 49,074,525 253,465,867
(1,235,981) (830,329) 464,529 (1,601,781)
(17,548,475) (1,284,029) (2,160) (18,834,664)
(38,968,842) (3,345,576) (441,210) (42,755,628)
(4,127,229) (610,178) 16,878 (3,710) (4,724,239)
(3,383,683) (1,503,956) (4,887,639)
(65,264,210) (7,574,068) 16,878 17,449 (72,803,951)
137,534,965 (5,965,023) 49,091,974 180,661,916
$ 186,724,263 $ (1,607,164) $ - $ 62,026 $ 185,179,125
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A. Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, was as follows: (Continued)

Business-type Activities (Continued)
Municipal Transit
Nondepreciable Capital Assets:
Land
Construction in progress
Total Nondepreciable
Capital Assets
Depreciable Capital Assets:
Buildings
Equipment
Improvements
Total Depreciable Capital Assets

Accumulated depreciation:
Buildings
Equipment
Improvements
Total Accumulated Depreciation

Net Depreciable Capital Assets
Net Transit Capital Assets

Sewer Utility
Nondepreciable Capital Assets:
Land
Construction in progress

Total Nondepreciable
Capital Assets

Depreciable Capital Assets:
Infrastructure
Buildings
Improvements
Equipment

Total Depreciable Capital Assets

Accumulated Depreciation:
Infrastructure
Buildings
improvements
Equipment
Total Accumulated Depreciation

Net Depreciable Capital Assets
Net Sewer Utility Capital Assets

Balance at Balance at
July 1, 2007 Additions Deletions Transfers June 30, 2008
$ 1,350,183 $ - 8 - 8 - $ 1,350,183
1,635,713 1,174,537 (55,352) 2,654,898
2,885,896 1,174,537 (55,352) 4,005,081
1,549,367 1,549,367
1,989,927 307,182 (166,670) 2,130,439
122,723 189,855 55,352 367,930
3,662,017 497,037 (166,670) 55,352 4,047,736
(403,977) (77,469) (481,446)
(1,113,951) (196,029) 166,670 (1,143,310)
(7,509) (4,867) (12,376)
(1,5625,437) (278,365) 166,670 (1,637,132)
2,136,580 218,672 2,410,604
$ 5022476 $ 1,393,209 § - $ - $ 6,415,685
$ 932,681 $ - 9 - $ - $ 932,681
78,057,502 5,182,370 (80,971,060) 2,268,812
78,990,183 5,182,370 (80,971,060) 3,201,493
17,292,691 894,848 380,805 18,568,344
49,868,099 12,211 44,958,400 94,838,710
68,131,706 8,793,679 76,925,385
2,712,074 80,058 (79,872) 26,793,599 29,505,859
138,004,570 987,117 (79,872) 80,926,483 219,838,298
(1,368,806) (659,502) 145,382 (1,882,926)
(31,167,673) (1,727,744) (25,429) (32,920,846)
(27,623,805) (1,850,588) (151,343) (29,625,736)
(2,056,763) (776,419) 55,125 (2,778,057)
(62,217,047) (5,014,253) 55,125 (31,390) (67,207,565)
75,787,523 (4,027,136) (24,747) 80,895,093 152,630,733

$ 154,777,706 $ 1,155234 § (24,747)

$

(75,967) $ 155,832,226
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NOTE 5 — CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

A. Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, was as follows: (Continued)

Balance at Balance at
July 1, 2007 Additions Deletions Transfers June 30, 2008
Business-type Activities (Continued)
Municipal Airport
Nondepreciable Capital Assets:
Land $ 15826 $ - $ - $ - $ 15,826
Construction in progress 115,948 604,672 (720,620)
Total Nondepreciable Capital
Assets 131,774 604,672 (720,620) 15,826
Depreciable Capital Assets:
Buildings 970,510 24,184 (194,473) (444,141) 356,080
Improvements 4,536,210 235,531 1,097,799 5,869,540
Equipment 28,704 44,825 73,529
Intangibles 169,589 32,977 202,566
Total Depreciable Capital Assets 5,705,013 259,715 (194,473) 731,460 6,501,715
Accumulated Depreciation:
Buildings (328,096) (16,915) 124,361 (220,650)
Improvements (2,970,837) (271,442) (3,242,279)
Equipment (28,704) (8,965) (37.669)
Intangibles (101,800) (27,800) (10,840) (140,440)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (3,429,437) (325,122) 124,361 (10,840) (3,641,038)
Net Depreciable Capital Assets 2,275,576 (65,407) (70,112) 720,620 2,860,677
Net Airport Capital Assets $ 2,407,350 § 539,265 $ (70,112) § - $ 2,876,503
Solid Waste
Depreciable Capital Assets:
Equipment $ 42871 § - $ - $ - $ 42,871
Accumulated Depreciation:
Equipment (32,160) (7,247) (39,407)
Net Solid Waste Capital Assets $ 10,711 $ (7,247) $ - $ - $ 3,464
Drainage
Nondepreciable Capital Assets:
Land $ 4318335 § - $ - $ - $ 4,318,335
Construction in progress 142,943 8,746 (108,242) 43,447
Total Nondepreciable Capital Assets 4,461,278 8,746 (108,242) 4,361,782
Depreciable Capital Assets:
Improvements 31,507,845 5,400 31,513,245
Infrastructure 47,427,163 1,828,855 49,256,018
Equipment 19,624 19,624
Total Depreciable Capital Assets 78,954,632 1,834,255 80,788,887
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NOTE 5 — CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

A. Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, was as follows: (Continued)

Net Business-type Capital Assets

Balance at Balance at
July 1, 2007 Additions Deletions Transfers June 30, 2008
Business-type Activities (Continued)
Drainage (Continued)
Accumulated Depreciation:
Improvements $ (8,154,327) $ (1,490,036) - $ (56,416) $  (9,700,779)
Infrastructure (13,138,466) (1,218,495) 70,357 (14,286,604)
Equipment (11,774) (1,962) (13,736)
Total Accumulated Depeciation (21,304,567) (2,710,493) 13,941 (24,001,119)
Net Depreciable Capital Assets 57,650,065 (876,238) 13,941 56,787,768
Net Drainage Capital Assets $ 62,111,343 $ (867,492) § (108,242) § 13,941 §$ 61,149,550
Total Business-type Activities
Nondepreciable Capital Assets:
Land $ 6,646,040 $ - $ - $ - $ 6,646,040
Construction in progress 129,012,389 11,328,184 (108,242)  (130,776,980) 9,455,351
Total Nondepreciable Capital
Assets 135,658,429 11,328,184 (108,242)  (130,776,980) 16,101,391
Depreciable Capital Assets:
Infrastructure 81,549,010 3,896,029 1,565,686 87,010,725
Buildings 74,306,792 36,395 (194,473) 73,505,844 147,654,558
Improvements 203,483,653 436,459 16,631,186 220,551,298
Equipment 9,600,069 818,286 (263,420) 35,604,570 45,759,505
Intangibles 60,228,754 3,480,534 63,709,288
Total Depreciable Capital Assets 429,168,278 5,187,169 (457,893) 130,787,820 564,685,374
Accumulated Depreciation:
Infrastructure (15,743,253) (2,708,326) 692,042 (17,759,537)
Buildings (49,448,221) (3,106,157) 124,361 (27,589) (52,457,606)
improvements (77,725,320) (6,962,509) (648,969) (85,336,798)
Equipment (7,370,581) (1,600,800) 238,673 (15,484) (8,748,192)
Intangibles (3,485,483) (1,531,756) (10,840) (5,028,079)
Total Accumulated Depeciation (153,772,858) (15,909,548) 363,034 (10,840) (169,330,212)
Net Depreciable Capital Assets 275,395,420 (10,722,379) (94,859) 130,776,980 395,355,162

$ 411,053,849

$ 605,805 $ (203,101) $ -

$ 411,456,553

65



CITY OF TRACY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008
NOTE 5 — CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

B. Depreciation Allocations

Depreciation expense was charged to functions and programs based on their usage of the
related assets. The amounts allocated to each function or program were as follows:

Governmental Activities:

City administration - nondepartmental 3 232,255
Police 564,863
Fire 46,156
Development and engineering 1,021,388
Public works 5,657,827
Parks and recreation 1,196,083
Unallocated 820,010

Total Depreciation Expense-Governmental Activities $ 9,538,582

Business-type Activities:

Water utility 7,574,068
Sewer utility ' 5,014,253
Municipal airport 325,122
Solid waste 7,247
Municipal transit 278,365
Drainage 2,710,493

Total Depreciation Expense-Business-type Activities $ 15,909,548

C. Roads Covered by the Modified Approach

The City has elected to use the modified approach discussed above with respect to its
roads, most of which are relatively new. The City’s policy is to maintain these roads at an
overall condition index level averaging 65%, instead of providing depreciation. During the
fiscal year 2008, the City expended $19,466,614 to preserve its roads. The City estimates
that it will be required to expend approximately $1,667,146 in the fiscal year 2009 to
maintain its roads at this condition level.

NOTE 6 — INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS

A. Current Interfund Balances

Current interfund balances arise in the normal course of business (i.e. one fund loaning
funds to pay for current expenditures) and are expected to be repaid shortly after the end
of the fiscal year. The following is a summary of interfund balances as of June 30, 2008.
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A.

Current Interfund Balances (Continued)

Receivable Fund Amount Payable Fund Amount
Maijor Enterprise: Maijor Enterprise
Sewer Utility $ 180,835 Water Utility $ 180,835
Nonmajor Governmental: Nonmajor Governmental
General Projects $ 146,300 Community Access CTV $ 33,000
State Gas Tax Street 3,373 South County Fire 1,216,000
TEA 90,700
Major Governmental: Traffic Congestion Relief 3,373
General 1,895,100 Tracy Gateway 55,600
Downtown business 5,700
Major Enterprise:
Municipal Transit 483,900
Municipal Airport 156,500
Totals $ 2,044,773 $ 2,044,773

Long-term Interfund Advances

At June 30, 2008, the funds below had made advances which were not expected to be

repaid within the next fiscal year.

Fund Receiving Advance

Major Proprietary Fund:
Municipal Airport Fund

Major Governmental Fund:
North East Industrial
Plan Area Fund

Nonmajor Governmental Fund:
Community Access CTV Fund

Fund Making Advance Amount
Major Proprietary Fund:
Water Utility Fund $ 1,081,535
Major Governmental Fund:
General Fund 244,057

1,325,592

Major Proprietary Fund:

Water Utility Fund 11,780,657

Nonmajor Governmental Fund:

General Projects Fund 82,300

$ 13,188,549

Northeast Industrial Plan Area advance is being repaid over five years, early repayment
of principal is permitted, with an interest rate equal to funds invested in Local Agency
Investment Fund (LAIF). The funds were used for projects within the project area.

Municipal Airport advance will be repaid in annual installments of $20,000 or upon the
sale and approved transfer of sales proceeds from the disposition/sale of New Jerusalem
Airport, whichever occurs first. The land of the airport serves as security for the advance,
which carries an interest rate of 6%. The funds were used for projects at the airport.

Community Access CTV advance is being paid over 5 years, early repayment of
principal is permitted, with an interest rate equal to funds invested in LAIF. The funds

were used for operations of the cable TV network.
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NOTE 6 — INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS (Continued)

C.

Interfund Transfers

Paying Fund Transfers out Receiving Fund Transfers in
Major Governmental: Major Governmental:
General $ 1,173,000 General $ 2,011,410
Community Development Community Development
Debt Service 5,077,951 Agency Housing 1,927,951
Nonmaijor Governmental:
South County Fire 328,410 Nonmajor Governmental:
Economic Uncertainty 1,683,000 General Projects 2,548,075
2007 Lease Revenue 4,417,410 Community Development Projects 3,150,000
Parks COP 1,869,335
Major Enterprise: Regional Mall Improvement 889,000
Sewer 75,967 2007 Lease Revenue 284,000
Maijor Enterprise:
Drainage 13,941
Water 62,026
Totals $12,755,738 $ 12,755,738

in general, the City uses interfund transfers to (1) move revenues from the funds that
collect them to the funds that statute or budget requires to expend them, (2) use
unrestricted revenues collected in the General Fund to help finance various programs and
capital projects accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorization,
and (3) move cash to debt service funds from the funds responsible for payment as debt
service payments become due. '

In general, the effect of the interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-
wide financial statements.

NOTE 7 — LONG-TERM DEBT

A

Compensated Absences

City employees accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick pay benefits which can
be converted to cash at termination of employment. The City estimates the amounts that
might be liquidated with expendable currently available financial resources in the fund that
will liquidate the liability, if any, and the remaining liability is reported as long-term debt on
the Statement of Net Assets. Expenditures are reported in the governmental fund
statements that liquidate the current liability. However, in the Statement of Activities the
expense is allocated to each function based on usage. The portion of these vested
benefits, payable in accordance with various collective bargaining agreements, at June
30, 2008, total $2,849,086 for governmental activities and $428,367 for business-type
activities.
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NOTE 7 — LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

B.

Tax Allocation Bonds

Community Development Agency Tax Allocation Bonds

In 1994, the Agency issued Tax Allocation Bonds in the amount of $20,605,000 to finance
redevelopment projects. Agency tax increment revenue is pledged for the repayment of
these Bonds. Principal and interest payable semi-annually each March 1 and September
1. The Agency issued $55,720,000 of Tax Allocation Bonds with interest rates ranging
from 2.00% to 6.15% to advance refund $17,290,000 of outstanding 1994 Tax Allocation
Bonds. As a result, the $17,290,000 of outstanding Tax Allocation Bonds are considered
to be defeased and the liability for those bonds has been removed.

In March 2001, the Agency issued the Tax Allocation Bonds, Series A, in the amount of
$15,000,000 to fund infrastructure improvements and redevelopment activities of benefit
to the Project Area. Agency tax increment revenue is pledged for the repayment of these
Bonds. Principal and interest are payable semi-annually each March 1 and September 1.
The Agency issued $55,720,000 of Tax Allocation Bonds with interest rates ranging from
2.00% to 6.15% to advance refund $15,000,000 of outstanding 2001 Tax Allocation
Bonds, Series A. As a result, the $15,000,000 of outstanding Tax Allocation Bonds are
considered to be defeased and the liability for those bonds has been removed.

During the 2004-05 fiscal year, the Agency issued Tax Allocation Bonds in the amount of
$55,720,000, with interest rates ranging from 2.00% to 6.15% per annum, to provide funds
for certain projects of the Agency and to defease the 1994 and 2001 Tax Allocation
Bonds. The bonds mature semiannually on each March 1, through 2034. The
outstanding balance of the bonds at June 30, 2008 was $52,030,000. Annual debt
service requirements are as follows:

Fiscal Year(s)

Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2009 $ 1,065,000 $ 2,646,419 $ 3,711,419
2010 1,105,000 2,609,219 3,714,219
2011 1,145,000 2,565,919 3,710,919
2012 1,195,000 2,520,069 3,715,069
2013 1,245,000 2,467,612 3,712,612

2014-2018 7,115,000 11,436,732 18,551,732
2019-2023 9,000,000 9,570,599 18,570,599
2024-2028 11,580,000 6,984,899 18,564,899
2029-2033 15,055,000 3,516,795 18,571,795
2034 3,525,000 192,445 3,717,445

$ 52,030,000 $ 44,510,708 $ 96,540,708
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C.

1)

Certificates of Participation

The 1995 Community Parkland Certificates of Participation were issued to refund the
1988 Community Park and Civic Center Land Acquisition Project Certificates of
Participation. The City leases the Community Park and Civic Center properties under a
non-cancelable lease extending to March 1, 2018. Under the lease, the City makes semi-
annual payments which are sufficient to pay the principal and interest on the 1995
Refunding Certificates of Participation. Ownership of the properties reverts to the City at
the end of the lease. The cost of the properties and the balance of the debt evidenced by
the 1995 Refunding Certificates of Participation have been included in the City’s financial
statements as this lease is in essence a financing arrangement, with ownership of the
financed assets reverting to the City at its conclusion, and is payable semi-annually each
March 1 and September 1. The outstanding balance of the certificates at June 30, 2008
was $0.

These bonds were refunded by the 2007 Lease Revenue Bonds Series B, issued on
October 25, 2007. The 1995 COPs were fully called on October 25, 2007.

On March 23, 1998, the City issued $12,805,000 of Certificates of Participation (COPs) to
defease $10,175,000 of outstanding 1994 Certificates of Participation, and finance
additional 1-205 infrastructure projects and various other city-wide capital projects.
Proceeds from the COPs were placed in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt
service payment on the defeased COPs. The defeased COPs were fully repaid as of
June 30, 2003. The 1998 COPs bear interest at 3.5% - 5.125% and are due October 1,
2027. Principal payments are due annually on October 1. Interest payments are due
semi-annually on April 1 and October 1. The outstanding balance of the certificates at
June 30, 2008 was $10,155,000. Annual debt service requirements are as follows:

Fiscal Year(s)

Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total

2009 $ 320,000 $ 504,750 $ 824,750

2010 335,000 489,845 824,845

2011 350,000 473,915 823,915

2012 360,000 457,050 817,050

2013 375,000 439,222 814,222
2014-2018 2,170,000 1,576,911 3,746,911
2019-2023 2,755,000 1,260,622 4,015,622
2024-2028 3,490,000 464,581 3,954,581

$ 10,155,000 $ 5,666,896 $ 15,821,896

70



CITY OF TRACY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

NOTE 7 — LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

C.

3)

1)

2)

Certificates of Participation (Continued)

2004 Wastewater Certificates of Participation

The City issued Wastewater Certificates of Participation (COPs) in March 2004. The
Wastewater COPs are special obligations of the City and are payable solely from and
secured by a pledge of net revenues of the Wastewater Utility System. Principal
payments commence on December 1, 2007, and are payable annually on December 1,
thereafter. Interest payments commence on December 1, 2004, and are payable semi-
annually on December 1 and June 1, thereafter. The outstanding balance of the COPs at
June 30, 2008 was $30,380,000. Annual debt service requirements are as follows:

Fiscal Year(s)

Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2009 $ 585,000 $ 1,324,110 $ 1,909,110
2010 600,000 1,308,997 1,908,997
2011 615,000 1,292,588 1,907,588
2012 630,000 1,274,528 1,904,528
2013 650,000 1,254,027 1,904,027

2014-2018 3,605,000 5,884,341 9,489,341
2019-2023 4,390,000 5,060,815 9,450,815
2024-2028 5,495,000 3,940,513 9,435,513
2029-2033 6,945,000 2,485,439 9,430,439
2034-2037 6,865,000 671,531 7,536,531

$ 30,380,000 $ 24,496,889 $ 54,876,889

Revenue Bonds

1993 Water Revenue Bonds

The 1993 Water Revenue Bonds were issued to defease the 1988 Water Certificates of
Participation (COP) issued to finance the expansion of the Water Treatment Plant. The
City’s water system revenues are pledged for the repayment of the Bonds. Principal and
interest are payable semi-annually each February 1 and August 1. The defeased 1998
COPs were called on July 1, 1996. The bonds were fully paid and therefore, the
outstanding balance of the 1993 bonds at June 30, 2008 was $0.

2003 Wastewater Revenue Refunding Bonds

The City issued Wastewater Revenue Bonds in May, 2003 to provide funds to refund the
balance of the 1993 Wastewater Certificates of Participation. The refunding resulted in an
overall savings of $419,472 and an economic gain of $291,760. The Wastewater
Revenue Bonds are special obligations of the City and are payable solely from and
secured by a pledge of net revenues of the Wastewater Utility System. Principal
payments commence on December 1, 2003, and are payable annually on December 1,
thereafter. Interest payments commence on December 1, 2003, and are payable semi-
annually on June 1 and December 1, thereafter. The outstanding balance of the bonds at
June 30, 2008 was $1,925,000. Annual debt service requirements are as follows:
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D. Revenue Bonds (Continued)

2) 2003 Wastewater Revenue Refunding Bonds (Continued)

Fiscal Year(s)

Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total

2008 $ 300,000 $ 53,458 $ 353,458
2010 310,000 46,207 356,207
2011 315,000 37,608 352,608
2012 320,000 27,923 347,923
2013 335,000 17,519 352,519
2014 345,000 6,038 351,038

$ 1,925,000 $ 188,753 $ 2113753

3) 2007 Lease Revenue Bonds — Series A

On October 25, 2007 the City issued $2,690,000 of 2007 Lease Revenue Bonds Series A.
The proceeds of the bonds are to be used to finance the acquisition and construction of a
fire station and to pay costs of issuance including an insurance premium to acquire a
reserve fund surety bond. The bonds are secured by a lien on the revenues consisting
mainly of rental payments made by the City under a property lease dated October 1,
2007. The bonds bear interest ranging from 4.375% to 4.5%. Principal is payable
annually beginning March 1, 2025. Interest is payable semi-annually every March 1 and
September 1. Final maturity of the bonds is March 1, 2037. The outstanding balance of
the bonds at June 30, 2008 is $2,690,000. Annual debt service requirements are as
follows:

Fiscal Year(s)

Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2009 $ - $ 119,500 $ 119,500
2010 119,500 119,500
2011 119,500 119,500
2012 119,500 119,500
2013 119,500 119,500

2014-2018 597,500 597,500
2019-2023 597,500 597,500
2024-2028 640,000 560,531 1,200,531
2029-2033 1,040,000 369,950 1,409,950
2034-2037 1,010,000 116,325 1,126,325

$ 2,690,000 $ 2,839,306 $ 5,529,306
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D.

Revenue Bonds (Continued)

4) 2007 Lease Revenue Bonds — Series B

On October 25, 2007 the City issued $1,980,000 of 2007 Lease Revenue Bonds Series B.
The proceeds of the bonds were used to prepay the outstanding 1995 Refunding
Certificates of Participation and to pay costs of issuance including an insurance premium
to acquire a reserve fund surety bond. The bonds are secured by a lien on the revenues
consisting mainly of rental payments made by the City under a property lease dated
October 1, 2007. The bonds bear interest rate ranging from 4% to 4.25%. Interest is
payable semi-annually on March 1 and September 1. Principal is payable annually
beginning on March 1, 2008. Final maturity of the bonds is March 1, 2025. The
outstanding balance of the bonds at June 30, 2008 was $1,840,000.

The proceeds from the bonds along with a reserve fund from the 1995 Certificates were
used to immediately call the 1995 bonds. The City has a total overall savings on the
refunding of $281,934 and a net present value savings (economic gain) of $166,312.
Annual debt service requirements are as follows:

Fiscal Year(s)

Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2009 $ 80,000 $ 74,980 $ 154,980
2010 85,000 71,780 156,780
2011 90,000 68,380 158,380
2012 95,000 64,780 159,780
2013 95,000 60,980 155,980

2014-2018 545,000 243,900 788,900
2019-2023 650,000 126,110 776,110
2024-2025 200,000 10,625 210,625

$ 1,840,000 $ 721,535 $ 2,561,535

Notes and Loans Payable

U.S. Economic Development Administration (EDA) Note — The revenues of the City’'s
water utility serve as collateral for this Note. The City is required to maintain rates for
service sufficient to generate net revenues equal to 1.10 times the principal and interest
due the succeeding year. Principal and interest are payable annually each July 1. The
outstanding balance of the note at June 30, 2008 was $1,773,799. Annual debt service
requirements are as follows:
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E.

Notes and Loans Payable (Continued)

Fiscal Year(s)

Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2009 $ 160,866 $ 88,690 $ 249,556
2010 168,909 80,647 249,556
2011 177,355 72,201 249,556
2012 186,222 63,333 249,555
2013 195,534 54,022 249,556

2014-2017 884,913 113,311 098,224
$ 1,773,799 3 472,204 $ 2,246,003

1992 State of California Department of Transportation Division of Aeronautics Loans —
The 1992 loan helped fund the construction of the Tracy Municipal Airport. In January
1995, the City received an additional loan of $150,000 for the construction of the ten unit
hangar at the airport. In November 1998, the City received an additional loan of $250,000
for the paving of runways and fence construction. Principal and interest on each loan is
payable annually each April 2 and January 12. The outstanding balance of the loans at
June 30, 2008 was $142,147. Annual debt service requirements are as follows:

Fiscal Year(s)

Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2009 $ 16,003 $ 7,089 $ 23,092
2010 16,869 6,291 23,160
2011 17,734 5,450 23,184
2012 18,599 4,566 23,165
2013 19,464 3,638 23,102

2014-2016 53,478 4,916 58,394
3 142,147 3 31,950 $ 174,097

State of California Department of Health Services Loan — In 2008, the City entered into a
loan agreement with the State of California Department of Health Services in the amount

of $20,000,00 for assistance in the construction of its new Water Treatment Plant. The
proceeds from the loan can be drawn down by the City as needed for construction. The
loan is a fully amortized loan over 20 years at an annual interest rate of 2.34%. The City
will be obligated to make semi-annual payments of principal and interest in the amount of
$628,960 beginning July 1, 2008 with a final maturity date of January 1, 2028. As of June
30, 2008 the City has balance due of $19,605,040. Annual debt service requirements are
as follows:
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E.

Notes and Loans Payable (Continued)

Fiscal Year(s)

Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2009 $ 803,837 $ 454,083 $ 1,257,920
2010 822,757 435,163 1,257,920
2011 842,122 415,798 1,257,920
2012 861,943 395,977 1,257,920
2013 882,230 375,690 1,257,920

2014-2018 4,732,574 1,557,026 6,289,600
2019-2023 5,316,366 973,234 6,289,600
2024-2028 5,343,211 317,427 5,660,638

$ 19,605,040 $ 4,924,398 $ 24,529,438

Banta Community lrrigation District Note — The City received a $6,500,000 note
agreement with an interest rate of 5% from the Banta Community Irrigation District.
Principal is payable annually. Interest is payable monthly. The outstanding balance of the
note at June 30, 2008 was $5,000,000. Annual debt service requirements are as follows:

Fiscal Year(s)
Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total

2009 $ 5,000,000 $ 166,664 $ 5,166,664

Installment Purchase Obligations

The City purchased equipment (fire truck) accounted for as a capital lease under an
installment obligation. The cost of the equipment was $512,684. The fire truck obligation
is paid from Central Services and Equipment Acquisition Internal Service Fund revenues.
The balance of the obligation at June 30, 2008 was $70,092. Future installments payable
are:

Fiscal Year(s)
Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total

2009 3 70,092 $ 2,662 $ 72,754

The City on December 20, 2005 purchased police communications equipment under a
lease agreement with Sun Trust Leasing Corp. The fair value of the equipment at the time
of lease was $438,766 and the lease qualifies as a capital lease. The City's minimum
annual lease payment on the equipment is $73,103, which includes interest at 4%. The
final maturity of the lease is December 20, 2012. The balance outstanding as of June 30,
2008 was $325,441. The future minimum debt service requirements are as follows:
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F. Installment Purchase Obligations (Continued)

June 30, 2008

Fiscal Year(s)

Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2009 $ 60,085 $ 13,018 $ 73,103
2010 62,489 10,614 73,103
2011 64,988 8,115 73,103
2012 67,588 5,515 73,103
2013 70,291 2,812 73,103
$ 325,441 $ 40,074 $ 365,515
G. Changes in Long-Term Liabilities
Balance at Balance at Due Within
July 1, 2007 Additions Reductions June 30, 2008 One Year
Governmental Activities:
Bonds payable:
2007 Revenue Bonds A $ - $ 2690000 $ - $ 2,690,000 $ -
2007 Revenue Bonds B 1,980,000 140,000 1,840,000 80,000
2003 Tax Allocation Bonds 53,065,000 1,035,000 52,030,000 1,065,000
Certificates of Participation
1995 Certificates of Participation 2,140,000 2,140,000
1998 Certificates of Participation 10,460,000 305,000 10,155,000 320,000
Capital leases 520,835 125,302 395,533 130,177
Compensated absences 2,334,613 1,681,780 1,167,307 2,849,086 1,081,256
Claims and judgments 625,188 533,471 91,717 45,859
Postretirement benefits 220,771 220,771 441 542
Governmental activity
Long-term liabilities $ 69,366,407 $ 6572551 $ 5446080 $ 70,492,878 _$ 2,722,292
Business-type activities:
Bonds payable:
1993 Water Revenue Bonds $ 330,000 $ - $ 330,000 $ - $ -
2003 Wastewater Revenue
Bonds 2,220,000 295,000 1,925,000 300,000
Certificates of Participation
2004 Wastewater Certificates of
Participation 30,995,000 615,000 30,380,000 585,000
Notes Payable:
U.S. Economic Development 1,927,005 153,206 1,773,799 160,866
Irrigation District Notes 5,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000
State of California Department
of Health Services 18,249,848 1,750,152 394,960 19,605,040 803,837
State of California Department
of Transportation 157,285 15,138 142,147 16,003
Compensated absences 393,521 231,608 196,762 428,367 214,184
Business-type activity
Long-term liabilities $ 59272659 $ 1981760 $ 2,000,066 $ 59,254,353 §$ 7,079,890
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H. Deferred Debt Issuance Costs And Gain/Loss on Debt Refunding

Bond issuance costs and deferred gain/loss on refundings are capitalized and amortized
over the terms of the respective bonds using a method that approximates the effective
interest method.

I Defeased Debt

As of June 30, 2008, all prior debt defeased has been paid in full, there are no outstanding
debt balances.

NOTE 8 — SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT DEBT WITH NO CITY COMMITMENT

Special Assessment Districts in various parts of the City have issued debt to finance
infrastructure improvements and facilities within their boundaries. The City is the collecting and
paying agent for the debt issued by these Districts, but has no direct or contingent liability or
moral obligation for the payment of this debt. Therefore, this debt is not included as debt of the
City. The outstanding balance of each of these issues as of June 30, 2008, is as follows:

Fiscal Year Balance
Issue Maturity Outstanding

Description Year Year June 30, 2008
93-1 Community Facilities District 1997 2027 $ 1,155,000
98-4 Morrison Homes Assessment District 1999 2024 1,940,000
99-1 Community Facilities District, 04 Refunding 2000 2025 8,600,000
99-2 Community Facilities District 2000 2026 3,685,000
2000-02 Assessment District 2000 2026 745,000
2002 Revenue Bonds, Series A 2002 2022 3,690,000
99-2 Community Facilities District, Series 2002 2003 2027 7,340,000
93-1 Community Facilities District, Series 2002 2003 2032 2,030,000
2003-01 Assessment District 2003 2027 900,000
2003-1205 Residential Assessment District, Series A 2003 2022 8,590,000
2003B Junior Lien 2003 2011 430,000
2003C Senior Lien 2003 2011 4,985,000
2003D Junior Lien 2003 2011 1,165,000
89-1 Community Facilities District, Series A 2004 2034 11,525,000
89-1 Community Facilities District, Series B 2004 2034 1,090,000
2005C Revenue bonds (JPA) 2005 2036 14,460,000
2005B Revenue Bonds Junior Lien (JPA) 2005 2036 3,625,000
2005A Revenue Bonds Senior Lien (JPA) 2005 2029 66,870,000
2006-01 NE Industrial Phase Il 2006 2036 10,660,000

T$ 153,485,000

NOTE 9 — CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

The City had commitments under construction and similar contracts that approximate $6.9
million at June 30, 2008.

The City is subject to other litigation arising in the normal course of business. In the opinion of
the City Attorney,there is no pending litigation which is likely to have a material adverse effect
on the financial position of the City.
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The City participates in Federal and State grant programs. These programs have been audited
by the City’s independent accountants in accordance with the provisions of the Federal Single
Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and applicable State requirements. No cost disallowances
were proposed as a result of these audits; however, these programs are still subject to further
examination by the grantors and the amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed
by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time. The City expects such amounts, if
any, to be immaterial.

NOTE 10 — CITY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT PLAN (DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN)

Plan Description: The City of Tracy contributes to the California Public Employees Retirement
System (PERS), an agent multiple-employer public employee defined benefit pension plan.
PERS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death
benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. PERS acts as a common investment and
administrative agent for participating public entities within the State of California. Benefit
provisions and all other requirements are established by state statute and city ordinance.
Copies of PERS' annual financial report may be obtained from their Executive Office — 400 P
Street — Sacramento, CA 95814.

Funding Policy: Participants are required to contribute 7% (9% for safety employees) of their
annual covered salary. The City makes the contributions required of City employees on their
behalf and for their account. The City is required to contribute at an actuarially determined
combined rate of 12.018% for miscellaneous employees and 24.086% for fire and police safety
employees. The contribution requirements of plan members and the City are established and
may be amended by PERS.

Annual Pension Cost: For 2008, the City's annual pension cost of $6,217,223 for PERS was
equal to the City's required and actual contributions. The required contribution was determined
as part of the June 30, 2005, actuarial valuation using the entry age normal actuarial cost
method. The actuarial assumptions included (a) 7.75% investment rate of return (net of
administrative expenses), (b) projected annual salary increases that vary by duration of service,
and (c) .25% per year cost-of-living adjustments. Both (@) and (b) included an inflation
component of 3.0%. The actuarial value of PERS was determined using techniques that
smooth the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of investments over a three-year
period (smoothed market value). PERS unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized
as a level percentage of projected payroll on a closed basis. The remaining amortization period
at June 30, 2008, was 29 years for safety, and 22 years for miscellaneous.

Funded Status and Funding Progress: As of June 30, 2007, the most recent actuarial valuation
date, the miscellaneous plan and safety plan were 87.7 percent and 80.0 percent funded,
respectively. The actual accrued liability for benefits were $61.7 million (miscellaneous) and
$78.8 million (safety), and the actual value of assets were $54.1 million (miscellaneous) and
$63.0 million (safety), resulting in unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities (UAAL) of 7.6 million
(miscellaneous) and $15.8 million (safety). The covered payroll (annual payroll of active
employees covered by the plans) were $17.7 million and $15.2 million for miscellaneous and
safety, respectively. The ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 43.1% and 103.6%,
respectively.
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NOTE 10 — CITY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT PLAN (DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN)

The schedules of funding progress, presented as Required Supplementary Information (RSI)
following the notes to the financial statements present multiyear trend information about
whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the
actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

THREE-YEAR TREND INFORMATION FOR PERS

Annual Percentage of
Fiscal Pension Annual Pension Cost  Net Pension
Year Cost Contributed Obligation
6/30/2006 $ 5,080,228 100% $ -
6/30/2007 5,534,919 100% -
6/30/2008 6,217,223 100% -

NOTE 11 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS

Plan Description The City of Tracy administers a single employer defined benefit (implicit
subsidy) healthcare plan (Plan).

The City offers medical, dental, vision and life insurance benefits to its employees, retirees, and
their dependents. The City does not explicitly pay for the cost of retiree health premiums,
however. The medical plans consist of two HealthNet options (HMO and a Preferred Provider
Organization (PPO) plan) and a Kaiser HMO, all fully insured. Medical premiums for retirees
under age 65 are the same as those charged for active employees.

The City allows retirees to convert accrued sick leave to an account balance, called a “Medical
Bank”, that can be used for medical, dental and vision premiums. After the account is
exhausted, the retiree can terminate coverage or elect to continue paying the medical (but not
dental or vision) premiums from personal funds. Spouses and eligible dependent children of
retirees may also be covered at the retiree’s expense. While the City does not directly
contribute towards the cost of premiums for retirees, the ability to obtain coverage at an active
employee rate constitutes a significant economic benefit to the retirees, called an “implicit
subsidy” under Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 45 (GASB 45). The
inclusion of the retirees increase the City’s overall health insurance rates; it is, in part, the
purpose of this valuation to determine the amount of the subsidy.

The ability to participate in the City’s health plan by self-paying the premiums extends for the
lifetime of the retiree: however, upon attaining the age of Medicare eligibility (65), the retiree
may enter a plan coordinated with Medicare. Standard actuarial practice assumes that
Medicare supplement plans do not generally give rise to an implicit subsidy, and while we have
included Medicare eligible retirees in this valuation, their liability under GASB 45 and their
annual implicit subsidy are both $0.

The Plan does not issue a separate financial report.
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Funding Policy. The contribution requirement of plan members and the City are established and
may be amended by the City. The required contribution is based on projected pay-as-you-go
financing requirements, with an additional amount to prefund benefits as determined annually
by the City. As of June 30, 2008, the City has not contributed to Plan.

Annual OPEB and Net OPEB Obligation. The City's annual other postemployment benefit
(OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer
(ARC), and amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB
Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is
projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or
funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The following table shows the
components of the City’s annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to the
plan, and changes in the City’s net OPEB obligation.

Annual required contribution $ 220,771
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 220,771
Contributions made
Increase in net OPEB obligation 220,771
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year 220,771
Net OPEB obligation - end of year $ 441 542

The City ‘s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and
the net OPEB obligation for 2008 and the two preceding years were as follows:

Fiscal Percentage of Net
Year Annual Annual OPEB OPEB
Ended OPEB Cost Cost Contribution Obligation
6/30/2006 $ - 100% $ -
6/30/2007 220,771 0% 220,771
6/30/2008 220,771 0% 441,542

Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of June 1, 2006, the most recent actuarial valuation
date, the plan was zero percent funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was
$1,481,968, and the actuarial value of assets was $0, resulting in an unfunded actuarial
accrued liability (UAAL) of $1,481,968. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees
covered by the plan) was $35.7 million, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 4.1
percent.
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Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts
determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the
employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past
expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress,
presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the financial
statements, presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan
assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for
benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions. Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are
based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members)
and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical
pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The
actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the
effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets,
consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

In the July 1, 2008, actuarial valuation, the Projected Unit Credit Cost method was used. The
actuarial assumptions included a 6.0 percent investment rate of return, which is a blended rate
of the expected long-term investment returns on plan assets and on the employer's own
investments calculated based on the funded level of the plan at the valuation date, and an
annual healthcare cost trend rate of 9 percent initially, reduced by decrements to an ultimate
rate of 5 percent after five years. The actuarial value of assets was determined using
techniques that spread the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of investments
over the five-year period. The UAAL is being amortized as a level percentage of projected
payroll on an open basis. The remaining amortization period at July 1, 2006 was thirty years.

NOTE 12 — JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT

During the fiscal year 2000, the City and the Tracy Rural Fire District formed the South County
Fire Authority (Authority), a joint powers agreement. As part of this agreement, the employees
of Tracy Rural Fire District became City employees and the City took over the management of
the Authority’s fire stations. The Authority is governed by a Board composed of two members
each from the City and the Authority. Financial statements for the Authority may be obtained
from the City of Tracy at 325 East Tenth Street, Tracy, CA 95376.

NOTE 13 — NET ASSETS AND FUND BALANCES

A. Net Assets

Net assets are the excess of all the City's assets over all its liabilities, regardless of fund.
Net assets are divided into three captions under GASB Statement No. 34. These captions
apply only to net assets, which is determined only at the government-wide level,
proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds and are described below.
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NOTE 13 — NET ASSETS AND FUND BALANCES (Continued)

A

Net Assets

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt describe the portion of net assets which is
represented by the current net book value of the City’s capital assets, less the outstanding
balance of any debt issued to finance these assets.

Restricted describe the portion of net assets which is restricted as to use by the terms and
conditions of agreements with outside parties, governmental regulations, laws, or other
restrictions which the City cannot unilaterally alter. These principally include developer
fees received for use on capital projects, debt service requirements, redevelopment funds
restricted for low-and-moderate income purposes, and gas tax funds for street
construction.

Unrestricted describes the portion of net assets which is not restricted as to use.

Fund Balances, Reserves, and Designations

In the fund financial statements, fund balances represent the net current assets of each
fund. Net current assets generally represent a fund’s cash and receivables, less its
liabilities. Portions of a fund’s balance may be reserved or designated for future

expenditure.
Reserves:
Portions of fund balance have been reserved for specific purposes as follows:

Low/Moderate Income Housing — Funds received under low/moderate income housing
have been reserved for expenditures for low-and-moderate income housing purposes.

Prepaid items — Expenditures that are paid in the current fiscal year for services or
products to be provided in the following fiscal year.

Debt Service — Funds which legally may only be used for debt service are reserved within
the appropriate fund.

Advances — Amounts which have been advanced to other funds and are not expected to
be paid within the next fiscal year.

Encumbrances — Amounts represent the portion of fund balance set aside for open
purchase orders.

Projects — Amounts represent the portion of fund balance that are reserved for projects
per debt agreements.

Loans Receivable — Amounts represent the portion of fund balance that are reserved to
long-term loans receivable.
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NOTE 14 — RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Restricted net assets that are subject to constraints either (1) externally imposed by creditors
(such as debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or
(2) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Restricted net
assets at June 30, 2008 are as follows:

Governmental Business-Type
Restricted for Public Safety:
Asset forfeiture $ 75,114 $ -
Fire protection 1,205,282
1,280,396
Streets and Roads:
Construction and maintenance 11,602,104
Community development 690,007
Housing 13,037,871
Special Districts:
Parking 56,034
Landscaping 2,374,981
2,431,015
Debt Service:
Redevelopment 3,329,558
Sewer 243,659
Other _ 2,826,334
6,155,892
Projects:
Redevelopment 7,558,098
Specific areas/locations 91,336,485
98,894,583
Total restricted net assets $ 134,091,868 $ 243,659

Included in total governmental restricted net assets at June 30, 2008 are net assets restricted
by enabling legislation of $92,833,483.

NOTE 15 — REVENUE LIMITATIONS IMPOSED BY CALIFORNIA PROPOSITION 2188

Proposition 218, which was approved by the voters in November 1996, will regulate the City’s
ability to impose, increase, and extend taxes, assessments, and fees. Any new, increased, or
extended taxes, assessments, and fees subject to the provisions of Proposition 218, require
voter approval before they can be implemented. Additionally, Proposition 218 provides that
these taxes, assessments, and fees are subject to the voter initiative process and may be
rescinded in the future years by the voters.
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NOTE 16 — DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN AND TRUST

The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal
Revenue Code Section 457. The Plan, available to all City employees, permits them to defer a
portion of their salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to
employees until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency.

All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all property and rights purchased with
those amounts, and all income attributable to those amounts, property, or rights are (until paid
or made available to the employee or other beneficiary) solely the property and rights of the
employees. Accordingly, the plan/trust assets have been excluded from the City's reported
assets.

NOTE 17 — RISK MANAGEMENT

A.

Coverage

The City and 53 other entities in the Central San Joaquin area are members of a joint
powers agreement called the Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Management Authority
(RMA), which was established to provide for the sharing of risk among the member
agencies. The RMA is governed by a Board of Directors elected by the member
agencies; it is not a component unit of the City.

The RMA provides general liability coverage of $900,000 above the City’s self insurance
limit of $100,000 per occurrence, and property damage insurance up to $500,000,000
including the City’s deductible of $1,000 to $25,000 per occurrence. General liability
claims in excess of $1,000,000 up to a maximum of $15,000,000 are covered through
RMA's participation in the Local Agency Workers’ Compensation Excess Joint Powers
Authority. The remaining excess is covered by the RMA through a policy with an
independent insurance carrier up to $24,000,000 for workers compensation and
$1,000,000 each accident for employers liability excess of $1,000,000 Self Insurance
Retention Level (SIR).

The RMA maintains separate records for each member for each year of participation. The
records track cash paid to the RMA through deposit premium assessments, the City’s self-
insured retention portion of claims paid, and the City's allocation of shared risks. Three
years after the close of the workers’ compensation coverage year and five years after the
close of the general liability coverage year, the RMA assesses the status of all members
for the year, then either makes a refund to a member if it has positive balance (i.e. payout
and reserve experience is less than premiums paid) or collects any deficit.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, the City contributed $2,139,154 for current
year coverage and received refunds of $703,031.

Audited financial statements are available form the Central San Joaquin Risk
Management Authority at 6371 Auburn Boulevard, Citrus Heights, CA 95621.
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NOTE 17 — RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

B.

Liability for Uninsured Claims

The City provides for the uninsured portion of claims and judgments, including provisions
for claims incurred but not reported, in the Insurance Internal Service Fund. Claims and
judgments are recorded when a loss is deemed probable of asserting and the amount of
the loss is reasonably determinable. As discussed above, the City has coverage for such
claims, but it has retained the risk for the deductible, or uninsured portion of these claims.
The City has estimated that 50% of total claims will become due and payable within one

year.

The City’s liability for uninsured claims was estimated by management based on prior
year claims experience and the third party JPA where the City as of June 30, 2008 has

reserve deposits which cover claims and IBNRS except for $91,717.

Totals
Worker's General
Compensation Liability 2008 2007

Beginning balance $ 331,758 $ 293430 $ 625188 $ 406,758
Increase in estimated liability

for prior and current fiscal

claims and claims incurred

but not reported (IBNR) 566,634
Claims paid (283,088) (250,383) (533,471) (348,204)
Ending balance $ 48670 $ 43,047 % 91,717 $ 625,188
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Pension Trend Information

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
MISCELLANEOQOUS PLAN

Entry Age Unfunded
Actuarial Normal Actuarial Liability Annual UAAL As a
Valuation Accrued Value of (Excess Funded Covered % of
Date Liability Assets Assets) Ratio Payroll Payroll

6/30/2005 $50,742,142 $42,444,904 §$ 8,297,238 83.6% $ 16,505,047 50.3%
6/30/2006 55,787,879 47,555,919 8,231,960 85.2% 17,057,712 48.3%
6/30/2007 61,743,710 54,135,201 7,608,509 87.7% 17,659,100 43.1%

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SAFETY PLAN
Entry Age Unfunded
Actuarial Normal Actuarial Liability Annual UAAL As a
Valuation Accrued Value of (Excess Funded Covered % of
Date Liability Assets Assets) Ratio Payroll Payroll

6/30/2005 $ 62,570,569 $48,928,492 $ 13,642,077 782% $12,374,018 110.2%
6/30/2006 69,738,408 55,543,596 14,194,812 79.6% 13,271,346 107.0%
6/30/2007 78,759,367 63,039,853 15,719,514 80.0% 15,179,627 103.6%

Modified Approach to Reporting Street Pavement Costs

GASB Statement No. 34 allows the City to use the Modified Approach with respect to
infrastructure assets instead of depreciating these assets. The Modified Approach may be
used if two requirements are met:

1.

The City must have an asset management system (AMS) with certain features:

= |t must maintain an up-to-date inventory of the infrastructure assets.

» |t must estimate the annual costs to maintain and preserve those assets at the condition
level the City has established and disclosed through administrative or executive policy
or legislative action.

» The AMS must be used to assess the condition of the assets periodically, using a
measurement scale.

» The condition assessments must be replicable as those that are based on sufficiently
understandable and complete measurement methods such that different measurers
using the same methods would reach substantially similar results.

The City must document that the roads are being preserved approximately at or above the
condition level the City has established and disclosed. This documentation must include
the results of the three most recent complete condition assessments and must provide
reasonable assurance that the assets are being preserved approximately at or above the
intended condition level.

The City has elected to use the Modified Approach to report street pavement costs. The City
uses the Metropolitan Transportation Commission’s (MTC) Pavement System to track the
condition levels of each of the street sections.
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Modified Approach to Reporting Street Pavement Costs (Continued)

The conditions of the pavement is based on a weighted average of seven distress factors found
in pavement surfaces. The MTC pavement management system uses a measurement scale
that is based on a condition index ranging from zero for a failed pavement to 100 for pavement
with perfect conditions. The condition index is used to classify pavement in good or better
condition (70-100), fair condition (50-69), and substandard condition (less than 50).

The City's preservation costs are budgeted to be $1,667,146 in fiscal year 2009. The
Pavement Condition Index (PC) for the City's street pavement for the latest years is as follows:

Maintenance Actual

Year PCI Budget Maintenance
2002 76 $ 1,505,620 $ 1,369,043
2003 77 1,621,170 1,642,556
2004 77 2,043,580 14,441,690
2005 81 2,303,227 13,943,191
2006 78 2,653,860 14,874,752
2007 76 4,244,964 8,647,067
2008 74 13,605,000 19,466,614
2009 72 1,667,146 -

The City’s administrative policy is to achieve a minimum rating of 65 for all street pavement.
This rating allows for minor cracking and revealing of payment along with minor roughness that
could be noticeable to drivers traveling at posted speed. The City expended $19,466,614 for
street preservation for fiscal year 2008.

Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pensions

Trend Information

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS FOR
RETIREE HEALTH PLAN

BI-ANNUAL
Projected Unit Unfunded
Actuarial Credit Cost Actuarial Liability Annual UAAL As a
Valuation Accrued Value of (Excess Funded Covered % of
Date Liability Assets Assets) Ratio Payroll Payroll
7/1/2006 $ 1,481,968 § - $ 1,481,968 % $31,865,746 4.7%
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A.

Budgetary Data

Through the budget, the City Council sets the direction of the City, allocates its resources
and establishes its priorities. The Annual Budget assures the efficient and effective uses
of the City’s economic resources, as well as establishing that the highest priority
objectives are accomplished.

The Annual Budget serves from July 1 to June 30, and is a vehicle that accurately and
openly communicates these priorities to the community, businesses, vendors, employees
and other public agencies. Additionally, it establishes the foundation of effective financial
planning by providing resource planning, performance measures and controls that permit
the evaluation and adjustment of the City’s performance.

The City collects and records revenue and expenditures within the following categories:

« Governmental Activities
« Business-Type Activities

The Governmental Funds include the General Fund, Special Revenue, Debt Service and
Capital Projects funds. All funding sources are kept separate for both reporting and use of
the money. The General Fund is where most City services are funded that are not
required to be segregated.

The budget process begins as a team effort in January of each year, starting with an
annual strategic planning meeting. Then the individual departments use projected revenue
assumptions to prioritize and recommend the next fiscal year’s objectives. The City
Manager’s Office and the Finance Department review all budget proposals and revenue
assumptions, as well as all current financial obligations before preparing the document
that is proposed to the City Council. The City Council reviews the Proposed Budget
through a series of committees and workshops and the final adoption of the budget is
scheduled for June of each year.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The City uses the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the
financial statements:

1. Before the beginning of the fiscal year the City Manager submits to the City Council a
proposed budget for the year commencing July 1.

2. A public meeting is conducted to obtain taxpayer comments.

3. The budget is subsequently adopted through passage of a resolution and is not
included herein but is published separately.

4. All appropriations are as originally adopted or as amended by the City Council and all
unencumbered budgeted amounts lapse at year-end, except in the General Fund
where an expenditure control budget policy allows departments to carryover a portion
of the unexpended amounts into the next fiscal year.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

A. Budgetary Data (Continued)

5. Continuing Appropriations are re-budgeted by the City Council as part of the adoption
of subsequent year’s budgets.

6. Legally adopted budget appropriations are set for the General, Special Revenue, and
Debt Service Funds.

7. The legal level of budgetary control is at the department level. A Department Head may
transfer appropriations within the department. Expenditures may exceed appropriations
at this level to the extent that departmental owned revenues are sufficient to offset the
excess. Expenditures in excess of departmental owned revenues must be approved by
the City Council. The City Council, by the affirmative vote of three members, may
amend the budget to add or delete appropriations, transfer between appropriations
within a fund or change appropriation transfers between funds.

8. Budgets for General, Special Revenue, and Debt Service Funds are adopted on a
basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles.

B. Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other
commitments for the expenditure of funds are recorded in order to reserve that portion of
the applicable appropriation, is employed as an extension of formal budgetary control in
the budgeted governmental funds.

Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are reported as reservations of fund balances,
since the commitments will be honored through subsequent years’ continuing
appropriations. Encumbrances do not constitute expenditures or liabilities for GAAP

reporting purposes.
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CITY OF TRACY
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget
Original Final Amounts Positive (Negative)
REVENUES
Taxes $ 35,878,600 $ 35,878,600 $ 34,655,186 $ (1,223,414)
Licenses, permits, and fees 3,513,550 3,513,550 2,839,229 (674,321)
Fines and forfeitures 936,000 936,000 1,515,274 579,274
Use of money and property 957,000 957,000 2,268,404 1,311,404
Intergovernmental 1,763,600 1,811,050 1,422,094 (388,956)
Charges for services 5,064,630 5,064,630 4,903,783 (160,847)
Other revenues 1,331,000 1,335,000 1,802,714 467,714
Special assessments 310,000 310,000 319,500 9,500
Total revenues 49,754,380 49,805,830 49,726,184 (79,646)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government:
Cultural arts 1,701,300 1,916,480 1,938,594 (22,114)
City clerk 288,870 293,310 316,577 (23,267)
City council 109,370 110,870 111,774 (904)
City attorney 855,530 855,530 863,132 (7,602)
City treasurer 349,830 342,730 335,894 6,836
Administration 1,193,390 1,135,650 1,117,655 17,995
Human resources 1,071,280 1,116,980 1,146,892 (29,912)
Finance 1,851,110 1,836,110 1,803,443 32,667
Non-departmental 510,000 453,420 627,799 (174,379)
Public safety:
Police 21,915,000 21,922,975 20,138,902 1,784,073
Fire 7,456,700 7,613,300 7,542,935 70,365
Public works:
Development and engineering 7,546,550 7,622,222 6,993,060 629,162
Public works 5,014,670 5,034,670 4,157,756 876,914
Culture and leisure:
Parks and community services 3,752,390 3,789,190 3,146,194 642,996
Capital outlay 698,340 1,595,928 856,668 739,260
Total expenditures 54,314,330 55,639,365 51,097,275 4,542,090
Excess of revenues over (under)
expenditures (4,559,950) (5,833,535) (1,371,091) 4,462,444
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 5,733,000 5,733,000 2,011,410 (3,721,590)
Transfers out (1,173,000) (1,173,000) (1,173,000)
Total other financing sources (uses) 4,560,000 4,560,000 838,410 (3,721,590)
Net change in fund balance 50 (1,273,535) (532,681) 740,854
Fund balance at beginning of fiscal ye:___ 19,111,270 19,111,270 19,111,270
Fund balance at end of fiscal year $19,111,320 $ 17,837,735 _$ 18,578,589 _§ 740,854

See accompanying notes to required supplemental information
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CITY OF TRACY
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY HOUSING SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget
Original Final Amounts Positive (Negative)
REVENUES
Use of money and property $ 42,000 $ 42,000 $ 366937 $ 324,937
Total revenues 42,000 42,000 366,937 324,937
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government: 67,400 63,243 68,883 (5,640)
Public works:
Development and engineering 494,350 5,637,616 2,318,823 3,218,793
Total expenditures 561,750 5,600,859 2,387,706 3,213,153
Excess of revenues over (under)
expenditures (519,750) (5,558,859) (2,020,769) 3,538,090
Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers in 1,840,200 1,840,200 1,927,951 87,751
Total other financing sources (uses) 1,840,200 1,840,200 1,927,951 87,751
Net change in fund balance 1,320,450 (3,718,659) (92,818) 3,625,841
Fund balance at beginning of fiscal year 6,102,528 6,102,528 6,102,528
Fund balance at end of fiscal year $ 7422978 $ 2,383,869 $ 6,009,710 _$ 3,625,841

See accompanying notes to required supplemental information
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CITY OF TRACY
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY DEBT SERVICE FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Variance with

Final Actual Final Budget
Budget Amounts Positive (Negative)
REVENUES
Taxes $ 9629400 $ 10,153,405 $ 524,005
Use of money and property 21,000 399,571 378,571
Intergovernmental 720,000 704,941 (15,059)
Total revenues 10,370,400 11,257,917 887,517
EXPENDITURES
Current:

Intergovernmental 2,011,900 3,176,854 (1,164,954)
Debt service:

Principal payments 1,035,000 1,035,000

interest and fiscal charges 2,693,100 2,690,489 2,611

Total expenditures 5,740,000 6,902,343 (1,162,343)
Excess of revenues over (under)
expenditures 4,630,400 4,355,574 (274,826)
Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers out (4,990,200) (5,077,951) (87,751)
Total other financing sources (uses) (4,990,200) (5,077,951) (87,751)
Net change in fund balance (359,800) (722,377) (362,577)
Fund balance at beginning of fiscal year 4,934,075 4,934,075
Fund balance at end of fiscal year $ 4574275 $ 4211698 $ (362,577)
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

ECONOMIC UNCERTAINTY FUND

Established by the City Council and funded with a transfer from the General Fund to provide a reserve
for economic uncertainties arising out of slowing economic growth; the impact of Measure A, a City-wide
slow-growth initiative passed in November 2000; and uncertainties arising out of terrorist actions taking
place in various parts of the world.

PARKING DISTRICT FUND

Established to account for the revenues that were received from the formation of a voluntary parking
district that the City plans to develop.

BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT FUND

Established to accumulate revenues from business licenses for subsequent transfer to the General Fund
in order to provide donations to the Main Street Tracy Program.

ASSET FORFEITURE FUND

Established to account for the revenues that occur from asset seizures. They are specifically restricted
for the purchase of law enforcement equipment and supplies.

PROPOSITION 1B FUND

Established to account for the revenues from the State of California generated by the issuance of general
obligation bonds. The revenues are to be used for highway safety, traffic reduction, and air quality.

TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT FUND

Established to account for the City’s share of the quarter cent statewide transportation sales tax devoted
to street maintenance purposes. The tax first goes to the Transportation Development Fund.

PROPOSITION K TRANSPORTATION FUND

Established to account for the City's share of the half cent transportation sales tax of San Joaquin
County. It is used for street maintenance and repairs.

STATE GAS TAX STREET FUND

Established to account for the City's share of State-Imposed motor vehicle gas taxes, which are legally
restricted to acquisition, construction, improvement, and maintenance of the City’s streets.

TEA GRANT FUND

Established to account for the revenues from transportation efficiency act grant projects.

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT FUND

Established to account for federal grant monies received from the U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development (HUD) for Community Development Block Grants.

LANDSCAPING DISTRICT FUND

Established to account for transactions of the City's landscaping benefit assessment districts.
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (Continued)

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (Continued)

RESIDENTIAL AND COMMERCIAL REHABILITATION LOAN FUND

Used to account for Department of Housing and Urban Development Fund (HUD) trust monies which
are used for low interest loans to qualified borrowers for inner city rehabilitation projects in accordance
with HUD agreements.

SOUTH COUNTY FIRE AUTHORITY FUND

This fund was established to account for revenues and liabilities of the Authority, which is a Joint Powers
Agreement between the City and the Tracy Rural Fire District. The Authority is responsible for fire
prevention and suppression in parts of the City and in surrounding unincorporated areas.

TRAFFIC CONGESTION RELIEF FUND

Established to account for revenues received from the State of California under AB2928. AB2928 is to
fund local streets and roads maintenance, rehabilitation, and reconstruction projects according to the
State’s Traffic Congestion Relief Plan.

COMMUNITY ACCESS CTV FUND

Used to account for fees collected from City cable TV customers to cover expenses for videotaping and
broadcasting the City Council meetings.

INTEREST STABILIZATION FUND

This fund was established to account for the excess interest earned on investments to be used for the
stabilization of market rate increases or decreases.

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

PARKS COP FUND

Established to accumulate funds for payment of certificates of participating (COP) principal and interest.
This COP provided the resources to purchase the Tracy Community Park as well as other public facilities

sites.
REGIONAL MALL IMPROVEMENT FUND

Established to accumulate funds for the payment of debt service on the COP issued for public
infrastructure in the new Regional Mall area. Funds are transferred from the General Fund into this fund

for this debt service.
2007 LEASE REVENUE BONDS FUND

Established to accumulate funds for the payment of debt service on the lease revenue bonds issued to 1)
refund the prior Certificates of Participation and 2) finance the acquisition and construction of a fire

station.
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (Continued)

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

RESIDENTIAL SPECIFIC PLAN PROJECTS FUND

Established to account for capital projects financed by fees levied on developers in the City’'s 1987
Residential Specific Plan area.

GENERAL PROJECTS FUND

Established to account for capital projects financed through the transfer of General Fund monies.

INFILL PROJECTS FUND

Established to account for capital projects financed through capital development fees levied upon
developers in the City’s infill areas.

1-205 AREA IMPROVEMENTS FUND

Established to account for monies received from the sale of bonds for the purpose of construction of
various community facilities within a specific area in the City.

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY CONSTRUCTION FUND

Established to account for construction projécts related to the redevelopment project area. These
projects are financed by tax increment monies from the City and the County of San Joaquin.

URBAN MANAGEMENT PLAN FACILITIES FUND

Established to account for expenditures for the planning, design, and construction of capital facilities
required for new development beyond the current infill, Residential Specific Plan (RSP), and [-205

development.
CAPITAL PROJECTS DEPOSIT FUND

Established to account for monies received from developers, contractors, and other entities for the
purpose of reimbursing the City for expenditures incurred in studies, research, etc., regarding their
proposed development.

ASSESSMENT DISTRICT 87-3 IMPROVEMENT FUND
Established to account for construction projects within the Assessment District 87-3.
SOUTH MACARTHUR PLAN AREA FUND

Established to account for projects to support development in a specific area of the City financed by
assessments and/or development impact fees.

INDUSTRIAL SPECIFIC PLAN SOUTH FUND

Established to account for projects to support development in a specific area of the City financed by
assessments and/or development impact fees. :

PRESIDIO PLAN AREA FUND

Established to account for projects to support development in a specific area of the City financed by
assessments and/or development impact fees.
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (Continued)

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS (Continued)

TRACY GATEWAY AREA FUND

Established to account for projects to support development in a specific area of the City financed by
assessments and/or development impact fees.

PLAN C FUND

Plan C is a development area of the City which was approved in 1998. Capital development fees levied
on developers in this area and the related expenditures are accounted for in this fund.
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Assets

Cash and investments

Cash and investments with fiscal agents
Accounts receivable

Interest receivable

Due from other funds

Advances to other funds

Prepaid items

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Deposits payable
Deferred revenue
Advances from other funds

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:

Reserved:
Prepaid items
Projects
Encumbrances
Debt service
Advances

Unreserved:
Undesignated

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

CITY OF TRACY
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

June 30, 2008

Special Revenue Funds

Business
Economic Parking Improvement Asset
Uncertainty District District Forfeiture
$ 17,938,924 $ 57,058 § 21§ 75,597
40,251
546 583
$ 17,938,924 $ 57,604 § 40,272 % 76,180
$ - $ 1570 $ 10,987 $ 1,066
5,700
36,675
1,570 53,362 1,066
17,938,924 56,034 (13,090) 75,114
17,938,924 56,034 (13,090) 75,114
$ 17,938,924 § 57604 $ 40272 $ 76,180
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Special Revenue Funds

Proposition K State Community
Proposition  Transportation Transportation Gas Tax TEA Development Landscaping
1b Development Tax Street Grant Block Grant District
$ 17315720 $ 1,582,347 $ 3,569,924 §$ 4455530 § 81 § 72,064 $ 2,543,778
1,101,231 463,861 83,477 67,363
10,581 26,702 35,597 32,782 158 14,028
3,373

$ 1315720 $ 1,592,928 $ 4697857 $ 4,958361 $ 116,340 $ 139,585 § 2,557,806

$ - $ - $ 512,046 $ 464283 § 12,073 $ 120,851 $ 182,825
90,700
16,640
512,046 464,283 102,773 137,491 182,825
47,912 49,780 652,294 76,755
1,315,720 1,592,928 4,137,899 4,444,298 (638,727) 2,094 2,298,226
1,315,720 1,692,928 4,185,811 4,494,078 13,567 2,094 2,374,981

$ 1315720 $ 1,592,928 $ 4,697,857 $ 4958361 $ 116,340 § 139,585 § 2,557,806

(Continued)
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CITY OF TRACY

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Assets

Cash and investments

Cash and investments with fiscal agents
Accounts receivable

Interest receivable

Due from other funds

Advances to other funds

Prepaid items

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Deposits payable
Deferred revenue
Advances from other funds

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:

Reserved:
Prepaid items
Projects
Encumbrances
Debt service
Advances

Unreserved:
Undesignated

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances _$

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
June 30, 2008

(Continued)
Special Revenue Funds
Residential
and Commercial South County Traffic Community
.Rehabilitation Fire Congestion Access
Loan Authority Relief CTV
$ 716,090 $ 24024 $ - $ 4
2,629,945 27,376
4,711 3,373
315
$ 720801 $ 2554284 § 3373 § 27,380
$ 5679 $ 38904 % - 3 992
1,216,000 3,373 33,000
15,058
27,209 79,040
82,300
32,888 1,349,002 3,373 116,292
315
110,469
687,913 1,094,498 (88,912)
687,913 1,205,282 (88,912)
720,801 $ 2,554,284 § 3373 ¢ 27,380
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Special

Revenue
Funds Debt Service Funds Capital Projects Funds
2007
Lease Regional Residential
Interest Revenue Mall Specific Plan General Infill
Stabilization Bonds Parks COP Improvement Projects Projects Projects
$1634187 $ 73622 $ 300,176 $ 1,764,005 § 10,282,829 $ 11709739 §$ 5,395,782
2,650 866,138 6,041,822
2,678 1,023
584,333 2,620 9,937 85,521 48,719
146,300
82,300
$2218520 $ 76272 § 302,796 _$ 2,640,080 $10,371,028 $ 17,980,161 _§ 5,445,524
$ - 8 - 9 - $ - % 18,474 $ 201,350 $ 767
832,265
18,474 1,033,615 767
6,041,822
626,834 1,487,400 13,610
76,272 302,796 2,640,080
82,300
2,218,520 9,725,720 9,335,024 5,431,147
2,218,520 76,272 302,796 2,640,080 10,352,554 16,946,546 5,444,757
$2218520 $ 76272 $ 302,796 _$ 2,640,080 $10,371,028 $ 17,980,161 _§ 5,445,524
(Continued)
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CITY OF TRACY
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
June 30, 2008
(Continued)
Capital Projects Funds
Community Urban
Development Management Capital
1-205 Area Agency Plan Projects
Improvments  Construction Facilities Deposit
Assets
Cash and investments $ 2,336,396 $ 7,882,263 $ 6,449,591 § 924,251
Cash and investments with fiscal agents
Accounts receivable 383
Interest receivable 16,571 48,967 52,665 9,766
Due from other funds
Advances to other funds
Prepaid items
Total Assets $ 2352967 $ 7,931,230 $ 6502649 _$ 934,017
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 13,755 $ 3731132 $ 283995 $ -
Due to other funds
Deposits payable 1,188,104 408,951
Deferred revenue
Advances from other funds
Total Liabilities 1,201,859 373,132 692,946
Fund Balances:
Reserved:
Prepaid items
Projects
Encumbrances 280,291 229,974 336,913 39,290
Debt service
Advances
Unreserved:
Undesignated 870,817 7,328,124 5,472,790 894,727
Total Fund Balances 1,151,108 7,558,098 5,809,703 934,017

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances _$ 2,352,967 _$ 7,931,230 _$ 6,502,649 $ 934,017
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Capital Projects Funds

Assessment South industrial Total
District MacArthur Specific Presidio Tracy Nonmajor
87-3 Plan Plan Plan Gateway Governmental

Improvement Area South Area Area Plan"C" Funds

$ 28768 $7,202353 $ 1888644 $ 5,756,837 4 $ 27,080,803 $ 123,061,412

5,563 6,916,173

55,596 4,373,194

244 63,935 17,261 49,151 239,461 1,358,212
149,673

82,300

315

$ 29012 $7,266288 $ 1,905905 _$ 5811551 55600 $ 27,320,264 $ 135,941,279
$ - $ 60544 $ 32,267 $ - - 3 609,301 $ 2,944,861
55,600 1,404,373

825,000 3,269,378

159,564

82,300

60,544 32,267 825,000 55,600 609,301 7,860,476

315

5,563 6,047,385

158,761 110,838 39,956 1,437,375 5,698,453

3,019,148

82,300

29,012 7,046,983 1,762,799 4,941,032 25,273,588 113,233,202
29,012 7,205,744 1,873,638 4,986,551 26,710,963 128,080,803

$ 29012 $7.266288 $ 1905905 _$ 5,811,551 55600 $ 27,320,264 $ 135,941,279
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CITY OF TRACY
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Special Revenue Funds

Business
Economic Parking Improvement Asset
Uncertainty District District Forfeiture

REVENUES:
Taxes $ - 0% - % - $ -
Licenses, permits, and fees
Use of money and property 3,783 4,037
Intergovernmental
Special assessments 307 29,600
Other revenues 100,400 47,581
Charges for services

Total Revenues 4,090 130,000 51,618

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General government
Administration
Non-departmental

Public safety
Police 23,089
Fire

Public works
Development and engineering 15,350 141,841
Public works

Capital outlay
Debt service:

Principal payments

Interest and fiscal charges

Debt issuance costs

Total Expenditures 15,350 141,841 23,089

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (11,260) (11,841) 28,529

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Proceeds from issuance of long term debt

Transfers in
Transfers out (1,683,000)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (1,683,000)

Excess of Revenues and Other Financing
Sources Over (Under) Expenditures and
Other Financing Uses (1,683,000) (11,260) (11,841) 28,529

Fund Balances, July 1, 2007 19,621,924 67,294 (1,249) 46,585

Fund Balances, June 30, 2008 $ 17,938,924 $ 56,034 § (13,090) $ 75,114
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Special Revenue Funds

Proposition K State Community
Proposition ~ Transportation ~Transportation Gas TEA Development Landscaping
1b Development Tax Tax Street Grant Block Grant District

$ - $ 2,073,186 $ 1,166,103 % - $ - $ - 8 -
12,031 73,278 184,910 249,161 1,092 97,149

1,304,551 743,492 1,423,387 219,439 423,982
2,273,642
9,589
1,316,582 2,146,464 2,094,505 1,672,548 219,439 425,074 2,380,380
52,850 49,040 96,450

150,000 89,816
1,682,086 204,000 1,681,726

862 1,411,961 594,503 219,434 334,000
862 1,884,936 1,411,961 847,543 219,434 423,816 1,778,176
1,315,720 261,528 682,544 825,005 5 1,258 602,204
1,315,720 261,528 682,544 825,005 5 1,258 602,204
1,331,400 3,603,267 3,669,073 13,562 836 1,772,777
$ 1315720 $ 1,502,928 $ 4,185811 $ 4494078 § 13,567 % 2,094 $ 2,374,981
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CITY OF TRACY
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

(Continued)
Special Revenue Funds
Residential
and Commercial South County Traffic Community
Rehabilitaion Fire Congestion Access
Loan Authority Relief CTV
REVENUES:
Taxes $ - 9 - $ - $ -
Licenses, permits, and fees
Use of money and property 34,514 23,348
Intergovernmental 7,336,399
Special assessments
Other revenues
Charges for services 168,191 113,886
Total Revenues 34,514 7,504,590 23,348 113,886
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government
Administration 91,449
Non-departmental 30,163
Public safety
Police
Fire 7,059,219
Public works
Development and engineering
Public works 356,118
Capital outlay 189,363
Debt service:
Principal payments
Interest and fiscal charges
Debt issuance costs
Total Expenditures 7,248,582 356,118 121,612
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 34,514 256,008 (332,770) (7,726)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Proceeds from issuance of long term debt
Transfers in
Transfers out (328,410)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (328,410)
Excess of Revenues and Other Financing
Sources Over (Under) Expenditures and
Other Financing Uses 34,514 (72,402) (332,770) (7,726)
Fund Balances, July 1, 2007 653,399 1,277,684 332,770 (81,186)
Fund Balances, June 30, 2008 $ 687,913 $ 1,205,282 § - §  (88,912)
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Special

Revenue
Funds Debt Service Funds Capital Projects Funds
2007
Lease Regional Residential
Interest Revenue Mall Specific Plan General Infill
Stabilization Bonds Parks COP Improvement Projects Projects Projects
$ - 3 - $ - % - 9 - 8 - 3 -
2,218,520 161 23,700 116,358 623,384 219,458 337,375
445,419 1,293 596,085
19,673
2,218,520 161 23,700 116,358 1,068,803 240,424 933,460
489,244 2,756,794 956,306
140,000 2,140,000 305,000
83,436 91,899 523,945
237,043
460,479 2,231,899 828,945 489,244 2,756,794 956,306
2,218,520 (460,318) (2,208,199) (712,587) 579,559 (2,516,370) (22,846)
4,670,000
284,000 1,869,335 889,000 2,548,075
(4,417,410)
536,590 1,869,335 889,000 2,548,075
2,218,520 76,272 (338,864) 176,413 579,559 31,705 (22,846)
641,660 2,463,667 9,772,995 16,914,841 5,467,603
$ 2,218,520 $ 76272 $ 302,796 $ 2,640,080 _$ 10,352,554 $ 16,946,546 $ 5,444,757
(Continued)
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CITY OF TRACY

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

(Continued)
Capital Project Funds
Community Urban
Development Management Capital
I-205 Area Agency Plan Projects
Improvements Construction Facilities Deposits
REVENUES:
Taxes $ - $ - $ - 3 -
Licenses, permits, and fees
Use of money and property 122,508 408,678 364,709 67,623
Intergovernmental
Special assessments 671,900 »
Other revenues 194,687 995,199 157,714
Charges for services
Total Revenues 989,095 1,403,877 522,423 67,623
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government
Administration
Non-departmental 79,160
Public safety
Police
Fire
Public works
Development and engineering 405,078
Public works
Capital outlay 239,924 7,295,368 552,515 494,442
Debt service:
Principal payments
Interest and fiscal charges
Debt issuance costs
Total Expenditures 239,924 7,779,606 552,515 494,442
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 749,171 (6,375,729) (30,092) (426,819)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Proceeds from issuance of long term debt
Transfers in 3,150,000
Transfers out
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 3,150,000
Excess of Revenues and Other Financing
Sources Over (Under) Expenditures and
Other Financing Uses 749,171 (3,225,729) (30,092) (426,819)
Fund Balances, July 1, 2007 401,937 10,783,827 5,839,795 1,360,836
Fund Balances, June 30, 2008 $ 1,151,108 $7,558,098 $ 5,809,703 _§ 934,017
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Capital Projects Funds

Assessment
District
87-3
Improvement

South
MacArthur
Plan Area

Industrial
Specific
Plan
South

Presidio
Plan
Area

Tracy
Gateway
Area

Plan "C"

Total
Nonmajor
Governmental
Funds

$ - $ - 38
1,689 474,229

39,257

- 8 - 3 -
119,526 348,209

34,864
16,440

$ -

1,658,217

430,618

$ 3,239,289

7,787,647
11,451,250
4,522,985
1,641,283
282,077

1,689 513,486

154,390 348,209 16,440

2,088,835

28,824,531

2,643,627

322,884 973,700 16,440

3,784,509

91,449
307,663

23,089
7,059,219

802,085
3,923,930
23,275,876

2,585,000
699,280
237,043

2,643,627

973,700 16,440

322,884

3,784,509

39,004,634

1,689 (2,130,141)

(168,494) (625,491)

(1,695,674)

(10,180,103)

4,670,000
8,740,410
(6,428,820)

6,981,590

1,689 (2,130,141)

27,323 9,335,885

(168,494) (625,491)

2,042,132 5,612,042

(1,695,674)

28,406,637

(3,198,513)

131,279,316

$ 29,012 $ 7205744 $

1,873,638 $ 4,986,551 % -

$ 26,710,963

$ 128,080,803
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CITY OF TRACY
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
BUDGETED NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Parking District Business Improvement District

Variance Variance
Final Positive Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues:
Taxes $ - $ - % - 3 - 8 - $ -
Licenses, permits, and fees
Use of money and property 3,783 3,783

Intergovernmental
Special assessments 307 307 34,350 29,600 (4,750)

Other revenues 139,660 100,400 (39,260)
Charges for services
Total Revenues 4,090 4,090 174,010 130,000 (44,010)

Expenditures:
Current:

General government
Administration
Non-departmental

Public safety
Police
Fire

Public works
Development and

engineering
Public works
Intergovernmental
Capital outlay
Debt service:

Principal payments

Interest and fiscal charges

Debt issuance costs

Total Expenditures 35,440 15,350 20,090 166,230 141,841 24,389

35,440 15,350 20,090 166,230 141,841 24,389

Excess of revenues over (under)
expenditures (35,440) (11,260) 24,180 7,780 (11,841) (19,621)

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Proceeds from issuance of long term debt
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total Other Financing Sources
(Uses)

Excess of Revenues and Other
Financing Sources Over (Under)

Expenditures and Other Financing
Uses $ 535,4402 (11,260) $ 24,180 $ 7,780 (11,841) $  (19,621)

Fund Balances, July 1, 2007 67,294 (1,249)
Fund Balances, June 30, 2008 3 56,034 $  (13,090)
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115

Asset Forfeiture Transportation Development Proposition K Transportation Tax
Variance Variance Variance
Final Positive Final Positive Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Budget Actual (Negative) Budget Actual (Negative)
$ - 8 - 3 - § 2,300,000 $ 2,073,186 $ (226,814) $ 1,294,000 $ 1,166,103 $ (127,897)
4,037 4,037 73,278 73,278 184,910 184,910
2,290,977 743,492 (1,547,485)
5,000 47,581 42,581
5,000 51,618 46,618 2,300,000 2,146,464 (153,536) 3,584,977 2,094,505  (1,490,472)
43,600 52,850 (9,250)
28,461 23,089 5,372
155,000 150,000 5,000
2,088,050 1,682,086 405,964
3,060,977 1,411,961 1,649,016
28,461 23,089 5,372 2,286,650 1,884,936 401,714 3,060,977 1,411,961 1,649,016
(23,461) 28,529 51,990 13,350 261,528 248,178 524,000 682,544 158,544
$ (23,461) 28529 $ 51990 § 13,350 261,528 $ 248,178 $ 524,000 682,544 $ 158,544
46,585 1,331,400 3,503,267
$ 75,114 $ 1,592,928 $ 4,185,811
(Continued)



Revenues:
Taxes
Licenses, permits, and fees
Use of money and property
Intergovernmental
Special assessments
Other revenues
Charges for services

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Current:

General government
Administration
Non-departmental

Public safety
Police
Fire

Public works
Development and

engineering
Public works
Intergovernmental
Capital outlay
Debt service:

Principal payments

Interest and fiscal charges

Debt issuance costs

Total Expenditures

Excess of revenues over (under)

expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):

CITY OF TRACY

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

BUDGETED NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Proceeds from issuance of long term debt

Transfers in
Transfers out

Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses)

Excess of Revenues and Other

Financing Sources Over
« (Under) Expenditures and
Other Financing Uses

Fund Balances, July 1, 2007

Fund Balances, June 30, 2008

{Continued)
State Gas Tax Street TEA Grant
Variance Variance
Final Positive Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Budget Actual (Negative)
$ - 3 - $ - 8 - 8 - $ -
249,161 249,161
1,552,800 1,423,387 (129,413) 1,732,718 219,439 (1,513,279)
1,552,800 1,672,548 119,748 1,732,718 219,439 (1,513,279)
48,350 49,040 (690)
202,300 204,000 (1,700)
1,688,000 594,503 1,093,497 1,732,718 219,434 1,513,284
1,938,650 847,543 1,091,107 1,732,718 219,434 1,513,284
(385,850) 825,005 1,210,855 5 5
$ (385,850) 825,005 $ 1,210,855 $ - 5 % 5
3,669,073 13,562
$ 4,494,078 $ 13,567
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Community Development Block Grant Landscaping District South County Fire Authority

Variance Variance Variance
Final Positive Final Positive Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Budget Actual (Negative) Budget Actual (Negative)
$ - $ - 8 - 3 - 8 - § - 8 - 3 - 3 -
1,092 1,092 7,000 97,149 90,149
411,585 423,982 12,397 7,148,720 7,336,399 187,679
2,277,970 2,273,642 (4,328)
9,589 9,589
206,600 168,191 (38,409)
411,585 425,074 13,489 2,284,970 2,380,380 95,410 7,355,320 7,504,590 149,270
93,400 96,450 (3,050)

6,903,812 7,059,219 (155,407)

92,120 89,816 2,304
1,903,460 1,681,726 221,734

334,135 334,000 135 218,048 189,363 28,685
426,255 423,816 2,439 1,996,860 1,778,176 218,684 7,121,860 7,248,582 (126,722)
(14,670) 1,258 15,928 288,110 602,204 314,094 233,460 256,008 22,548
(328,410) __ (328,410)
(328,410)  (328,410)
$ (14,670) 1258 $ 15928 § 288,110 602,204 $ 314,004 $ 233,460 (72,402) $ (305,862)

836 1,772,777 1,277,684

$ 2,094 $ 2,374,981 $ 1,205,282

(Continued)
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CITY OF TRACY
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
BUDGETED NONMAJOR FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008
(Continued)

Community Access CTV Parks COP

Variance Variance
Final Positive Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues:
Taxes $ - 8 - % - $ - % - 8 -
Licenses, permits, and fees
Use of money and property 23,700 23,700
Intergovernmental .
Special assessments

Other revenues
Charges for services 123,500 113,886 {9,614)

Total Revenues 123,500 113,886 (9,614) 23,700 23,700

Expenditures:
Current:

General government
Administration 100,980 91,449 9,531
Non-departmental 22,080 30,163 (8,083)

Public safety
Police
Fire

Public works
Development and

engineering
Public works
Intergovrnmental
Capital outlay
Debt service:

Principal payments 135,000

Interest and fiscal charges 147,300 91,899

Debt issuance costs

Total Expenditures 123,060 121,612 1,448 282,300 2,231,899 (1,949,599)

2,140,000 (2,005,000)
55,401

Excess of revenues over (under)
expenditures 440 (7,726) (8,166) (282,300) (2,208,199)  (1,925,899)

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Proceeds from issuance of long term debt
Transfers in
Transfers out

284,000 1,869,335 1,585,335

Total Other Financing Sources
(Uses) 284,000 1,869,335 1,585,335

Excess of Revenues and Other
Financing Sources Over

(Under) Expenditures and
Other Financing Uses S 440 (7,726) $  (8,166) § 1,700 (338,864) $ (340,564)

Fund Balances, July 1, 2007 (81,186) 641,660

Fund Balances, June 30, 2008 $ (88,912) $ 302,796
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Regional Mall Improvement 2007 Lease Revenue Bonds

Variance Variance
Final Positive Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Budget Actual (Negative)
$ - 8 - 9 - $ - ¢ - 8 -
116,358 116,358 161 161
116,358 116,358 161 161
305,000 305,000 140,000 (140,000)
83,436 (83,436)
582,700 523,945 58,755 255,080 237,043 18,037
887,700 828,945 58,755 255,080 460,479 (205,399)
(887,700) (712,587) 175,113 (255,080) (460,318) (205,238)
4,670,000 4,670,000
889,000 889,000 284,000 284,000
(4,414,920) (4,417,410) (2,490)
889,000 889,000 255,080 536,590 281,510
$ 1,300 176,413 $ 175113  § - 76,272 $ 76,272
2,463,667

$ 2,640,080 $ 76,272
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Internal Service Funds are used to finance and account for special activities and services performed by a
designated department for other departments in the City on a cost reimbursement basis.

The concept of major funds introduced by GASB Statement No. 34 does not extend to internal service
funds because they do not do business with outside parties. GASB Statement No. 34 requires that for
the Statement of Activities, the net revenues or expenses of each internal service fund be eliminated by
netting them against the operations of the other City departments which generated them. The remaining
balance sheet items are consolidated with these same funds in the Statement of Net Assets.

However, internal service funds are still presented separately in the Fund Financial Statements, including
the funds below:

CENTRAL GARAGE FUND

Established to account for the maintenance of the City’s fleet of vehicles which services the
transportation needs of City departments and divisions.

CENTRAL SERVICES FUND

Established to account for monies received from various funds for postage, telephone, and copying
charges.

EQUIPMENT ACQUISITION FUND
Established to account for the replacement of equipment utilized by City departments.
BUILDING MAINTENANCE FUND

Established to account for monies received from various funds for the repair and maintenance of all City
owned and operated buildings.

INSURANCE FUND

Established to finance and account for the City’s risk management and insurance programs.
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CITY OF TRACY
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2008

Central Central Equipment
Garage Services Acquisition
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and investments $ 801,870 $ 527,433 § 5,131,645
Accounts receivable - net
Total current assets 801,870 527,433 5,131,645
Noncurrent Assets:
Loans receivable 129,099
Capital Assets:
Nondepreciable:
Artwork 7,611
Depreciable:
Buildings 266,462 51,093
Improvements 545,513 9,239
Equipment » 81,896 92,919 19,906,284
Total depreciable capital assets 893,871 102,158 19,957,377
Less accumulated depreciation (582,457) (66,406) (10,716,160)
Depreciable capital assets, net 311,414 35,752 9,241,217
Total capital assets, net 311,414 35,752 9,248,828
Total Assets $ 1113284 § 563,185 $§ 14,509,572
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Building
Maintenance Insurance Totals

$ 463,128 $ 4,820,848 § 11,744,924

8,138 8,138

463,128 4,828,986 11,753,062
129,099

7,611

317,555

554,752

28,157 18,219 20,127,475
28,157 18,219 20,999,782
(28,157) (18,219)  (11,411,399)
9,588,383

9,595,994

$ 463,128 $ 4,828,986 _$ 21,478,155

(Continued)

123



CITY OF TRACY
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2008

(Continued)
Central Central Equipment
Garage Services Acquisition
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 25,065 $ 14559 $ 217,727
Claims and judgments payable
Accrued interest payable 8,285
Total current liabilities 25,065 14,559 226,012
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Capital lease payable 395,533
Compensated absences 27,293 117,198
Claims and judgments payable
Total noncurrent liabilities » 27,293 117,198 395,533
Total Liabilities 52,358 131,757 621,545
NET ASSETS
Investment in capital assets, net of related debt 311,414 35,752 8,863,295
Unrestricted 749,512 395,676 5,034,732
Total Net Assets $ 1,060926 § 431,428 $ 13,888,027
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Building

Maintenance Insurance Totals
$ 12,015 $ 15,190 3 284,556
45,859 45,859
8,285
12,015 61,049 338,700
395,533
26,128 15,282 185,901
45,858 45,858
26,128 61,140 627,292
38,143 122,189 965,992
9,200,461
424,985 4,706,797 11,311,702

$ 424985 $ 4,706,797 $ 20,512,163
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CITY OF TRACY
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Central Central Equipment
Garage Services Acquisition

Revenues:

Charges for services $ 1,271,177 $ 1,299,450 $ 2,086,202

Other revenues 44 3 881

Total Operating Revenues 1,271,221 1,300,331 2,086,202

Expenses:

Maintenance and operation 1,253,991 1,597,636 309,908

Administration 28,220

Insurance costs and claims

Depreciation 45,474 5,689 1,806,809

Total Expenses 1,327,685 ‘ 1,603,325 2,116,717

Operating Income (Loss) (56,464) (302,994) (30,515)
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

interest income 1,200 936 10,999

Interest expense (17,692)

Gain on sale of capital assets 100,474
Net income before contributions (55,264) (302,058) 63,266
Contributions 1,946,397
Change in Net Assets (55,264) (302,058) 2,009,663
Net Assets, July1, 2007 1,116,190 _ 733,486 11,878,364
Net Assets, June 30, 2008 $ 1,060,926 $ 431,428 $ 13,888,027
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Building

Maintenance Insurance Totals

1,348,050 $ 1,875,350 $ 7,880,229
763,176 764,101

1,348,050 2,638,526 8,644,330
1,115,627 12,000 4,289,162
67,650 512,886 608,756
2,247,379 2,247,379

3,355 1,861,327
1,186,632 2,772,265 9,006,624
161,418 (133,739) (362,294)
581 9,735 23,451
(17,692)

4 100,474
161,999 (124,004) (256,061)
1,946,397

161,999 (124,004) 1,690,336
262,986 4,830,801 18,821,827
424,985 $ 4,706,797 $ 20,512,163
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CITY OF TRACY
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Central Central Equipment
Garage Services Acquisition

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Receipts from customers/interfund charges $ 1,644,048 $ 1,306,152 $ 2,140,752

Payments to suppliers and users (874,829) (827,461) (98,594)

Payments to employees (380,933) (772,051)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 388,286 (293,360) 2,042,158
Cash flows from Non-Capital Financing Activities:

Principal received on loans receivable 39,217

Principal paid for new loans (124,833)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Non-Capital

Financing Activities (85,616)
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:

Principal paid on long-term debt (125,300)

Interest paid (20,558)

Acquisitions of capital assets (2,592,692)

Proceeds from sales of capital assets 131,182
Net Cash Used by Capital and Related Financing Activities (2,607,368)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Interest received 6,833 936 10,999
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 6,833 936 10,999
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 395,119 (292,424) (639,827)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, July 1, 2007 406,751 819,857 5,771,472
Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30, 2008 3 801,870 $ 527,433 $ 5,131,645
Noncash Transactions:

Capital contributions $ - $ - $ 1,946,397
Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash

Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Operating Income (Loss) $ (56,464) $ (302,994) $ (30,515)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation 45,474 5,689 1,806,809
(Increase) Decrease in Operating Assets:

Accounts receivable 372,827 5,821 54,550
Increase (Decrease) in Oberating Liabilities:

Accounts payable 24,400 (31,916) 211,314

Compensated absences 2,048 30,040

Claims payable
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $ 388,286 $ (293,360) $ 2,042,158

128



Building

Maintenance Insurance Totals
$1,348050 $ 2,630,388 $ 9,069,390
(530,899) (2,916,772) (5,248,555)
(663,517) (383,316) (2,199,817)
153,634 (669,700) 1,621,018
39,217
(124,833)
(85,616)
(125,300)
(20,558)
(2,592,692)
131,182
(2,607,368)
3,404 66,484 88,656
3,404 66,484 88,656
157,038 (603,216) (983,310)
306,090 5,424,064 12,728,234

$ 463128 _$ 4,820,848 § 11,744,924

$ - $ - $ 1,946,397

$ 161,418 § (133,739) § (362,294)

3,355 1,861,327
(8,138) 425,060
17 13,961 217,776
(11,156) (8.313) 12,620
(533.471) (533.471)

$ 153634 $ (669,700) $ 1,621,018

129



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

130



AGENCY FUNDS

131



AGENCY FUNDS

GASB Statement No. 34 requires that Agency Funds, the only fiduciary funds the City has, be presented
separately from the Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements.

Agency Funds account for assets held by the City as an agent for individuals, government entities, and
non-public organizations. These funds include the following:

87-3 ASSESSMENT FUND

Established to account for the assets held on behalf of the 87-3 Assessment District property owners
until they are remitted to the bond trustee.

84-1 ASSESSMENT DISTRICT FUND

Established to account for the assets held on behalf of the 84-1 Assessment District property owners
until they are remitted to the bond trustee.

89-1 COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT FUND

Established to account for the assets held on behalf of the 89-1 Community Facilities District property
owners until they are remitted to the bond trustee.

94-1 ASSESSMENT DISTRICT FUND

Established to account for the assets held on behalf of the 94-1 Community Facilities District property
owners until they are remitted to the bond trustee. :

93-1 COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT FUND

Established to account for the assets held on behalf of the 93-1 Community Facilities District property
owners until they are remitted to the bond trustee.

98-1 COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT FUND

Established to account for the assets held on behalf of the 98-1 Community Facilities District property
owners until they are remitted to the bond trustee.

98-3 COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT FUND

Established to account for the assets held on behalf of the 98-3 Community Facilities District Property
owners until they are remitted to the bond trustee.

98-4 ASSESSMENT DISTRICT FUND

Established to account for the assets held on behalf of the 98-4 Community Facilities District property
owners until they are remitted to the bond trustee.
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AGENCY FUNDS (Continued)
99-1 COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT FUND

Established to account for the assets held on behalf of the 99-1 Community Facilities District property
owners until they are remitted to the bond trustee.

99-2 COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT FUND

Established to account for the assets held on behalf of the 99-2 Community Facilities District property
owners until they are remitted to the bond trustee.

2000-01 ASSESSMENT DISTRICT FUND

Established to account for the assets held on behalf of the 2000-01 Assessment District property owners
until they are remitted to the bond trustee.

2000-02 ASSESSMENT DISTRICT FUND

Established to account for the assets held on behalf of the 2000-02 Assessment District property owners
until they are remitted to the bond trustee.

2006-01 NE INDUSTRIAL # 2 FUND

Established to account for the assets held on behalf of the 2006-01 Assessment District property owners
until they are remitted to the bond trustee.

1999 1205 RESIDENTIAL REASSESSMENT DISTRICT FUND

Established to account for the assets held on behalf of the 93-2, 95-1, 96-1, 97-1, and 97-2 Assessment
District property owners until they are remitted to the bond trustee.

2000-03 ASSESSMENT DISTRICT FUND

Established to account for the assets held on behalf of the 2000-03 Assessment District property owners
until they are remitted to the bond trustee.

2003-01 ASSESSMENT DISTRICT FUND

Established to account for the assets held on behalf of the 2003-01 Assessment District property owners
until they are remitted to the bond trustee.

CULTURAL ARTS FUND
Established to account for deposits received for cultural arts projects within the City.
REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION IMPACT FUND

Established to account for transportation impact fees collected by the City and which are to be used for
transportation mitigation purposes.

MEDICAL LEAVE BANK FUND

Established to account for amounts deposited from employees converted sick leave.
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CITY OF TRACY
AGENCY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Balance Balance
July 1, 2007 Additions Deductions June 30, 2008
87-3 Assessment District
Assets:
Cash and investments $ 1,011,204 $ 1,797,094 $ 1,774526 $ 1,033,772
Cash and investments
with fiscal agents 4,198,418 1,891,186 1,725,144 4,364,460
Interest receivable 8,447 7,622 8,447 7,622
Total assets $ 5218069 $ 3695902 $ 3,508,117 _$ 5,405,854
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ -3 1,348 § - % 1,348
Due to assessment district
bondholders 5,218,069 3,694,554 3,508,117 5,404,506
Total liabilities $ 5218069 $ 3695902 $ 3,508,117 _$ 5,405,854
84-1 Assessment District
Assets:
Cash and investments $ 1,344684 $ 85315 § - $ 1,429,999
Interest receivable 13,457 12,127 13,457 12, 127
Total assets $ 1,358,141 § 97,442 % 13,457 $ 1,442,126
Liabilities
Due to assessment district
bondholders $ 1,358,141 3 97,442 9 13,457 $ 1,442,126
Total liabilities $ 1,358,141 3 97,442 $ 13,457 $ 1,442,126
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CITY OF TRACY
AGENCY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Balance Balance
July 1, 2007 Additions Deductions June 30, 2008
89-1 Community Facilities District
Assets:
Cash and investments $ 1660266 $ 1,369,436 $ 1,236,870 $ 1,792,832
Cash and investments
with fiscal agents 2,222,447 1,350,112 1,282,766 2,289,793
" Interest receivable 6,002 13,176 6,002 13,176
Total assets $ 3888715 $ 2732724 $ 2525638 _$ 4,095801
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ - $ 1,206 $ - 8 1,206
Due to assessment district
bondholders 3,888,715 2,731,518 2,558,638 4,061,595
Total liabilities $ 3888715 $ 2732724 $ 2558638 $ 4,062,801
94-1 Assessment District
Assets:
Cash and investments $ 340,840 $ 421956 $ 397,378 % 365,418
Cash and investments
with fiscal agents 684,485 420,290 391,236 713,539
Interest receivable 3,215 2,814 3,215 2,814
Total assets $ 1,028540 $ 845060 $ 791829 $ 1,081,771
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ - $ 1,171 § - 8 1,171
Due to assessment district
bondholders 1,028,540 843,889 791,829 1,080,600
Total liabilities $ 1,028540 3 845060 § 791829 $ 1,081,771
(Continued)
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CITY OF TRACY
AGENCY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

(Continued)
Balance Balance
July 1, 2007 Additions Deductions June 30, 2008
93-1 Community Facilities District
Assets: '
Cash and investments $ 2,238,578 $ 503,110 $ 359,300 $ 2,382,388
Cash and investments
with fiscal agents 549,303 271,025 261,890 558,438
Interest receivable 22,894 19,907 22,894 19,907
Total assets $ 2810775 $ 794042 § 644,084 $ 2,960,733
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ - $ 1,485 § - 3 1,485
Due to assessment district
bondholders 2,810,775 792,557 644,084 2,959,248
Total liabilities $ 2810775 $ 794042 $ 644,084 $ 2,960,733
98-1 Community Facilities District
Assets:
Cash and investments $ 1587924 $ 4499248 $ 4,396,134 § 1,691,038
Cash and investments
with fiscal agents 1,679,675 4,336,442 4,276,228 1,739,889
Interest receivable 12,108 10,621 12,108 10,621
Total assets $ 3279707 $ 8846311 $ 8684470 § 3,441,548
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ - % 3242 - 3 3,242
Due to assessment district
bondholders 3,279,707 8,843,069 8,684,470 3,438,306
Total liabilities $ 3279707 $ 8846311 $ 8684470 $ 3,441,548
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CITY OF TRACY
AGENCY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

137

Balance Balance
July 1, 2007 Additions Deductions June 30, 2008
98-3 Community Facilities District
Assets:
Cash and investments
with fiscal agents $ 343360 $ 430919 § 320,991 % 453,288
Cash and investments 41,103 430,778 427,986 43,895
Total assets $ 384463 $ 861697 $ 748977 9% 497,183
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ - 9 692 §$ - 3 692
Due to assessment district
bondholders 384,463 861,005 748,977 496,491
Total liabilities $ 384463 $ 861697 % 748977 $ 497,183
98-4 Assessment District
Assets:
Cash and investments $ 79,585 $ 202485 $ 214903 $ 67,167
Cash and investments
with fiscal agents 380,081 136,456 209,340 307,197
Interest receivable 759 512 759 512
Total assets $ 460425 $ 339453 $ 425002 $ 374,876
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 15,000 $ 1,525 % 15,000 §$ 1,525
Due to assessment district
bondholders 445,425 337,928 410,002 373,351
Total liabilities $ 460425 $ 339453 $ 425002 $ 374,876
(Continued)



CITY OF TRACY
AGENCY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

(Continued)
Balance Balance
July 1, 2007 Additions Deductions June 30, 2008
99-1 Community Facilities District
Assets:
Cash and investments $ 4821 § 743356 $ 739,189 % 8,988
Cash and investments
with fiscal agents 1,542,078 788,153 732,626 1,597,605
Total assets $ 1546809 $ 1531509 $ 1471815 $ 1,606,593
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ - 3 1,100 $ - 8 1,100
Due to assessment district
bondholders 1,546,899 1,530,409 1,471,815 1,605,493
Total liabilities $ 1546899 $ 1531509 §$ 1471815 § 1,606,593
99-2 Community Facilities District
Assets:
Cash and investments $ 101096 $ 836,426 % 825265 % 112,257
Cash and investments
with fiscal agents 1,612,589 885,606 816,293 1,681,902
Interest receivable 583 258 583 258
Total assets $ 1714268 $ 1722290 $ 1,642,141 $ 1,794,417
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ - $ 2194 $ - 3 2,194
Due to assessment district
bondholders 1,714,268 1,720,096 1,642,141 1,792,223
Total liabilities $ 1,714268 $ 1722280 $ 1642141 $ 1,794,417
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2000-01 Assessment District

Assets:
Cash and investments
Cash and investments
with fiscal agents
Interest receivable

Total assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Due to assessment district
bondholders

Total liabilities

2000-02 Assessment District

A A LEa i A At -l e

Assets:
Cash and investments
Cash and investments
with fiscal agents

Total assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable

Due to assessment district bondholders

Total liabilities

2006-01 NE Industrial # 2

Assets:
Cash and investments
with fiscal agents
Cash and investments

Due from assessment district bondholders

Total assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable

Due to assessment district bondholders

Total liabilities

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

CITY OF TRACY
AGENCY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Balance Balance
July 1, 2007 Additions Deductions June 30, 2008
$ 278,545 872,460 851,946 $ 299,059
368,774 858,060 833,216 393,618
2,307 2,042 2,307 2,042
$ 649,626 1,732,562 1687469 3 694,719
$ - 1,702 - % 1,702
649,626 1,730,860 1,687,469 693,017
$ 649,626 1,732,562 1,687,469 % 694,719
$ 1 79,898 79487 $ 412
114,576 82,880 76,163 121,293
$ 114,577 162,778 155,650 $ 121,705
3 2,290 1,454 2290 % 1,454
112,287 161,324 153,360 120,251
$ 114,577 162,778 155650 % 121,705
$ 1,351,150 781,967 619,035 $ 1,514,082
138,049 746,355 744,531 139,873

263 263

$ 1,489,462 1,528,322 1,363,829 $ 1,653,955
$ - 1,435 - % 1,435
1,489,462 1,526,887 1,363,829 1,652,520
$ 1,489,462 1,628,322 1,363,829 $ 1,653,955

(Continued)
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For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

1999 1205 Residential
Reassessment District

Assets:
Cash and investments
Cash and investments
with fiscal agents
Interest receivable

Total assets
Liabilities
Accounts payable
Due to assessment district bondholders

Total liabilities

2000-03 Assessment District

Assets:
Cash and investments
Interest receivable

Total assets
Liabilities
Due to assessment district
bondholders

Total liabilities

2003-01 Assessment District

Assets:
Cash and investments
Cash and investments
with fiscal agents

Total assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Due to assessment district
bondholders

Total liabilities

CITY OF TRACY
AGENCY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(Continued)

Balance Balance
July 1, 2007 Additions Deductions June 30, 2008
$ 702,151 1,014,301 979,260 $ 737,192
1,532,201 1,025,994 935,776 1,622,419
6,474 5,608 6,474 5,608
$ 2,240,826 2,045,903 1,921,510 $ 2,365,219
$ - 4,429 - 9% 4,429
2,240,826 2,041,474 1,921,510 2,360,790
$ 2,240,826 2,045,903 1,921,510 $ 2,365219
$ 31,362 2,002 - 8 33,364
325 283 325 283
$ 31,687 2,285 325 § 33,647
$ 31,687 2,285 325 % 33,647
$ 31,687 2,285 325 % 33,647
$ 2 75,118 75120 $ -
122,542 78,680 76,356 124,866
$ 122,544 153,798 151,476 3 124,866
$ 4,515 4,270 4515 % 4,270
118,029 149,528 146,961 120,596
$ 122544 153,798 151476 3 124,866
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For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Cultural Arts

Assets:
Restricted cash and investments

Total assets

Liabilities
Deposits

Total liabilities

Regional Transportation Impact

Assets:
Cash and investments
Interest receivable
Total assets
Liabilities
Due to other governments
Deposits

Total liabilities

Medical Leave Bank

Assets:
Cash and investments

Total assets

Liabilities
Deposits

Total liabilities

CITY OF TRACY
AGENCY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

141

Balance Balance
July 1, 2007 Additions Deductions June 30, 2008
3 8,770 - 2,506 % 6,264
3 8,770 - 2,506 % 6,264
$ 8,770 - 2506 % 6,264
$ 8,770 - 2506 % 6,264
$ 577,203 2,001,268 427613 $ 2,150,858

2,340 2,340

$ 579,543 2,001,268 429953 $ 2,150,858
$ - 405,516 - 3 405,516
579,543 1,595,752 429,953 1,745,342
$ 579,543 2,001,268 429953 $ 2,150,858
$ - 555 - $ 555
$ - 555 - 3 555
3 - 555 - $ 555
3 - 555 - % 555

(Continued)



CITY OF TRACY
AGENCY FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

{Continued)
Balance Balance
July 1, 2007 Additions Deductions June 30, 2008
Totals - All Agency Funds
Assets:
Cash and investments, restricted $ 8770 % - 8 2506 § 6,264
Cash and investments 10,137,414 15,681,161 13,562,508 12,256,067
Cash and investments
with fiscal agents 16,701,679 13,337,770 12,557,060 17,482,389
Interest receivable 78,911 74,970 78,911 74,970
Due from assessment district bondholders 263 263
Total assets $26,927,037 $ 29,093,801 $ 26,201,248 $ 29,819,690
Liabilities
Due to other governments $ - $ 405516 $ - $ 405,516
Accounts payable 21,805 27,253 21,805 27,253
Deposits payable 588,313 1,596,307 432,459 1,752,161
Due to assessment district
bondholders 26,316,919 27,064,825 25,746,984 27,634,760
Total liabilities $26,927,037 $ 29,093,901 $ 26,201,248 $ 29,819,690
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CITY OF TRACY
Summary of Statistical Section Pages
June 30, 2008

Statistical Section

This part of the City of Tracy’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed
information as a context for understanding what the in formation in the financial statements,
note disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the City’s overall financial
health.

Contents Page #
FINANICIAT TIHEIAS «.ooeeeeveeeeeeeeeeeereieeeesisteeeessaeeeesstasssesesesnssesetssssssrranseessesstasaasanbasesssnsasessssessssnaens 146

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City's
financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

REVENUE CAPACILY .....vveoveeeeerereeeiemciiarieae s ess et 154

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City’s most significant
local revenue source, the property tax.

DIEDt CAPACKLY ......evovcecrereceeiiincmee et 160

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of
the City’s current levels of outstanding debt and the City’s ability to issue additional
debt in the future.

Demographic & Economic Information ... 166

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
Understand the environment within which the City’s financial activities take place.

Operating INFOrmMAation ..............oooiriririeiniie e 170

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader
understand how the information in the City’s financial relates 1o the
services the government provides and the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the City’s
comprehensive annual financial reports for the year ended June 30, 2008. The City implemented GASB
Statement No. 34 during 1999-2000 fiscal year; schedules presenting government-wide information
include information beginning in that year.

143



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

144



FINANCIAL TRENDS

145



9wl

sjuounreda( SIOIAING SANRNSIUIWPY PUe douRUl{ ‘AdB1], JO AN) :30In0g

"0002-666 Jeak [BISY aU} Ul $£ gSVO pajuawajdul i usym uojeulIojul [eniode podel 0} uebaq AND ay] - 9joN

0r8°61Y L91T8Y $ 9S9%8S §  €L6S0L $ I€6I8L §  SBT'RE8 §  0TL088 §  685°€S6 § 8S6'810°T $
6¥0°SE 3L6'LY £09°€9 888°CL 01T L9LY8 6180V 789 ¥91°08
yIv°68 909201 TT6 €] 978°LY1 PIL Y1 0LT°€6 IseTyl 8¥1°9€1 9€E Vel
LLES6T £85°1€€ LT1°68€ 6STT8Y S11TTs 8¥T°099 055°L69 61T6¥L 8S¥08
800°GL1 968°681 612°01C €EL°LTT €EL°L6T 6C8VTE 68V°89¢ LLY'6LE 9G1°L8€
9Z6' %€ ¥81°8¢ ST6 Yy Teos SLI'EL 0TS YLIST LT8°ST €0EYE
€9L 8L 99, €18°1 99/ 6¥T 1€ yre's §ss 24
61€°6€1 068°9%1 8TSYoL 8L8°SLI T6LETT 0p€°882 1L6°6€€ S60°€SE 609°TS€
€8T T1£967 LEVYLE 0vT8LY 361°V8Y 9S'ElS 1€2TIS TILPLS 2087¢€9
€1 v6L6 78981 9¥$°ST LT6TY LTS6L SYo°SI C6ETY 198°CY
15988 $T8°101 9ST°1€T E1E°9p1 8Y6 €Y1 12029 LOO6€1 £65°GE1 T60°vEl
850951 €69%81 $  665bTCT $  I8E90€ §  €TEB6T $  806°ILE §  6LSLSE §  YTI96E $ 6v8°1SY  $
(s000 spuesnoyj ur)
0002 1002 2002 £002 ¥002 5002 9002 1002 8002

‘0E aunf papua siedA |eosid

(spuesnoy) uyj)

(Buiunooay jo siseg |entady)
SHV3A TVOSId ANIN 1SV

1IN3NOdNOD A8 S13SSV 13N
ADWVYL 40 ALID

juswulanob Arewnd jejo

pajoulsaiun
pajolsay
19ep pajejal Jo Jau
‘sjasse [eydeo ul pajsanu|
‘Juswiulanob Arewd

saAnoe adAj-ssauisng [2)o|

paousalun
pajouIsay
1qep pejejal Jo Jeu
‘sjosse jeyded ul pajsanu|
:saiAoe adfy-ssauisng

S)2SSE Jau SalIAloe jeluawuianob jejo |

pajousalun
pajouisey
1gap pejejal Jo jau
‘sjosse |ejdes ui pajsanu|
SOIIIAIIOE [BJUBLILIBA0D)



Lyl

(ponuiuo?)
€20'ZLL $ _S8P'E6 €zLiel  $ 6OV'Z9L ¢ Geo'e8l § _0/G80L $ _v€ZE6 _$ _GlZVEL § D‘v.._.m_. $
£98'2y 10082 99b'vE olv'ey 0Lv'L6 L0019 L01'8y 008'98 0Lv'6S
86€'LlL 2134 L0Ly Bgaq! €€0'GS 168'¥C €90°0L 6LL'EL 26601
6914 256 S0L €5 L9€'} £9L°L 8e0'tL G98 L)
S9¢ y6e oLy [494 Sov L6V GES 14°] €95
¥9 €S 59 vl 26 1194 601 (KAl 26
1LS'6 8ie'LL 118}V 699'z} or'vL L€6'E} LrL'SL 900'St 056'L1
08} v6l 002 ]%4 1ze 8.2 cle G92 182
Sv6'v ovL's 608'S ¥6S's €20°L S08°'L LLv'8 Ski'zi €1sch
GLL'6 928'6 66901 geT'Ll 29821 €TL L ziv'e) ySo'tl S0E'sl
9SL'vL ¥8b'S9 LST'L6 €50'611 G95'1L6 €9G6'LY L21°'LS SLv'LL Ly6'LL
L€8'6S 8.9'6Y 182'8. 125'66 o'y 0St'L2 9€6'61 ¥G5'6¥ ozy've
0e8's viL'0l ¥EL'0) 261’0l L5¥'S 999'8 1292 008't} 160°€l
.89 Si9 €V0'L 859 €69°L ¥90'L 800°} 182z L5¥'L
ovL 6LL ¥€9 619 ¥08 €16 129'e o8yl 90z'L
6 19 o¥ 2s Lig'e 08€'s 099'8 099°2 8.v'92
€50't $ /6C'8 691°L $ bLL'L $ 8es's $ 0€0P $ i18gs ¢ oosy $ 6825 $
086'9s $ ZzLC. leL'sl  $ ye'28 $ 128'66L $ €286 $  MI9ZLL $  1/Z7el §  9e9'lEl $
Lwe'ee vee'oe 2.1'82 y25'6¢C SS.'vE ¥8.'GE $99'8p 6v9'LY 8v¥8'eS
144 SS9 SeL 29 14°1] 8.6 186'€ Ly2'e 98y'e
90L €89 €8 €i6 19e'} 18¢ 8EY'L 66v'L Les't
2L’ 81004 19044 91611 Zsv'el ¥09'G1 29€'0L z6v'ol 880°LL
11 0l 2% 4 0% 88¢ (FA4 26S 999 vs
2es's €20'9 6.€'9 60€'L ¥29'8 186'8 182'0L 6€9'6 Sly'Ll
oL¥'L SSv'8 LeL'8 992'8 9.0°0L €9e'6 62094 o0L'94 98.'81
BEL'EE €6.'GY 6VS'GY 0/2'8S 990121 6€6'29 /v6'89 229'vL 88.'8/
- - - - - 098 90§ 6v9 (0742]
SvL'e €50 206 800'c 90¢e'y 929'c ¥66'€ ¥80'v 8vs‘e
0.0 192'c LSZ'¥ 0/0'€ £09'e BLL'Y 09.'e 626°C 20S'L
189'L1L 86.'GL €6E'El £€80'¥C zeL'eL 25602 1z8've L6E'6C 199'v2
anumr 881'91 S65'61 669'02 099'€Z $89'0C yEV'8T 81’0 v.0'GE
lev'e $ eo6¥'8 80¥'s $ oL's $ LL2'6 $ 869'9 $ cep'L ¢ 1ee'9 ¢ €8LL §
(s000 spuesnouy un
0002 1002 2002 €002 002 500¢ 9002 2002 800¢

"0€ QuNf PopUT SIESA [E0S1]

(Bununodoy Jo siseg |ensooy)
SYVIA TvOSId 3NIN LSV

S13SSV L3N NI SIONVHO
ADWVAL H0 ALID

soanuaAay weibold Juawulanos) Arewud jejoL
sanuaAay welbold seniAoy adA | -ssauisng |ejot

suoinquiueo pue syueib jeyded
suoinquiuod pue sjuesb buessdo
abeulelq
Jisuea]
8)SeMm pljog
Hodiry
Jamag
181
:salIAnoY adA}-ssauisng

senuansy weibold SaIAROY [BJUSWILIBADS) [BI0

suoinquucd pue sjuelb [eyded

suoinquiuod pue suelb Bupersdo
saljlARoe 1BY0
S80IAI18S AUNWILLOD PpUe Syied
syom a11gnd Jayio
$99) Juswdo|anaq

'S89IA18G 10 sabieyd

:SOIJIAJO. [BJUBWILIDAOS
:sanuanal weiboid

sasuadx3 juswiwianos) Alewnd |e10

sapiAloY 8dA | -ssaulsng [ejo L

abeuleiq
jisuelj
8)Sem pljos
Hoduy
Jamas
J9)EA
'saljiAoY adhj-ssauisng

sesusdxg SaNAOY [EJUSWUUIBAOS) [Bjo L

uoneoaldap pajesojjeun

198p wwua}-6uo| uo jsasau|

ainsial pue ainynd

Syiom dtiand

Kysjes angnd

juawuianohb |esausn
:SBIJIARO. |[EJUSWULIBAOD)

:sasuadx3y



14}

"SyJom 01jgNnd JO pES}SUI Pajedoj[eUN SB SINJONJISEJUI U uojeioaldap si pauodal D 8u) G002-¥002 Ul
‘0002-666 1L JBSA [EOSI) Ul € ‘ON JUSWSIEIS SV pajuawajdwul i usym uojeuLIojul [ENI0OR Hodal 0} uebag AilD ay L - loN

09878 $ Gz€T9 ¢ 06vY20F $  Zie'lZk $ €2069 $ €569 ¢ LL.¥E $ GeseL $ 89e'S9 §
06’12 €91} yog've piGLL £92'95 660°22 80E'L ¥¥6'0L 6/9'L
0.v'99 29118 TAN: £08'c0} 09221 852'62 69t'ce 188°L9 689'/S
L1812 G96°0¥ 88Y v 269°9Y 908 905'9¥ €GeS £28'09 186'G9
¥9L'L G6Y'6 12081 €/9¢ (2sp) z.8') G98°1 G6.L'1 1G0'}
051 9502 015'G1L G8Z'l (G¥S) )

) . ¥9e 259 6l
719'L 6eY'T 195 88¢'C (122) ozl Gog'L 96L'} 80}
€50'92 0L¥'1E L1¥'92 610ty 8SZ'ey QP 882'LS 820'65 0€S'¥9

smc (95077) (o15's1) (s8Z°1L) S¥S 1

8Ly’ hwxm L.e'e ore'y 09.'2 SLL 0€6 860°L Gl2'e
LIE'S 9LL'L) 2611 809'6 9/5'C 8€L'S ¥e6'L 90¥'0L 910'zL
oG’z Bmw srv'e 65.'c sgl'e 599's L8V gze'o 09¢
8052 z0z'e 6ec'e 6182 z9¢'s 8/6'L 6.6'C £.€'2 L2e'y
180'9 L11°1 8L9'8 €CL'6 611 z9l'cL 186'CL £50'€l L0¥'TL

) . 00L'L 808'L 0102 166°L
£0e's 1£1'6 65211 SSL'pL 988'slL 919'/1L €19'v2 698'cZ 091°1€
££0°09 09¢g'1z 200'8S G29vL 112722 /¥8'6 (22€'81) 20021 612)
9eg'6l 899’} £62'9 1y8'cl G1.°9S £22'se (285) 6v1L'6 2299
Lv'or ¢ zZe9'6L $  60L1S ¢ #8209 ¢ (sev'ez) ¢ (ose's)) $ (oze'zl) ¢ esg8'z ¢ (iv8'9) $

(s000 spuesnoy; ui)
0002 1002 2002 £002 002 5002 9002 /002 8002

"0€ dUN[" PapU3 SJETA [E0SIT

(Buunod9y jo siseg [en12dYy)
SHV3A TTvOSId ANIN 1SV
(penupuo9) $13SSY 13N NI SIONVHO
ADWAL 4O ALID

yswuianob Arewud jejo}

saniAloe adAl-ssauisng
SBIJIAIOB |BJUSWIUIBA0D)

S)osse Jau ul abueyn
juawuianob Arewnd jejot
saniAnoe adAj-ssaulsng [ejo L

slgjsuel],
snoaue||eosIN
sBujuses jsalaju|

:salpAnoe adAl-ssauisng

SONIAOE [BJUSWIUIBAOD [ej0 )

slajsuel)
Snoaue|jaosiy
sBujules yuswysaau]
nalj ul ||9IYaA JOJoW PaJoMISaIUN
saxe) Jayl0
SoXe} asn pue saes
saxe} asiyouelq
saxe) Auadoid
Soxe )
:SONJIAIJOR [BJUBWILIDAOS)
S}9SSE Jau Ul sabueyd Jayjo pue senuaAal [elauss)

anuanal (asuadxa) Jou juswuianob Arewnd jejo)

salAoe adAy-ssauisng
SOIJIAROR [BJUBLILIBACD)

anuaAaJ/(asuadxa) JoN



ovl

TTOLITS  L8Y'€6 $ €TLIELS  SSEWLIS  959T81$  I1LSB0I$  vET66 §  OIEPETS  LIVIELS juswulenob Aewud gjot
L98TY 100°8C 994 ¢ TEE'SS oL 16 LOOT9 LOT'8Y 86L°9S 0LY6S safiAoe adA-ssauisnq [gjoiang
LSTET ¥6€ 166 685°¢ S9p L99°1 GES 061°L 00T abeureiq
658 0zL 129 vL9 621 1LT°E v61°C TET’E 620°C yisuei]
Sy S€T LET 6V 152 83Y S19 98¢ L68 uodiy
1LS°6 8111 L8811 $85vT YTy'pl LEG6EL 891°G1 900°S1 0S6°L1 8jsem pljos
00€°9 78C°S 8188 ST86 TIS°El P1¥vC 801°LI ye6'vl 0S1°91 Jomeg
SyrCl ZS1°01 788°11 0191 06£°19 0€T'L1 L8YTI 05091 061 Isjep\

:saljIAoe adAj-ssauisng

SSIVL 984°69 LST'L6 £50°611 981°16 Y9G Ly LTIIS TIS'LL LY6 1L senIAnoe. [ejuswuIsAob |ejojgng
- - - - - 16§ 16S 765 16S 199p wusl-buoj ul jsalsyu)
8€0°C £6T°C T66°1 61T LO6°T 881 056t 799t SP9‘C Sa0INBS
Aunwwod pue ‘uopealdal ‘syied
9E1°19 £V6°6Y 9CE‘C8 PP €01 6IL°LL TTS°81 L08°6T £81°6S 78¢€°¢S sylom alignd
8hEL 0256 201°8 798°8 669°S TES'LI 696°L SP6°S LLY'S Buussuibus pue juswdojanaq
$LT SLET 696°C T61°€ L66°C 8L9Y SE9°S 8%9°L 90S°L all4
1€6 YLO'T LET1 w1 ebL 08¢°1 - 1691 09L°1 'l aaljod
8207 $ 18T $ 1£9 $ Sz 0§ yTCIr $ €01 $ ¥8 0§ w1 § v6e  $ juswuienob |elsusn
SAJIAIOE |_JUSWIUIBA0D)
weiboid/uoiouny

(SO0 spuesnoy) ui)

0002 1002 200e €002 ¥00C SG00¢ 900¢ £002 800¢

‘0E aunp pepug siesA |eosld

(Bununooay jo sisegq |en1doy)
SHVIA TvOSId ININ LSV
AVIOO0Ud/NOILLONNLG A8 SINNIATYH NVIDO0Ud
AJVYl 40 ALID



0S1

juswreda(] S901AISS ANRISIUIWPY puE doueul,] ‘Aoel] Jo L11D :29In0§

"3NUSAE B SB 1O 1SIIANUI ‘DOIAIOS JO] POYIEULIEd SJUNODIE YSEO UI 310M SPUny aY) [[8 198 9y 03 anp
POAIOSAI SB SpPUNJ 90IAIIS 1G3p )1 Ul S30UB[Eq PUNy s} JO [[B paLyisse[d A1) oy 007 ul Sujuuidag - s10N

981°€9$  ThPT6$  T9o16Z1$  8S9TII$  Tv0981 S  SISLST $§  SHYISIS  S6EISTS SE6V91$  Spuny [ejuawulanob Jayio je |ejo)
$89°1 6T LOL'S LIL'9 660°8 - - - - spunj a21ABs 199Q
TOLES ¥S1°18 0L0°101 1ps‘sTl 092°SH1 8¥L‘801 L9901 €16'EL 88596 spuny sposfoid |eyded
£5€°T ST1T 616°S 0198 SOI‘T1 §sTTI £8691 16¥°LT 1zZ1°s€ spunj anuaaal |efoads
:uj papodas panlasalun
ovp's §  1L99%  99¥9I $  06L°1CT $  8LSIT $  TIS9E $§  S6L6C §  166°6Y $ 97Z'eE $ pantesay
spun} [eyuswuanob Jayjo ||y
88L6 $ 8¢86$  LLOOI $§ SKO'ET $§ 78901 $ 91861 § 00861 $§ 66V0T $ 6L5°81 $ puny |esauab jejo
8796 £€5°8 7199 8LYT1 £2ESI S06'81 8€0°61 1LY'61 €61°L1 pantasalun
091 § S0ET$  sop'e $§ L9 0§ 6SEl1 § 116 $ 9. $ 82T $ 98¢'T § pansesay
pun4 |eJBusD)
(s000 spuesnoy; up)
6661 0002 1002 2002 €002 #002 5002 9002 8002

‘0€ aunf papus sieaA [edsid

(Bununoody jo siseg [enJady payIpow)
SHVIA TVIOSId NIL LSV
SANN4 TVLNIWNAYIAO0D ‘SIONVIVE ANNJ
ADVYL 40 ALID



IS1

%YLTI %EV'6 %L6'6 %56 %G558 %08°C1 %I10°LT %896 %€E6'L %9¢°01 sainypuadxa jeydes-uou
10 abejusoiad e se 8o1M8s Jqag
96887 $§ 99Y6C $  8569E$  TO¥9E § €0tz § (B0s9) §  (L8€9) §  9f€ s (817 § 108¢l § ssoue(eq puny ul abueyo 1aN
(@60 Py6'L wyzor) (s9z°1) YEI'TT @ 0L (sasn)
saainos Buioueuy Jayjo [ejo
(ZL0YE) Juabe moosa puog 0} JuswAed
(L86°D) (TL69) (16v'81)  (¥5842) (06£9) (180°%) (+0€°6) (s65°11) (0s1°22) (089°TD) Ino sisysuel|
L86°1 089°S SEVIT 0198 sTI‘s LISy y0€'6 S65°11 8¥1°CT 089°C1 ul sigjsuel}
000°S1 0TLSS 0L9'y spaadoud puog
:(sesn) saoinos Bupueuy 19YIO
968°8C 86L°6T $10°6C 90L°CS 887°8T (Zy9°8h) (L8¢€°9) 9¢€ (6L1°T) I£1°6 sainypuadxe
(Japun) J2A0 SNUBASY JO $S90XT]
€ET6E 6£6°SY LS9°SS 961°6S €8L18 6ST 181 6£5°L6 166°001 ¥69°111 1L6°€01 sainjpuadxa |ejo L
168 989 Y6£T 9TE1 L63T 916 ST8l 0LSC 1€6°C LLI'E [ejuswiusanobiau|
£0S°C LET $]S09 9Nnss|-921AI9S 193(
€T 1£0°C £59°C 918C 108°C 0LS‘E y8Y°c 6¥8°¢ YE6°€ 06£°€ Jsasajul-aolAIas 1q8Q
6L0°1 Sh8 S68 0r6 S00°1 08¢ 090°S 06€°T 0EY'1 079°¢ ledioupd-a01A19s JqoQ
T18°01 88Tl ££591 090°91 yyee £8€9T1 SLLRE €591 £9€°LY TIL'ST Aepno |eyde)
LOT'E S0TC 85T°CT 0E¥T S8Y°C YELT ¥98°C 600°€ LITE 9p1°e uonealoal pue syed
SET9 795°S 699 69Y°S SILS ¥esL TTeS 089‘€ €078 7808 SHJOM 3land
6091 LIT'S €649 SHSL ovL'L L61°L 8716 S01°CI | § 74 y11°01 wawdojeAsp Aunwwo)
y0s‘€ 0509 Y9T'L 98€°g 6906 685°6 LEETI 102°C1 y6S°€1 7091 all4
0€S°L LS1'8 1L0°6 19¥°01 | Exard| ST9°€l 01T's1 yE8°sl LOY'L1 191°0C solj0d
VEST $  ¥E9T $  LTE § €9 $ 86E¥ $ 8€TSs 0§ vesY 0§ o0Ly 0§ vLT9 0§ 0eL8  § Juawwianob [ereusn
:sain)puadxy
62189 L69°SL 12978 206111 1L0°011 L19TE1 S1°16 LTETOT S15°601 TOLELT sonuanal [Bjol
yITT 77 1854 €8€C 9¢T°¢ YEIS Loy ¥89°C 0I8°1 860°C Byio
LT6Y1 0zz¢ol 956Y Twe'1e LLE'ST LYT6E 96T°Y1 008°CI £v0°€T spousip
JUDWISSOSSE WOJ) suonnguuo)
L98 S80°1 98¢l 00€°1 659°1 £91°6T 085°0¢C 96L°01 S8°8 37287 sjuswissasse [eadg
8I1°S 065y $TT9 0+9°9 988°S $06°9 6259 1$0°S €16y 981°¢ s8oIAI9s Joj sebieyd
00t'9 L6LOY yeErTl 796°C1 8¥TEl €8T°L1 LES'ST 84691 0€1°81 8LS €1 lejuswuionobieiu
889°¢ 960°S £SE°T1 8€0°11 1868 9L5C 19€°S 6LYL 006°6 26611 Auadoid pue Asuow jo asn
€61 (1144 81¢ LOE LYE L9V 70¢€ 067 €LT1 SIST S}aji0} pue saul4
192°12 SE1°9T LTSt y19°1T 6€99C L6V'S yh6°y 889°C 105°€ 6£8°C S99} pue ‘sjwiad 'sasuddl
196v1 §  T6391'$  91L0T$ 9ILET 0§ 8699C § SyE0OE §  LZ80E §  SOI'OF §  €vE®y § 808y soxe]
:SONUBADY
(s000 spuesnoy) ur)
6661 0002 1002 2002 £002 ¥002 G002 9002 1002 8002

"0E aun[ papu3 SJEaA [eosi

(Buuno29Yy Jo siseq |eNJO2Y PIIPOA)

SYVIAA TVOSId N3L LSV
SANNL TVANIWNNUIAOD ‘STONVIVE ANN4 NI STONVHO

ADVYL 40 ALID



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

152



REVENUE CAPACITY

153



12

wawpeda S92IAI9S AlRJSIUILPY pue aoueuld ‘Aoel} jo A1) :80.nog

¥2€'6€0'0S 68C'6€C'€ €88'v18 vy'L66°'L €GT'L0v'eL  199'269 8GZ'eVeC 0€S'GY9'0€E 8002
Liszye'sy G/€'280°L €22'56. ¥62'0L0'C gzL'geT'el 168918 ¥8Z'08Y 8LE'6G8'€C  L00T

LEV'SOL OV 98v'168'c 612602 851°208'} 96L'VLL'CL  L96°LS9 680'658 ceLLv'el 9002
vioziL'zee 915'86¢€°} 818'LLL 719'669'L 6vE'SLL'LL  928'989 8v8'Lv0’l €86'G¢L'vL G002
¥66'9G8°L€ £00'9.2°} 6EE'669 160'6€9'L LLL'T86'0L  0TL'6SS GEV'6LL G89'026'GL  ¥00C
181'561'8T ¥9e'8ee’L €0L'129 zL0'8es'L Tk AN 258'619 899'69¢ €LG'GLL'EL €002
Tys'vy8've 6.£'8CL'L GZ6'G59 G66'€2S ) zzL'elo’s GEL'PYS 9/2'v0v 0LL'696'LL 2002
vis'siLie 018'666 LST'6LL z82'C0¢E’}L 159'9LL'L 085'88Y 12.'8€S L02'068'6  1L00C

Tvs'96.L'LL L/9'¥06 G18°L.S 6.6°L20°) £19'0809 6Y1'65Y L€8'86€ 89r'€0€'8 0002
68Y'PCr'GLS  008°'€98% L19'15¢$ 99.'896$ L8G'€6T'G$  80Z'LEVS 602'G0ES Zre'voT'Ls 6661

el FETT) jusisues | asiyouelq saleg asuaol Jajsuel] juaung IB3A
pue xe| ssauishg Auadoid Auadoid |easi4
uoljepodsuel |

Sieap |eosi4 ua] jseT
sadA] pung [ejusaiuIdA0g |IY
221nog Ag sanuaAay xel

Kaeud] jo M1



SS1

Juswedaq Se2IAIOS SAIRJISIUILIPY PUB dUeuLy ‘Aoel) Jo AND T
J0SSaSSY PUE J3)|0Jju0d-10pny 8y} Jo 30O~ Aluno) uinbeop uesg °|

:30In0g
%S5062°0 LEV'S98°SLIT £ST1°THY'8 612°29%611 1LESHRHI0°T 91T8SITLL'S 6LY9SY01C S69°¥19°7E6'8 SY6°1£8°6C $SSTTETO8] S61°09%°001°L 8002
%S06T°0  8SERSY VLT TW9°LT'8 060°92r621 016°659°€ST°1 SOLTTO'ILY'6  YEO'LTO'90T  6EL'BYY'LLI6 ¥86°0L8'8C  98£T9T'9T6T 69€SISTIL'L 2002
%01v2°0 698 bET'ELT T $58v68°8 0¥9°6Z0°811 £80°000°790°1 S8TISLOI6'S ¥88°01L°€0C 691°79¥ V116 90Z810°0€ OLE'E06°LOV'T £65°0¥S9LY'L 9002
%60¥YZ°0 €STELS 9E0°T y0T'8¥1°6 796°06L V6 S6£°0€6°056 LST'8S0T8Y°L S9Y°L60°L6T TTL'SST6LY L 19L°6¥6°ST €19°980°L1T1 8YE611°9€9°9 G002
%EIVT0 TEBVTO'LEG TT0°LYS6 159°688°L6 £07°985°6v8 STI06£°585°9 LO6V8L €8T CTEO'SLI‘69L'D €LOV6TTT TT8°8T9°SH0°1 LETTSTTOL'S 002
%0L6T°0 8£9°179°788 859°€89°6 YTH'ELT S8 LS TET V08 €81°99€°LILS 6E 9V ELT TESTEB°068°S 6LT10V°61 886°156°606 S9T'6LY 196y €002
%865€°0 056688118 185°80L°6 8EY'ETII8 €60°SL66EL €6LYTOTHO’S €197H0°191 90¥°690°€0T°S TSI9ET LL T6L'EIL'E08 Y61TT8EY 2002
VIN 6ILTYS SEL 0IL'861°6 9LT'9TI‘IL £S1°S19°€LY TT0°661°68E Y 8SL°166°TYT 08L°061°CES Y £€9°976'v1 0€L°€80°00L LIY08I°LIS'E 1002
VIN 9L6PBE‘0YI 76576988 197°088%9 LOE'LG6TV8S S9L0EY099°E 6T8°C1S SET Y6S¥r6°86L°E 60LT1SCT £08°618°98S 780°€19°661°€ 0002
V/IN 9L9°0vE6LS ILI060°8 $ vIVI88‘E9 $ E€EV'6¥S'ETS  $ 166°69L°090°C $ 9Y1°8STITI $ LEI'STOTBI‘E $06°6LY01 $ 69LLTS 16V $9t'020°089°C 6661
ey anjeA suondaox3y painoasun painoag anjeA suoljdwax3 1ejoL suonydaoxy Auadoid Apadoid 0¢ sunf
xe], passassy ssa passassy ss97 |einynouby Jeuysnpu| jepuapisay  papug es
a1 ajqexe | ajqexe ] /IEIDIBIWOYD |easid
el Kousby juewdojarapay Koea] jo KD
SYVY3A TvOSId N3L LSV

ALY3dO¥d F1GVXV.L 40 INTVA TVNLOV A31VINILSA ANV INTTVA a3SSIASSY

AJVAL 40 ALID



961

yusweda(] S8IAISS SANEISIUILLPY pue adueuld ‘Adel] jo ApD g
19]|03U02-10)PNY 3Y) JO WO~ Aluno) uinbeor ues °|

:804n0g

%09L1°0 %09L1°0 %6LLT0 %6LL1L0 %ILLTO VIN VIN VIN VIN VIN SPISIA PWIO [V
%I€10°0 %€810°0 %VE10°0 %TSE0°0 %6££0°0 %00¥0°0 %00£0°0 V/IN VIN VIN ousig abs)l09 Aunwwo) eysq
%006L°CT %06LT°0 %1082°0 %1080 %E6LT°0 %0000°LT %000£°0 VIN VIN VIN 4vd3
%0L61°0 %0261°0 %8661°0 %8661°0 %ST61°0 %0091°0 %00S1°0 VIN VIN VIN ousiq jooyds payiun Aoel |
%7C961°0 %C961°0 %2961°0 %E£961°0 %¢£961°0 %0012°0 %0002°0 VIN VIN V/IN Auno) uinbeor ueg

%S06T°1 %S06C°1 %0141 %60¥T'1 %1Vl %0L6T'1 %865€E°1 V/N V/N VN 9jey Joalig [ejoL
%00€0°C1 %00£0°C1 %€0C1°0 %¢€0C1°0 %v0T1°0 %0LY1°0 %86L1°0 V/N VIN V/N Kouaby juswdojanapay
%8T0L1°0 %6C0L1°0  %LOTI0 %9021°0 %6021°0 %00S1°0 %0081°0 V/IN VIN V/IN oiseg A0
%0000°T %0000°1 %0000 %0000°1 %0000°1 %0000°1 %0000°1 %0000°1 %0000°1 %0000°1 Ana spim-Aunod olseg
800T L00T 900¢ 500¢ 002 €002 2002 1002 000¢ 6661

SYVIA TvOSId NaL LSV

(INTVA a3SSISSY 40 001$ ¥3d ALVY)
S3LVY XV.1 ALd3d0dd ONIddVTIIAO ANV LO3NId
ADWVYL 4O ALID



CITY OF TRACY
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Percent Value of
of Total City Property
Current Percent  Delinquent Total Tax Subject to

Fiscal Total Tax of Levy of Levy Tax Collections Local
Year Tax Levy Collections Collected  Collected Collections  to Tax Levy Tax Rate
1999 $ 4,446,631 $ 4,446,631 100.00% $ 0.00 $ 4,446,631 100.00% $ 2,816,587,412
2000 4,899,025 4,899,025 100.00% 0.00 4,899,025 100.00% 3,182,025,137
2001 5,292,521 5,292,521 100.00% 0.00 5,292,521 100.00% 3,792,944,594
2002 6,135,524 6,135,524 100.00% 0.00 6,135,524 100.00% 4,532,190,780
2003 7,140,790 7,140,790 100.00% 0.00 7,140,790 100.00% 5,203,069,406
2004 8,987,072 8,987,072 100.00% 0.00 8,987,072 100.00% 6,675,942,094
2005 10,306,934 10,306,934 100.00% 0.00 10,306,934 100.00% 7,774,533,118
2006 12,685,686 12,585,686 100.00% 0.00 12,585,686 100.00% 8,663,313,347
2007 17,529,617 17,529,617 100.00% 0.00 17,529,617 100.00% 9,003,246,048
2008 13,551,184 13,551,184 100.00% 0.00 13,551,184 100.00% 8,722,158,216

Note: San Joaquin County is on the Teeter Plan. The County remits 100% of all taxes
assessed and keeps all penalties and interest on all delinquent taxes.

Source:
1. San Joaquin County - Office of the Auditor-Controller
2. City of Tracy, Finance and Administrative Services Department
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Direct and Overlapping Governments

City of Tracy
Sales Tax Rates

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal
Year City Transportation San Joaquin Total
Ended Direct Prop K Development Act County State Sales Tax
June 30, Rate Rate Rate Rate Rate Rate
1999 1% 0.50% 0.25% 1% 5% 7.75%
2000 1% 0.50% 0.25% 1% 5% 7.75%
2001 1% 0.50% 0.25% 1% 5% 7.75%
2002 1% 0.50% 0.25% 1% 5% 7.75%
2003 1% 0.50% 0.25% 1% 5% 7.75%
2004 1% 0.50% 0.25% 1% 5% 7.75%
2005 1% 0.50% 0.25% 1% 5% 7.75%
2006 1% 0.50% 0.25% 1% 5% 7.75%
2007 1% 0.50% 0.25% 1% 5% 7.75%
2008 1% 0.50% 0.25% 1% 5% 7.75%
Source:

Office of the Auditor-Controller, San Joaquin County
Finance and Administrative Services Department, City of Tracy
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DEBT CAPACITY
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CITY OF TRACY
RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Government Activities Business Activity
General Special Water Water/Sewer Sewer Airport Total
Fiscal Obligation Assessment Capital Revenue Notes Revenue Notes Primary Per
Year Bonds (a) Bonds (b) Leases (b) Bonds (b) Payable (b) Bonds (b) _ Payable (b) Government Capita _Population
1999 $ 40,400,174 $ 78,760,174 $ - $ 2505000 $ 2916958 §$ 4,100,000 $ 357,092 $ 129,396,490 §$ 2,561 § 50,533
2000 - 40,413,000 90,843,000 - 2,270,000 2,813,509 3,905,000 332,615 140,909,739 2,478 56,861
2001 38,083,000 93,138,000 512,684 2,030,000 2,704,239 3,705,000 306,638 140,786,199 2,301 61,180
2002 33,020,000 125,525,000 439,929 1,775,000 2,589,838 3,495,000 279,161 167,403,089 2,547 65,735
2003 32,785,000 154,555,000 383,890 1,510,000 2,469,716 3,340,000 249,371 195,542,348 2,794 69,990
2004 30,045,000 151,113,000 325,723 1,235,000 2,343,589 34,065,000 217,216 219,561,744 2,964 74,080
2005 27,095,000 146,735,000 265,345 945,000 9,211,877 33,785,000 184,966 218,407,154 2,789 78,310
2006 25,870,000 153,395,000 641,339 645,000 8,672,915 33,505,000 171,558 222,807,262 2,769 80,461
2007 23,675,000 158,750,000 520,835 330,000 25,176,853 33,215,000 157,285 241,824,973 2,982 81,107
2008 20,855,000 153,485,000 395,533 - 26,378,839 32,305,000 142,147 233,561,519 2,864 81,548

Note: Special Assessment Bonds have no City commitments.

Source:
(8) Califomia Municipal Statistics
(b) Finance and Admii ive Services Department, City of Tracy
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CITY OF TRACY
RATIO OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Outstanding General Bond Debt
Year General Tax Percent
Ended Obligation Allocation of Assessed Per
June 30, Bonds Bonds Total Value Capita
1999 $ 40,400,174 $ 19,810,000 $ 60,210,174 2.22% $ 1,192
2000 40,413,000 19,230,000 59,643,000 1.95% 1,049
2001 38,083,000 33,620,000 71,703,000 1.96% 1,172
2002 33,020,000 32,975,000 65,995,000 1.50% 1,004
2003 32,785,000 32,290,000 65,075,000 1.29% 928
2004 30,045,000 55,720,000 85,765,000 1.30% 1,158
2005 27,095,000 55,050,000 82,145,000 1.07% 1,049
2006 25,870,000 54,070,000 79,940,000 1.00% 994
2007 23,675,000 53,065,000 76,740,000 0.71% 946
2008 20,855,000 52,030,000 72,885,000 0.74% 894
Source:

Finance and Administrative Services Department, City of Tracy
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CITY OF TRACY
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT
June 30, 2008

2007-08 Assessed Valuation: $ 9,562,890,555
Redevelopment Incremental Valuation: 994,698,179
Adjusted Assessed Valuation: $ 8,568,192,376
Total Debt City's Share of
OVERLAPPING TAX AND ASSESSMENT DEBT: 6/30/08 % Applicable (1) Debt 6/30/07
San Joaquin Delta Community College District $ 80,176,115 13479 % §$ 10,806,939
Tracy Unified School District 33,020,000 65.326 21,570,645
Banta School District 765,000 29.927 228,942
City of Tracy Community Facilities District No. 87-1 42,400,000 100. 42,400,000
City of Tracy Community Facilities District No. 89-1 12,615,000 100. 12,615,000
City of Tracy Community Facilities District No. 93-1 3,185,000 100. 3,185,000
City of Tracy Community Facilities District No. 98-1 63,560,000 100. 63,560,000
City of Tracy Community Facilities District No. 98-3 3,380,000 100. 3,380,000
City of Tracy Community Facilities District No. 99-1 8,600,000 100. 8,600,000
City of Tracy Community Facilities District No. 99-2 11,025,000 100. 11,025,000
City of Tracy Community Facilities District No. 2000-1 14,090,000 100. 14,090,000
City of Tracy Community Facilities District No. 2006-1 10,660,000 100. 10,660,000
City of Tracy 1915 Act Bonds 20,855,000 100. 20,855,000
TOTAL GROSS OVERLAPPING TAX AND ASSESSMENT DEBT $ 222,976,526
Less: City of Tracy Community Facilities District No. 87-1 economically defeased obligations 36,055,000
TOTAL NET OVERLAPPING TAX AND ASSESSMENT DEBT $ 186,921,526
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GENERAL FUND DEBT:
San Joaquin County Certificates of Participation 207,495,000 14817 % $ 30,744,534
Jefferson School District Certificates of Participation 3,965,000 69.328 2,748,855
Byron -Bethany Irrigation District General Fund Obligation 5,750,000 14.681 844,158
City of Tracy General Fund Obligations 14,685,000 100. 14,685,000
TOTAL DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GENERAL FUND DEBT: 49,022,547
GROSS COMBINED TOTAL DEBT $ 271,999,073
NET COMBINED TOTAL DEBT $ 235,944,073

(1) Percentage of overlapping agency's assessed valuation located boundaries of the city.

@

(2) Excludes tax and revenue anticipation notes, enterprise revenue, mortgage revenue and tax allocation bonds and non-bonded

capital lease obligations.

Ratios to 2007-08 Assessed Valuation:

Total Overlapping Tax and Assessment Debt...................ceei 2.33%

Total Net Overlapping Tax and Assessment Debt....................... 1.95%
Ratios to Adjusted Assessed Valuation:

Combined Direct Debt ($14,685,000)................... 0.17%

Gross Combined Total Debt.............ccoveeiiiiiniss 3.17%

Combined Total Debt.......cccooeviiviiiinne 2.75%

STATE SCHOOL BUILDING AID REPAYABLE AS OF 6/30/08 $0

Source: California Municipal Statistics, Inc.
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TRACY, CALIFORNIA

Located in Northern California, 60 miles east of San Francisco, 70 miles south of
Sacramento, 20 miles south of Stockton, and 343 miles north of Los Angeles

Located within a triangle formed by Interstate 5, Interstate 205, and Interstate 580





